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1,201,048 1,202,894 1,201,085 1,492,330 2,109,505
125,113,170 | 125,305,468 | 125,117,024 | 155,456,016 | 219,747,136
527,025 402,909 589,492 190,864 648,461
54,900,194 41,971,031 61,407,382 19,882,303 67,550,182
64,340 185,168 314,996 14,890 263,225
6,702,298 19,288,951 32,813,133 1,551,091 27,420,148
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1,564,142 1,743,854 1,996,485 1,910,711 2,171,869
162,936,672 | 181,657,271 | 207,973,842 | 199,038,765 | 226,243,594
23,237,498 24,133,403 25,192,049 27,067,629 32,341,717
2,420,650,167 | 2,513,976,591 | 2,624,255,744 | 2,819,634,913 | 3,369,036,660
13.035 14.532 16.637 15.923 18.099
1,357.856 1,513.798 1,733.076 1,658.699 1,885.373
0.536 1.543 2.625 0.124 2.194
55.835 160.734 273.446 12.917 228.549
6.731 7.226 7.925 7.059 6.715
4.113 10.618 15.778 0.779 12.120
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(43,163) (24,554) (20,418) (24,564) (29,072)
(4,496,290)|  (2,557,790)|  (2,126,943)|  (2,558,832)|  (3,028,430)
1,123,095 2,279,129 198,219 1,352,102 4,266,821
116,992,806 | 237,416,868 20,648,473 | 140,848,465 | 444,474,744
1,937,976 3,471,028 2,197,444 2,104,066 3,070,045
201,878,960 | 361,576,987 | 228,907,741 | 219,180,555 [ 319,806,588
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One Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 5AL, United Kingdom

60/344



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

®

®
(b) )

61/344



10

25.6

62/344

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

2024



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

2024 31 2024 31

2024 31
2024 31
269 643
0 20
- 42
452 32
- 35
- 7
5,497 510
491 69
0 74

2023
2024 11

63/344



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

@
2024 31
120,000,000 120,000,000
2024 31
120,000,000
120,000,000
@
®
Q)
®
®
2024 31
120,000,000 100
120,000,000 100
74,382,000 61.98
2024 30 2024 31

64/344



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

@

100

@
)

2024 31

2025 31

65/344



)

€Y
(b)
©

@

66/344

@

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

10



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

)

)

(b)
)

67/344



©

)

)

)

)

)

)

68/344

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

oOoOooodn
@
@
14.28
2020 1966 18
2017 11
2023 1967 25
2014 30 1959 12
2016 10 1961 12 20
2022 1975 22
2017 11 1961 25
2018 1961

69/344



©)

12

®
@

2023

(b

31

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

2024

2023 31 2024 31
2023 31 2024 31
12 12
2,229,631 2,130,756
2,229,631 2,130,756
31 12

70/344



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

oOoOooodn
©)
2023 31 2024 31

902,885 964,006
235,253 340,789
320,243 392,021
1,458,381 1,696,816
13,559 13,129
1,471,940 1,709,945
131,031 99,591

52 780 433 757

2024 31 12

12

71/344



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

2024 31

42

Q)

®

72/344



38

23

2024 2023

59

103
193

331

31

328

104.17

73/344

EDINETOOOO

00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

2024

14

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO

00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

@
31

2023 2024 2023 2024
3a 998,153 | 1,522,927 883,945 | 1,304,033
440,162 525,251 440,162 525,251
3b 54,015 61,327 48,854 54,278
1,492,330 | 2,109,505 | 1,372,961 | 1,883,562
3a (933,184)| (1,038,303)( (1,105,080)| (1,146,204)
(368,282)|  (422,741)| (368,282)| (422,741)
(1,301,466)| (1,461,044)| (1,473,362)| (1,568,945)
190,864 648,461 |  (100,401)] 314,617
4 92,788 116,234 255,970 325,116
283,652 764,695 155,569 639,733
9c (15,640)|  (73,931) @.678)  (70,014)
8b 21,086 (428) 21,086 (428)
(177,220)|  (194,213)[  (177,220)| (194,213)
5 (29,034)]  (35,345)[  (29,034)  (35,345)
I (41,334)]  (54,033)[  (41,334)  (54,033)
(9,765) (9,418) (9,765) (9,418)
(32,783)]  (42,800)(  (32,968)|  (43,185)
— — 39,519 50,981
25 16,050 15,284 — —
15,012 369,811 (81,821)| 284,078
6 @22)|  (106,586) 1,472 | (100,038)
14,890 263,225 (80,349)| 184,040
15 828 (2,067) — —
15,718 261,158 (80,349)| 184,040
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2023 2024 2023 2024
3a 103,978 158,643 92,081 135,841
45,852 54,715 45,852 54,715
3b 5,627 6,388 5,089 5,654
155,456 219,747 143,021 196,211
3a (97,210)|  (108,160)[  (115,116)|  (119,400)
(38,364)]  (44,037)[  (38,364)  (44,037)
(135,574)|  (152,197)[  (153,480)|  (163,437)
19,882 67,550 (10,459) 32,774
4 9,666 12,108 26,664 33,867
29,548 79,658 16,206 66,641
9c (1,629) (7,701) (799) (7.293)
8b 2,197 (45) 2,197 (45)
(18,461)]  (20,231)[  (18,461)  (20,231)
5 (3,024) (3,682) (3,024) (3,682)
IT (4,306) (5,629) (4,306) (5,629)
(1,017) (981) (1,017) (981)
(3.415) (4,458) (3,434) (4,499)
— — 4,117 5,311
25 1,672 1,592 — —
1,564 38,523 (8,523) 29,592
6 @a3)|  (11,103) 153 (10,421)
1,551 27,420 (8,370) 19,171
15 86 (215) — —
1,637 27,205 (8,370) 19,171
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2023 2024 2023 2024
21 2,104,066 | 3,070,045 2,104,066 | 3,070,045
8a | 22,252,676 | 26,209,498 | 19,194,809 | 22,252,861
8b 1,864,213 | 2,242,356 | 1,864,213 | 2,242,356
17 515,314 448,123 491,183 448,123
25 102,972 116,189 4,284 4,284
28 55,156 64,068 55,156 64,068
26 17,532 17,341 17,532 17,341
27 21,865 39,911 21,865 39,911
29 5,723 — 4,590 —
23 128,112 134,186 | 4,463,091 | 5,277,361
27,067,629 | 32,341,717 | 28,220,789 | 33,416,350
10 7,140,674 | 7,911,831 2,281,887 | 2,431,508
11 16,788,751 | 20,971,661 | 16,788,751 | 20,971,661
— — | 6,105,182 | 6,661,010
17 623,947 414,605 623,947 487,357
29 — 31,874 — 36,017
24a 449,212 656,424 454,213 648,829
24b 125,300 136,974 125,300 136,974
27 29,034 46,479 29,034 46,479
25,156,918 | 30,169,848 | 26,408,314 | 31,419,835
1,910,711 | 2,171,869 | 1,812,475 | 1,996,515
14 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000
15 4,957 2,890 — —
16 1,785,754 | 2,048,979 | 1,692,475 | 1,876,515
1,910,711 | 2,171,869 | 1,812,475 | 1,996,515
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31

2023 2024 2023 2024
21 219,181 319,807 219,181 319,807
8a 2,318,061 | 2,730,243 | 1,999,523 | 2,318,081
8b 194,195 233,586 194,195 233,586
17 53,680 46,681 51,167 46,681
25 10,727 12,103 446 446
28 5,746 6,674 5,746 6,674
26 1,826 1,806 1,826 1,806
27 2,278 4,158 2,278 4,158
29 596 — 478 —
23 13,345 13,978 464,920 549,743
2,819,635 3,369,037 | 2,939,760 | 3,480,981
10 743,844 824,175 237,704 253,290
11 1,748,884 | 2,184,618 | 1,748,884 | 2,184,618
— — 635,977 693,877
17 64,997 43,189 64,997 50,768
29 — 3,320 — 3,752
24a 46,794 68,380 47,315 67,589
24b 13,053 14,269 13,053 14,269
27 3,024 4,842 3,024 4,842
2,620,596 | 3,142,793 | 2,750,954 | 3,273,004
199,039 226,244 188,806 207,977
14 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500
15 516 301 — —
16 186,022 213,442 176,305 195,477
199,039 226,244 188,806 207,977
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(©)
2022 120,000 4,129 | 1,872,356 | 1,996,485
— — 14,890 14,890
15 — 828 — 828
— 828 14,890 15,718
16 — — | (o1,492)[ (101,492)
2023 31 120,000 4,957 | 1,785,754 | 1,910,711
— — 263,225 263,225
15 — (2,067) — (2,067)
— (2,067)[ 263,225 261,158
16 — — — —
2024 31 120,000 2,890 | 2,048,979 | 2,171,869
2022 12,500 430 195,043 207,974
— — 1,551 1,551
15 — 86 — 86
— 86 1,551 1,637
16 — — (10,572) (10,572)
2023 31 12,500 516 186,022 199,039
— — 27,420 27,420
15 — (215) — (215)
— (215) 27,420 27,205
16 — — — —
2024 31 12,500 301 213,442 226,244
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(©))
2022 120,000 1,874,316 | 1,994,316
— (80,349)|  (80,349)
15 — — —
— (80,349)|  (80,349)
16 — (101,492)|  (101,492)
2023 31 120,000 1,692,475 | 1,812,475
— 184,040 184,040
15 — — —
_ 184,040 184,040
16 — — —
2024 31 120,000 1,876,515 [ 1,996,515
2022 12,500 195,247 207,748
— (8,370) (8,370)
15 — — —
— (8,370) (8,370)
16 — (10,572)|  (10,572)
2023 31 12,500 176,305 188,806
— 19,171 19,171
15 — — —
— 19,171 19,171
16 — — —
2024 31 12,500 195,477 207,977
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31

2023 2024 2023 2024
(2,310,352)| (4,489,982) (2,001,127)| (4,136,294)
1,171,307 | 1,692,021 | 1,033,977 | 1,446,234
(254) — (254) —
440,162 525,251 440,162 525,251
(551,049)| (1,015,081)|  (722,944)| (1.,122,982)
(170,730) 16,021 (170,730) 16,021
22a | (1,420,916)| (3,271,770)| (1,420,916)| (3,271,770)
(33,996) (25,634) (33,996) (25,634)
(4,455) (8,452) (4,455) (8,452)
3,659 5,014 3,659 5,014
10,228 — 10,228 —
(24,564) (29,072) (24,564) (29,072)
31,296,359 | 30,448,155 [ 31,296,359 [ 30,448,155
(29,834,898)| (26,173,611)| (29,834,898)| (26,173,611)
(7.867) (7.723) (7.867) (7.723)
(101,492) — (101,492) —
1,352,102 | 4,266,821 | 1,352,102 | 4,266,821
(93,378) 965,979 (93,378) 965,979
2,197,444 | 2,104,066 | 2,197,444 [ 2,104,066
21 2,104,066 | 3,070,045 [ 2,104,066 [ 3,070,045
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*

31
2023 2024 2023 2024

(240,669)|  (467,721)]  (208,457)]  (430,878)

122,015 176,258 107,709 150,654

(26) — (26) —

45,852 54,715 45,852 54,715

(57,403)|  (105,741) (75,309)]  (116,981)

(17,785) 1,669 (17,785) 1,669

22a (148,017)|  (340,820)|  (148,017)|  (340,820)

(3,541) (2,670) (3,541) (2,670)

(464) (880) (464) (880)

381 522 381 522

1,065 — 1,065 —

(2,559) (3,028) (2,559) (3,028)

3,260,142 | 3,171,784 | 3,260,142 | 3,171,784

(3,107,901)| (2,726,505)| (3,107,901)| (2,726,505)

(820) (805) (820) (805)

(10,572) — (10,572) —

140,848 444,475 140,848 444,475

(9,727) 100,626 (9,727) 100,626

228,908 219,181 228,908 219,181

21 219,181 319,807 219,181 319,807
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2001
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(i) IFRS 18
2024 IFRS 18 IFRS 18
IFRS 18 2027 IFRS 18

AASB 2024

IFRS 18
¢ )
2023
()
()

2024 31
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2023 31 2024 31 2023 31 2024 31
@
1,175,631 1,695,144 1,038,301 1,449,357
90,014 98,349 79,315 83,948
(267,492) (270, 566) (233,671) (229,272)
998,153 1,522,927 883,945 1,304,033
510,731 1,006,852 682,627 1,068,458
1,207,576 407,512 1,207,576 407,512
(813,928) (406,720) (813,928) (358,099)
27,869 29,735 27,869 27,409
936 924 936 924
933,184 1,038,303 1,105,080 1,146,204
®
51,966 58,104 47,179 51,645
2,049 3,223 1,675 2,633
54,015 61,327 48,854 54,278
()

86/344



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

oOoOooodn
)
@
(b
49 2023
50
)
2023 31 2024 31 2023 31 2024 31
* 60,561 68,453 60,561 68,453
14,104 20,438 13,475 19,576
15,098 21,379 15,098 21,379
** 3,025 5,964 166,836 215,708
92,788 116,234 255,970 325,116
* 393,687,000 2023 290,548,000
325,234,000 2023 229,987,000
** 2024 31 209,744,000 2023 153,583,000

24b
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2023 31 2024 31 2023 31 2024 31
7,135 7,009 7,135 7,009
2,304 2,302 2,304 2,302
635 417 635 417
2,092 2,191 2,092 2,191
13 17 13 17
12,179 11,936 12,179 11,936
- 16,855 21,434 16,855 21,434
— 1,975 — 1,975
16,855 23,409 16,855 23,409
29,034 35,345 29,034 35,345
* 2024 31
6,687,000 2023 5,116,000
26 28
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2023 31 2024 31 2023 31 2024 31
- 114,722 — 108,209
(1,165) 37,597 (2,432) 40,607
— (45,631) — (49,335)
1,287 (102) 960 557
122 106,586 (1,472) 100,038
14,575 (29,587) 15,842 (32,597)
(13,410) (8,010) (13,410) (8,010)
1,165 (37,597) 2,432 (40,607)
15,012 369,811 (81,821) 284,078
4,504 110,943 (24,546) 85,223
- - 25,709 14,587
- - (3,068) —
(4,815) (4,585) — —
451 374 451 374
140 106,732 (1,454) 100,184
(18) (146) (18) (146)
122 106,586 (1,472) 100,038
828 (2,067) — —
248 (620) — —
(248) 620 — —
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2023 31
*
341,868 83,474 (288,493) 136,849
36,941 15,025 — 51,966
3,630 (1,608) 27 2,049
14,093 15,490 2,644 32,227
— 59,650 911 60,561
396,532 172,031 (284,911) 283,652
163,717 116,249 — 279,966
2024 31
*
407,829 95,793 83,512 587,134
40,224 17,880 — 58,104
3,811 (548) (40) 3,223
17,139 22,573 8,069 47,781
— 67,757 696 68,453
469,003 203,455 92,237 764,695
130,902 87,320 — 218,222
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2023 31
*

19,530,926 4,585,962 2,950,741 27,067,629

2024 31

*

23,228,757 5,223,097 3,889,863 32,341,717

2023 31 2024 31

279,966 218,222

16,050 15,284

(335,519) 42,889

54,515 93,416

15,012 369,811

122) (106,586)

14,890 263,225

92/344



12

12

@

EDINETOOOO

00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

2023 31 2024 3L 2023 31 2024 31
1,113,333 1,355,239 1,113,333 1,355,239
(73,228) (127,552) (73,228) (127,552)
1,040,105 1,227,687 1,040,105 1,227,687
2,921,785 4,611,151 2,199,431 3,548,444
17,816,838 19,956,935 15,468,104 17,049,784
614,915 574,592 614,915 574,502
22,393,643 26,370,365 19,322,555 22,400,507
91)& (140,967) (160,867) (127,746) (147,646)
22,252,676 26,200,498 19,194,809 22,252,861
8,014,206 10,336,623 6,736,877 8,564,617
14,379,437 16,033,742 12,585,678 13,835,890
22,393,643 26,370,365 19,322,555 22,400,507
2023 31
331,748 (29,151) 302,597
286,792 (20,602) 266,190
231,792 (13,059) 218,733
164,312 (6,762) 157,550
66,208 (2,586) 63,622
32,481 (1,068) 31,413
1,113,333 (73,228) 1,040,105
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2024 31
399,128 (49,944) 349,184
345,900 (35,917) 309,983
276,713 (23,302) 253,411
210,592 (12,107) 198,485
82,739 (4,486) 78,253
40,167 (1,796) 38,371
1,355,239 (127,552) 1,227,687

SPP1

SPPI:
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AASB
AASB 10

6,661,010,000 2023

31 2024 31 2023 31 2024 31
3,069,879 3,557,917 3,069,879 3,557,917
(8,750) (8,850) (8,750) (8,850)
(1,196,916) (1,306,711) (1,196,916) (1,306,711)
1,864,213 2,242,356 1,864,213 2,242,356
30,350 8,750 30,350 8,750
(21,600) 100 (21,600) 100
8,750 8,850 8,750 8,850
514 328 514 328
(21,600) 100 (21,600) 100
(21,086) 428 (21,086) 428
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2023 31 2024 31 2023 31 2024 31

338,226 410,170 338,226 410,170
213,162 255,758 213,162 255,758
138,755 177,783 138,755 177,783

70,169 89,558 70,169 89,558

26,348 35,747 26,348 35,747

13,105 11,228 13,105 11,228

799,765 980,244 799,765 980,244
1,686,331 1,864,213 1,686,331 1,864,213
752,007 1,122,501 752,007 1,122,501
(227,443) (321,517) (227,443) (321,517)
(368,282) (422,741) (368,282) (422,741)
21,600 (100) 21,600 (100)
1,864,213 2,242,356 1,864,213 2,242,356

8,850,000 2023 8,750,000
2024 31 28,015,000 2023 16,714,000
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2023 31 2024 31 2023 31 2024 31

159,250 138,767 151,250 125,546

(20, 483) 21,400 (25,704) 21,400

138,767 160,167 125,546 146,946

2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200

— (1,500) — (1,500)

2,200 700 2,200 700

59,412 78,058 56,403 73,015

(23,289) (24,027) (23,025) (22,901)

(20, 483) 19,900 (25,704) 19,900

15,640 73,931 7,674 70,014

31
70,065,000 2023 51,518,000
65,825,000 2023 47,502,000
12
ECL
ECL
ECL
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20
ECL ECL
12 ECL
90,260 31,696 11,443 133,399
7,763 (4,688) (3,075) —
(46,280) 10,416 62,389 26,525
32,853 6,048 3,461 42,362
(14,722) (9,530) (2,713) (26,965)
— — (57,098) (57,098)
31 69,874 33,942 14,407 118,223
3,882 (2,688) (1,194) —
(29,169) 7,979 79,247 58,057
40,803 7,742 5,218 53,763
(9,178) (5,204) (1,448) (15,830)
— — (77,590) (77,590)
31 76,212 41,771 18,640 136,623
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ECL ECL
12 ECL

81,900 31,995 11,504 125,399

7,775 (4,823) (2,952) —

(43,518) 7,913 58,537 22,932

28,019 5,205 3,270 36,494

(13,765) (9,328) (2,641) (25,734)

— — (54,089) (54,089)

31 60,411 30,962 13,629 105,002

3,252 (2,230) (1,022) —

(24,813) 7,651 73,986 56,824

37,095 6,991 4,743 48,829

(8,326) (4,951) (1,429) (14,706)

— — (72,547) (72,547)

31 67,619 38,423 17,360 123,402
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ECL
2024 31
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ECL ECL
26,212 1,439 27,651

840 (840) —
(50,681) 861 (49,820)
11,463 147 11,610
31,975 1,442 33,417

— (2,314) (2,314)
19,809 735 20,544

87 @7 —
(31,029) 269 (30,760)
12,554 281 12,835
20,782 611 21,393

— (468) (468)
22,203 1,341 23,544

101/344

oOoOooodn



2022

ECL

2023
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31

31
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ECL ECL
12 ECL

17,721,146 554,240 67,310 18,342,696
(191,871) 170,669 21,202 —
(2,398,975) (116,151) 23,831 (2,491,295)
6,487,363 48,059 9,673 6,545,095
(2,541,616) (135,044) (11,389) (2,688,049)
— — (57,098) (57,098)
19,076,047 521,773 53,529 19,651,349
(370,761) 325,205 45,556 —
(1,006,676) (119,498) 47,029 (1,079,145)
7,791,406 59,599 15,037 7,866,042
(2,881,563) (107,097) (5,917) (2,994,577)
— — (77,590) (77,590)
22,608,453 679,982 77,644 23,366,079
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2023

ECL

2024

31

31

EDINETOOOO

00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

ECL ECL
12 ECL

15,467,622 529,976 63,918 16,061,516
(172,582) 152,997 19,585 —
(2,449, 244) (114,530) 21,674 (2,542,100)
5,608,629 35,140 9,136 5,652,905
(2,393,604) (133, 205) (11,162) (2,537,971)
— — (54,089) (54,089)
16,060,821 470,378 49,062 16,580,261
(355,153) 312,555 42,598 —
(1,314,107) (121,785) 42,088 (1,393,804)
6,972,323 54,050 13,717 7,040,090
(2,648,838) (103,090) (5,851) (2,757,779)
— — (72,547) (72,547)
18,715,046 612,108 69,067 19,396,221
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2022
ECL
2023 31
ECL
2024 31
ECL
ECL
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00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

OooooOodd
ECL ECL
2,390,304 14,632 2,404,936
(4,740) 4,740 —
(2,838,806) (16, 259) (2,855,065)
1,271,798 2,022 1,273,820
1,910,122 10,795 1,920,917
— (2,314) (2,314)
2,728,678 13,616 2,742,294
(13,518) 13,518 —
(3,235,538) (16,633) (3,252,171)
1,392,777 3,343 1,396,120
2,109,044 9,467 2,118,511
— (468) (468)
2,981,443 22,843 3,004,286
ECL
ECL
20 ECL
ECL
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2023 2024 2023 2024

31 31 31 31
7,140,674 7,911,831 2,281,887 2,431,508
7,140,674 7,911,831 2,281,887 2,431,508
3,112,508 3,468,246 1,034,595 1,249,221
4,028,166 4,443,585 1,247,292 1,182,287
7,140,674 7,911,831 2,281,887 2,431,508

2024 31
5,480,323,000 2023 4,858,787,000 2024 31
1,180,687,000 2023 1,246,394,000 2024
31 6,661,010,000 2023 6,105,182,000
2028 10 19 2029 20
5.23

2024 31 9,831,000 2023 7,180,000
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2023 2024 2023 2024
31 31 31 31

4,566,655 4,757,864 4,566,655 4,757,864
12,222,096 16,213,797 12,222,096 16,213,797

16,788,751 20,971,661 16,788,751 20,971,661

7,494,918 9,661,538 7,494,918 9,661,538

9,293,833 11,310,123 9,293,833 11,310,123

16,788,751 20,971,661 16,788,751 20,971,661

0.06 5.86

TFS 2000 14 TFS 2000

106/344



12

EDINETOOOO

00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

2023 2024 2023 2024

31 31 31 31

6,105,182 6,661,010 6,105,182 6,111,446
4,858,787 5,480,323 6,105,182 6,111,446
1,246,395 1,180,687 — —
6,003,550 6,666,912 6,003,550 6,116,861
4,905,738 5,546,544 6,003,550 6,116,861
1,097,812 1,120,368 — —
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2023 2024 2023 2024
31 31 31 31

42,250,748 44,189,821 42,250,748 44,189,821
15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000

6,440,000 6,670,000 — —
1,693,000 1,463,000 — —
* — — 8,133,000 7,583,436

19,159,040 23,529,337 19,159,040 23,529,337

4,858,787 5,480,323 — —
1,246,394 1,180,687 — —
— — 6,105,181 6,111,446

23,091,708 20,660,484 23,091,708 20,660,484

15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
1,581,213 1,189,677 — —
446,606 282,313 — —
* — — 2,027,818 1,471,990
35,298,107,000 2023 34,308,648,000
3,285,000,000 2023
2,735,000,000 2023 200,000,000
2024 31
1,539,883,000 2023 1,494,657,000

4,066,831,000 2023 3,512,443,000
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364

2023 11
2024 11

2026 11

2024 31

TFS
TFS 2000
TFS
2001
364
2025 11
50
2028 11
2024 31
15,000,000 2023
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2000

30

2027 11

15,000,000

14

TFS

TFS

TFS

TFS

2023 11
50

50

oOoOooodn

TFS
TFS
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15

2024

31
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2023 31 2024 31
120,000 120,000
31 120,000,000
2023 2024 2023 2024
31 31 31 31
4,129 4,957 — —
828 (2,067) — _
4,957 2,890 — —
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31

2024 31

84.57

2023

2023

2003
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31

2024

2023 2024 2023 2024
31 31 31 31
1,872,356 1,785,754 1,874,316 1,692,475
14,890 263,225 (80,349) 184,040
(101,492) — (101,492) —
1,785,754 2,048,979 1,692,475 1,876,515
101,492 — 101,492 —
101,492 — 101,492 —
2023 31
61.98
30 2024 31
74,382,000
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2023 2024 2023 2024
31 31 31 31
356,163 223,132 332,032 223,132
46,781 172,068 46,781 172,068
113,899 56,706 113,899 56,706
516,843 451,906 492,712 451,906
(1,529) (3.783) (1,529) (3,783)
515,314 448,123 491,183 448,123
101,949 77,316 101,949 150,068
511,944 330,200 511,944 330,200
10,054 7,089 10,054 7,089
623,947 414,605 623,947 487,357
204,493 211,893 204,492 211,893
25,616 111,566 25,616 111,566
310,821 236,230 286,691 236,230
598,331 303,039 598,331 375,791
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2023 31
— 113,899 113,899
— 356,163 356,163
— 46,781 46,781
— (1,529) (1,529)
— 515,314 515,314
— 10,054 10,054
— 101,949 101,949
— 511,944 511,944
— 623,947 623,947
2023 31
— 113,899 113,899
— 332,032 332,032
— 46,781 46,781
— (1,529) (1,529)
— 491,183 491,183
— 10,054 10,054
— 101,949 101,949
— 511,944 511,944
— 623,947 623,947
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OooooOodd
2024 31
— 56,706 — 56,706
— 223,132 — 223,132
— 172,068 — 172,068
— (3.783) — (3,783)
— 448,123 — 448,123
— 7,089 — 7,089
— 77,316 — 77,316
— 330,200 — 330,200
— 414,605 — 414,605
2024 31
— 56,706 — 56,706
— 223,132 — 223,132
— 172,068 — 172,068
— (3.783) — (3,783)
— 448,123 — 448,123
— 7,089 — 7,089
— 150,068 — 150,068
— 330,200 — 330,200
— 487,357 — 487,357
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2023 31 2024 31

22,252,676 23,845,099 26,209,498 26,191,855

22,252,676 23,845,099 26,209,498 26,191,855

7,140,674 7,222,893 7,911,831 8,020,666
16,788,751 16,573,094 20,971,661 21,028,751

23,929,425 23,795,987 28,883,492 29,049,417

2023 31 2024 31

19,194,809 20,557,656 22,252,861 22,205,595

19,194,809 20,557,656 22,252,861 22,205,595

2,281,887 2,317,155 2,431,508 2,474,122
16,788,751 16,573,094 20,971,661 21,028,751

19,070,638 18,890,249 23,403,169 23,502,873
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OooooOodd
19
2024 31
2023 31
(b) 2,104,066 — 2,104,066 — — 2,104,066
22,252,676 — 22,252,676 — — 22,252,676
() 515,314 — 515,314  (187,808)  (162,700) 164,806
@) 163,882 (35,770) 128,112 — (69,500) 58,612
25,035,938 (35,770) 25,000,168  (187,808)  (232,200) 24,580,160
0 7,140,674 — 7,140,674 — — 7,140,674
(b) 623,947 — 623,947  (187,808)  (69,500) 366,639
@) 484,982 (35,770) 449,212 —  (162,700) 286,512
8,249,603 (35,770) 8,213,833  (187,808)  (232,200) 7,793,825
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2023 31
(b) 2,104,066 — 2,104,066 — — 2,104,066
19,194,809 — 19,194,809 — — 19,194,809
() 491,183 — 491,183  (187,808)  (162,700) 140,675
(@) 4,491,536 (28,445) 4,463,091 — (69,500) 4,393,591
26,281,594 (28,445) 26,253,149  (187,808)  (232,200) 25,833,141
0 2,281,887 — 2,281,887 — — 2,281,887
(b) 623,947 — 623,947  (187,808)  (69,500) 366,639
@) 482,658 (28,445) 454,213 —  (162,700) 291,513
3,388,492 (28,445) 3,360,047  (187,808)  (232,200) 2,940,039
2024 31
() 3,070,045 — 3,070,045 — — 3,070,045
26,209,498 — 26,209,498 — — 26,209,498
(b) 448,123 — 448,123  (217,787)  (141,800) 88,536
@) 198,159 (63,973) 134,186 — (50,100) 84,086
29,925,825 (63,973) 29,861,852  (217,787)  (191,900) 29,452,165
) 7,911,831 — 7,911,831 — — 7,011,831
() 414,605 — 414,605  (217,787)  (50,100) 146,718
(@) 720,397 (63,973) 656,424 —  (141,800) 514,624
9,046,833 (63,973) 8,982,860  (217,787)  (191,900) 8,573,173
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2024 31
(b) 3,070,045 — 3,070,045 — — 3,070,045
22,252,861 — 22,252,861 — — 22,252,861
() 448,123 — 448,123  (217,787)  (141,800) 88,536
(@) 5,324,394 (47,033) 5,277,361 — (50,100) 5,227,261
31,095,423 (47,033) 31,048,390  (217,787)  (191,900) 30,638,703
0 2,431,508 — 2,431,508 — — 2,431,508
(b) 487,357 — 487,357 (217,787)  (50,100) 219,470
@) 695,862 (47,033) 648,829 —  (141,800) 507,029
3,614,727 (47,033) 3,567,694  (217,787)  (191,900) 3,158,007
@
()
1SDA
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20

SET

TFTP

SET
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SET

SET

@
)
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2024

)

31

2023
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100

31
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2023 31
* — 1,872,963 — 1,872,963
2,104,066 — — 2,104,066
* 5,130,243 17,263,400 — 22,393,643
15,934,500 (15,934,500) — —
69,500 — 58,612 128,112
23,238,309 3,201,863 58,612 26,498,784
7,140,674 — — 7,140,674
4,566,655 — — 4,566,655
1,224,362 10,997,734 — 12,222,096
8,812,123 (8,812,123) — —
2,572,411 (2,572,411) — —
162,700 — 286,512 449,212
— 29,034 — 29,034
24,478,925 (357,766) 286,512 24,407,671
(1,240,616) 3,559,629 (227,900) 2,091,113
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OooooOodd
2023 31
* — 1,872,963 — 1,872,963
2,104,066 — — 2,104,066
* 4,004,875 15,317,680 — 19,322,555
15,934,500 (15,934,500) — —
1,194,868 1,735,486 1,532,737 4,463,091
23,238,309 2,991,629 1,532,737 27,762,675
2,281,887 — — 2,281,887
— 6,105,182 — 6,105,182
4,566,655 — — 4,566,655
1,224,362 10,997,734 — 12,222,096
8,812,123 (8,812,123) — —
7,431,198 (7,431,198) — —
162,700 — 291,513 454,213
— 29,034 — 29,034
24,478,925 888,629 291,513 25,659,067
(1,240,616) 2,103,000 1,241,224 2,103,608
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oOoOooodn
2024 31
* — 2,251,206 — 2,251,206
3,070,045 — — 3,070,045
* 7,129,675 19,240,690 — 26,370,365
16,738,500 (16,738,500) — —
50,100 — 84,086 134,186
26,988,320 4,753,396 84,086 31,825,802
7,911,831 — — 7,911,831
4,757,864 — — 4,757,864
1,659,801 14,553,996 — 16,213,797
11,336,502 (11,336,502) — —
3,026,461 (3,026,461) — —
141,800 — 514,624 656,424
— 46,479 — 46,479
28,834,259 237,512 514,624 29,586,395
(1,845,939) 4,515,884 (430,538) 2,239,407
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OooooOodd
2024 31
— 2,251,206 — 2,251,206
3,070,045 — — 3,070,045
* 5,637,049 16,763,458 — 22,400,507
16,738,500 (16,738,500) — —
o 1,542,726 1,735,486 1,999,149 5,277,361
26,988,320 4,011,650 1,999,149 32,999,119
2,431,508 — — 2,431,508
— 6,661,010 — 6,661,010
4,757,864 — — 4,757,864
1,659,801 14,553,996 — 16,213,797
11,336,502 (11,336,502) — —
8,506,784 (8,506,784) — —
141,800 — 507,029 648,829
— 46,479 — 46,479
28,834,259 1,418,199 507,029 30,759,487
(1,845,939) 2,593,451 1,492,120 2,239,632
*
**
2024 31 1,180, 688,000 2023 1,246,395,000
2024 31 3,962,539,000 2023 3,088,588,000
()
LIBOR
2021
LIBOR
LIBOR 2021 12 31
LIBOR 2023 30
2024 31 LIBOR

LIBOR

126/344
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OooooOodd
()
12
2023 31 2024 31 2023 31 2024 31
(601) (1,877) 16,957 19,691
(b)
( ) ECL
30
11
11 12
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90

12

12 ECL 12

ECL

GDP

ECL
2024 31 ECL
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OooooOodd
50
2024 2023
2025
GDP 2024 0.9 2025 2.36
2024 4.25 2025 4.55
CPI 2024 3.47 2025 2.71
GDP 2024 2.44 2025 3.04
2024 3.64 2025 3.01
CPI 2024 4.48 2025 3.08
45
2024
GDP 2024 1.38 2025 0.54
2024 5.48 2025 7.59

CP1 2024 1.63 2025 1.74
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10,050,000

146,946,000
2024 31
2023 31
2024 31
31

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

oOoOooodn
ECL
100
ECL
2023 2024 2023 2024
31 31 31 31
99,901,000 125,404,000 90,563,000 114,213,000
79,844,000 101,847,000 72,683,000 92,927,000
144,736,000 183,944,000 130,406,000 167,004,000
9,622,000 2023 19,693,000
2023 19,693,000 2024 31
ECL 160,167,000 2023 138,767,000
2023 125,546,000
13,690,000 12,050,000
11,930,000 10,660,000
400,000 360,000 2023

300,000

130/344
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(
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ECL ECL
12 ECL

2023 31
30 13,896,099 94,547 — 13,990,646
31 60 — 209,147 — 209,147
61 90 — 32,382 — 32,382
90 — — 53,529 53,529

13,896,099 336,076 53,529 14,285,704
2023 31
30 11,991,199 84,651 — 12,075,850
31 60 —_ 186,034 — 186,034
61 90 — 29,037 — 29,037
90 — — 49,062 49,062

11,991,199 299,722 49,062 12,339,983

ECL ECL
12 ECL

2024 31
30 15,534,846 100,709 — 15,635,555
31 60 — 304,080 — 304,080
61 90 — 45,087 — 45,087
90 — — 77,644 77,644

15,534,846 449,876 77,644 16,062,366
2024 31
30 13,124,335 88,107 — 13,212,442
31 60 — 264,210 — 264,210
61 90 — 39,413 — 39,413
90 — — 69,067 69,067

13,124,335 391,730 69,067 13,585,132
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2023 31

11
12

2023 31

11
12

2024 31

11
12

2024 31

11
12
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ECL ECL
12 ECL
5,179,948 184,791 — 5,364,739
— 906 — 906
5,179,948 185,697 — 5,365,645
4,069,622 169,776 — 4,239,398
— 880 — 880
4,069,622 170,656 — 4,240,278
ECL ECL
12 ECL
7,073,607 230,106 — 7,303,713
7,073,607 230,106 — 7,303,713
5,590,711 220,378 — 5,811,089
5,590,711 220,378 — 5,811,089
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ECL ECL
2023 31
30 549,778 — 549,778
31 60 9,615 — 9,615
61 90 6,326 — 6,326
90 — 13,616 13,616
565,719 13,616 579,335
2023 31
30 549,778 — 549,778
31 60 9,615 — 9,615
61 90 6,326 — 6,326
90 — 13,616 13,616
565,719 13,616 579,335
ECL ECL
2024 31
30 675,591 — 675,591
31 60 22,592 — 22,592
61 90 7,657 — 7,657
90 — 22,843 22,843
705,840 22,843 728,683
2024 31
30 675,591 — 675,591
31 60 22,592 — 22,592
61 90 7,657 — 7,657
90 — 22,843 22,843
705,840 22,843 728,683
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(

2023 31

11
12

2023 31

11
12

2024 31

11
12

2024 31

11
12

)

ECL ECL
2,098,861 — 2,098,861
64,098 — 64,098
2,162,959 — 2,162,959
2,098,861 — 2,098,861
64,098 — 64,098
2,162,959 — 2,162,959

ECL ECL
2,233,820 — 2,233,820
41,783 — 41,783
2,275,603 — 2,275,603
2,233,820 — 2,233,820
41,783 — 41,783
2,275,603 — 2,275,603
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2023 31 2024 31
AA- 21 28
A+ 1 2
A 78 70
A- — —
100 100
©
()
13
)
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2023 31 12

276,178 406,558 2,690,448 4,178,006 — 7,551,190
2,039,187 2,303,167 3,781,559 9,600,883 17,724,796
330,122 37,249 39,722 42,119 — 449,212

715 1,432 6,610 17,686 4,850 31,293
2,646,202 2,748,406 6,518,330 13,838,694 4,850 25,756,491
(522,713) (1,792,312) (1,497,136) _ —  (3,812,161)
346,962 1,671,663 716,849 _ — 2,735,474

(565) 10,671 27,226 23,431 _ 60,763
875,785 33,869 996,660 8,048,322 — 0,954,636
(826,613)  (33,264)  (816,380) (7,728,375) —  (9,404,632)
(127,144)  (109,373)  (572,781) 343,378 — (465,920)
2,519,058 2,639,033 5,945,558 14,182,072 4,850 25,290,571

137/344



EDINETOOOO

00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
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2023 31 12

735 17,776 1,104,447 1,292,864 — 2,415,822
283,789 405,983 1,674,934 4,348,536 — 6,713,242
2,039,187 2,303,167 3,781,559 9,600,883 — 17,724,796
335,123 37,249 39,722 42,119 — 454,213

715 1,432 6,610 17,686 4,850 31,293
2,659,549 2,765,607 6,607,272 15,302,088 4,850 27,339,366
(522,713) (1,792,312) (1,497,136) — —  (3,812,161)
346,962 1,671,663 716,849 — — 2,735,474

2,255 15,864 42,107 31,902 — 92,128
875,785 33,869 996,660 8,048,322 — 9,954,636
(826,613)  (33,264)  (816,380) (7.728,375) —  (9,404,632)
(124,324)  (104,180)  (557,900) 351,849 —  (434,555)
2,535,225 2,661,427 6,049,372 15,653,937 4,850 26,904,811
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2024 31 12
257,117 439,735 3,086,999 4,620,888 — 8,404,739
2,322,580 2,638,718 5,067,016 11,551,154 858,857 22,438,325
509,508 49,332 53,446 44,138 — 656,424
729 1,461 5,299 36,765 9,346 53,600
3,089,934 3,129,246 8,212,760 16,252,945 868,203 31,553,088
(656,064) (2,482,561) (1,294,560) _ —  (4,433,185)
656,462 2,443,374 1,277,474 _ — 4,377,310
2,930 (22,924)  (13,959) (3,397) —  (37,350)
(1,315,298)  (87,301) (2,738,613) (8,802,305)  (871,717) (13,815,234)
1,316,686 61,147 2,561,845 8,695,647 858,857 13,494,182
4,716 (88.265)  (207,813)  (110,055)  (12.860)  (414,277)
3,004,650 3,040,981 8,004,947 16,142,890 855,343 31,138,811
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2024 31 12

1,029 18,967 1,330,049 1,232,242 — 2,582,287

269,286 447,457 1,874,025 4,865,315 7,456,083

2,322,580 2,638,718 5,067,016 11,551,154 858,857 22,438,325

501,913 49,332 53,446 44,138 — 648,829

729 1,461 5,299 36,765 9,346 53,600

3,005,537 3,155,935 8,329,835 17,729,614 868,203 33,179,124
(656,064) (2,482,561) (1,294,560) _ —  (4,433,185)

656,462 2,443,374 1,277,474 _ — 4,377,310
(3,896)  (34,617)  (50,946)  (23,501) —  (112,960)
(1,315,298)  (87,301) (2,738,613) (8,802,305)  (871,717) (13,815,234)

1,316,686 61,147 2,561,845 8,695,647 858,857 13,494,182
(2,110)  (99,958)  (244,800)  (130,159)  (12,860)  (489,887)

3,003,427 3,055,977 8,085,035 17,509,455 855,343 32,689,237

21
2023 2024 2023 2024
31 31 31 31

334,066 450,045 334,066 450,045

1,770,000 2,620,000 1,770,000 2,620,000

2,104,066 3,070,045 2,104,066 3,070,045

2024 31 276,315,000

2023 292,349,000
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2023 2024 2023 2024
31 31 31 31
14,890 263,225 (80,349) 184,040
(16,050) (15,284) — —
— — (10,228) —
23,918 26,683 23,918 26,683
— 1,975 — 1,975
1,749 704 1,749 704
20,534 25,953 20,534 25,953
(60,561) (68,453) (60,561) (68,453)
2,128,557 584,002 2,128,557 584,003
(581,825) (218,777) (581,825) (218,777)
— 112 — 112
(20,483) 19,900 (25,704) 19,900
(21,600) 100 (21,600) 100
(1,646,011)  (3,976,722) (856,103)  (3,077,952)
(96,836) (311,087) (96,836) (311,087)
(1,165) 5,723 (2,432) 4,590
— 31,874 — 36,017
(27,109) 133,878 (14,261) 130,841
81,600 (6,076)  (1,034,437) (814,273)
(169,443) 85,010 (169,769) 75,453
(1,051,081) 145,490 (965,386) 194,109
— — 323,817 (65,708)
(1,420,916)  (3,271,770)  (1,420,916)  (3,271,770)
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()
2022 2023
31
21,136,947 1,461,461 1,211,212 119,805 — 23,929,425
35,731 (7.867) — — 1,170 29,034
2023 2024
31
23,929,425 4,274,544 408,114 271,409 — 28,883,492
29,034 (7,723) — — 25,168 46,479
2022 2023
31
17,613,652 125,969 1,211,212 119,805 — 19,070,638
35,731 (7.867) — — 1,170 29,034
2023 2024
31
19,070,638 3,653,008 408,114 271,409 — 23,403,169
29,034 (7,723) — — 25,168 46,479
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23

12
12

2023 2024 2023 2024

31 31 31 31
45,874 53,388 45,874 53,388
— — 3,088,588 3,962,539
— — 1,246,395 1,180,687
77,764 73,201 77,760 73,150
4,474 7,597 4,474 7,597
128,112 134,186 4,463,091 5,277,361
115,961 122,521 3,204,541 4,085,008
12,151 11,665 1,258,550 1,192,353
128,112 134,186 4,463,091 5,277,361
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2023 2024 2023 2024
31 31 31 31
18,479 19,355 18,479 19,355
87,920 127,374 87,920 127,374
121,977 152,989 121,977 152,989
106,287 227,163 117,396 224,288
93,826 104,932 87,787 100,299
20,723 24,611 20,654 24,524
449,212 656,424 454,213 648,829
407,093 612,286 412,094 604,691
42,119 44,138 42,119 44,138
449,212 656,424 454,213 648,829
2023 2024 2023 2024
31 31 31 31
125,300 136,974 125,300 136,974
91,316,000 2023 83,533,000 12
2023 2024 2023 2024
31 31 31 31
75,803 80,113 75,803 80,113
15 2024 2023 31
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25
2023 2024
31 31 2023 2024
31 31
@
96,322 102,972 45.45 45.45
16,050 15,284
(10,228) —
828 (2,067)
31 102,972 116,189
2023 2024
31 31 2023 2024
31 31
31 4,284 4,284 45.45 45.45
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2023 2024
31 31
()]
22,390 21,430
(6,340) (6,146)
16,050 15,284
©
2023 31
1,369,688 1,138,521 139,905 35,313
2024 31
1,813,635 1,502,629 160,297 33,629

20 50
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(b)
26
2023 31
17,311 8,289 9,022
6,667 5,898 769
10,518 2,777 7,741
34,496 16,964 17,532
2023 31
17,311 8,289 9,022
6,667 5,898 769
10,518 2,777 7,741
34,496 16,964 17,532
2024 31
16,974 10,265 6,709
6,906 6,224 682
12,597 2,647 9,950
36,477 19,136 17,341
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2024 31

16,974 10,265 6,709
6,906 6,224 682
12,597 2,647 9,950
36,477 19,136 17,341
2022 11,151 1,166 8,348 20,665
175 251 4,029 4,455

— — (2,544) (2,544)

(2,304) (635) (2,092) (5,031)

— 13) — 13
2023 31 9,022 769 7,741 17,532
— 336 8,116 8,452

— — (3,716) (3,716)

(2.,302) 417) (2,191) (4,910)

(11) ®) — an
2024 31 6,709 682 9,950 17,341
2022 11,151 1,166 8,348 20,665
175 251 4,029 4,455

— — (2,544) (2,544)

(2,304) (635) (2,092) (5,031)

— (13) — (13)
2023 31 9,022 769 7,741 17,532
— 336 8,116 8,452

— — (3,716) (3,716)

(2,302) 417) (2,191) (4,910)

(11) ®) — @an
2024 31 6,709 682 9,950 17,341
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2023 2024 2023 2024
31 31 31 31

21,865 39,911 21,865 39,911
21,865 39,911 21,865 39,911
29,034 46,479 29,034 46,479
29,034 46,479 29,034 46,479

8,018 5,573 8,018 5,573
21,016 40,906 21,016 40,906
29,034 46,479 29,034 46,479
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2023 2024 2023 2024
31 31 31 31
5 7,135 7,009 7,135 7,009
3a 936 924 936 924
254 — 254 —
26,031,000 2023
8,647,000 2023 8,803,000
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(b)

10

SaaS

SaaS
SaaS

SaaS
SaaS

SaaS
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2023 2024 2023 2024
31 31 31 31
95,462 117,153 95,462 117,153
40,306 53,085 40,306 53,085
55,156 64,068 55,156 64,068
2023 2024 2023 2024
31 31 31 31
29,076 55,156 29,076 55,156
33,995 25,634 33,995 25,634
(11,739) (14,747) (11,739) (14,747)
— (1,975) — (1,975)
3,824 — 3,824 —
55,156 64,068 55,156 64,068
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2023 2024 2023 2024
31 31 31 31
45,631 — 49,335 —
44,915 50,915 40,949 46,949
(4,525) — (4,525) —
47,017 51,048 46,146 50,871
17,323 18,811 17,323 18,811
150,361 120,774 149,228 116,631
139,485 145,276 139,485 145,276
5,153 7,372 5,153 7,372
144,638 152,648 144,638 152,648
5,723 (31,874) 4,590 (36,017)
135,786 150,361 133,386 149,228
45,631 (45,631) 49,335 (49,335)
(12,625) 6,000 (14,191) 6,000
(21,445) 4,525 (21,445) 4,525
1,551 4,031 680 4,725
1,463 1,488 1,463 1,488
150,361 120,774 149,228 116,631
131,228 144,638 131,228 144,638
13,400 5,791 13,400 5,791
10 2,219 10 2,219
144,638 152,648 144,638 152,648
5,723 (31,874) 4,590 (36,017)
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30
GST
GST GST
GST 100 2024 31 GST
GST 79,627,000 2023 47,373,000 2024 31 GST
69,249,000 2023 31 43,042,000
2003

2024 22 2010 2018

TFA

2024 31 7,200,000
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2023 31
2024 31
2023 2024
31 31
100 100
ASIC
36
2023 2024
31 31
100 100
100 100
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2024 31 2023
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2024 31 2023
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33

25

2023 31

2024

31

2,229,631
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2023 2024 2023 2024
31 31 31 31
11,872 7,202 11,872 7,202
(111) (149) (111) (149)
(19,965) (22,245) (19,965) (22,245)
(176) (192) (176) (192)
(232) (263) (232) (263)
— — (285,574) (469,176)
— — 67,384 150,465
— 16,913 — 16,913
— — 153,583 209,744
_ 711 — 711
5,510 3,505 5,510 3,505
— — (39,519) (50,981)
(11,794) (6,970) (11,794) (6,970)
105,443 22,849 105,443 22,849
— — 3,088,588 3,962,539
— — 1,246,395 1,180,687
— — 4,284 4,284
— 192,485 — 192,485
24,079 24,079 24,079 24,079
— — 24,130 72,752
— — 6,105,182 6,661,010
97,898 128,910 97,898 128,910
3,887 4,300 3,887 4,300
10,169 11,773 10,169 11,773
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2024 31 2023 31

2023 2024 2023 2024
31 31 31 31
902,885 964,006 902,885 964,006
235,253 340,789 235,253 340,789
320,243 392,021 320,243 392,021
1,458,381 1,696,816 1,458,381 1,696,816
13,559 13,129 13,559 13,129

1,471,940 1,709,945 1,471,940 1,709,945

131,031 99,591 131,031 99,591

ASIC 2016/785

2024 31
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2023 31 2024 31
2,104,066 3,070,045
22,252,676 26,209,498
1,864,213 2,242,356
491,184 448,123
102,972 116,189
55,156 64,068
17,532 17,341
21,865 39,911
5,723 —
1,374,506 1,314,872
28,289,893 33,522,403
2,281,887 2,431,508
16,788,751 20,971,661
6,105,182 6,661,010
623,946 487,357
— 31,874
449,212 656,424
125,300 136,974
29,034 46,479
26,403,312 31,423,287
1,886,581 2,099,116
120,000 120,000
4,957 2,890
1,761,624 1,976,226
1,886,581 2,099,116
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2023 31 2024 31
998,153 1,522,927
440,162 525,251

54,015 61,327
1,492,330 2,109,505
(1,172,464) (1,296,669)
(368,282) (422,741)
(1,540,746) (1,719,410)
(48,416) 390,095
246,371 325,978
197,955 716,073

(15,640) (73,931)
21,086 (428)
(177,220) (194,213)
(29,034) (35,345)
(41,334) (54,033)
(9,765) (9,418)
(32,783) (42,800)
16,050 15,284
(70,685) 321,189
122) (106,586)
(70,807) 214,603
828 (2,067)
(69,979) 212,536
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€)) 83 2001
() 2001 Corporations Regulations 2001
( ) 2024 31
(b)
©) 36 36
@
2024 27 2024 27
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALLA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Consolidated Company
2024 2023 024 Z023

Note $'000 5000 $'000 5'000
InterEs revienue 1a 1,522,927 998,153 1,304,033 8E3,845
Rental mcoma on mator wehicles under operating lease 525,251 440,162 525,251 240,162
Fee incoma ib 61,327 54,015 54,278 B 854
Financing and similar revenue 2,109,505 1,492,330 1,883,562 1,372,961
Interest expense and similar charges Ia {1,038 303) (933, 184) 11,146,204) (1,105,080}
Depreclation expense on motor vehicles under operating [422.741) (368.282) [432.741) 1368,282)
fease
Financing expense and similar charges [1,461,044) {1,301,468) 11,568,945) (1.,473,362)
Mot financing and similar revenue 648,461 190,864 314,817 {100,401}
Other revenue 4 116,234 92,788 325,116 255,970
Hat operating income 764,695 183,852 539,733 155,569
Credit impairment loss e (73.931) (15,640 170,014) (7674}
Non-credit Impairment (loss)reversal ib |a28) 21,086 (a28) 21,086
Employee benefits expense |194,213) (177,220 (194,213) {177,220}
Depreciation, write-off and amortisaton 5 |35,345) [29,034) 135,345) {29,034)
IT and communication expense 154,033) [41,334) 154,033) (41,334)
Sakes and marketing expense {9.418) 9. 765) (9.418) {9, 765)
Other expenies |42 8040 |32, 783] §43,185) {312 96E)
Share of overhead expenses as related to subsidiary - - 50,981 39,519
Share of net profits of associate accounted for using the
equity method & 15284 16,050
Profit/[loss) before income tax 369,811 15,012 284,078 (81,821}
Income tax (expense)foredit 6 | 1086, 586) {122} 1 100,038) 1,472
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of Toyota Finance
Australla Limped 263,225 14,850 184,040 (80,349)
Other comprehensive Income
ltems that moy be reclassified to profit or hoss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 15 {2.067] B2E - -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable o 261,158 15,718 184,040 (80,349}

owners of Toyota Finance Australia Limited

The above statements of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABM 48 D02 435 181

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

Consolidated Company
Hote 2024 2023 2024 2023
5'000 5'000 5'000 5'000
Azsets
Cash and cash equivalents 21 3,070,045 2,104,066 3,070,045 1,104 066
Loans and receivables Ba 26,200,458 12,252,676 21,252,861 19,194,809
Mator vehicles under operating lease Bb 2,242,156 1,864,213 2,242,356 1,864 213
Derivative financial Instruments 17 448,123 515,314 448,123 491,183
Investment sccounted for uiing the equity method 25 116,189 102,972 4,284 4284
Intangible assets 28 4,068 55,156 64,068 55,156
Property, plant and equipment FL] 17,341 17,532 17.341 17,532
Right-of-use asgets 27 14911 21,865 oyl 21,855
Deferred fax assets 29 - 5713 - 4,590
Other assets 23 134,186 128,112 5,277,361 4,463,081
Total assets 32,341,717 27,067,629 33,416,350 28,220,785
Liakilities
Dwie b banks and ather financial institutions 10 7.911.E31 7140674 2411 508 2,181 887
Bonids and commercial paper Il 20,971,661 16,788,751 20,971,661 16,788,751
Related party labiities = securitisation trusts and 6,661,010 6,105,182
subsidiary
Darivative financial instruments 17 414,605 623,947 487,357 623,947
Deferred tax liabilites 29 31874 . 36,017 -
Other liabilithes 243 656,424 449,212 G4E, 829 454213
Contract liabilities 24 136,974 125,300 136,974 125,300
Lease Rabilities 27 46,479 29,034 46,479 19,034
Total liabilities 30,169,848 25156918 31,419,835 26,408,314
Met assets 2,171,869 1,910,711 1,996,515 1812475
Equity
Contributed eguity 14 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000
Resernes 15 2890 4,957 - -
Retained carnings 16 2.048,579 1,785,754 1,876,515 1692475
Total equity 2,171,869 1,910,711 1,996,515 1812475

The above statements of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABM 48 D02 435 181

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Contributad Retabned Tatal

Consolidated Ras
equity arves earnings equity
Hote §'000 5'D00 5'000 5'000
Balance at 1 April 2022 120,000 4,129 1,872,356 1,996,485
Prafit for the year - = 14, B 14,890
Other comprehensive income 15 - 828 - 828
Total comprehansive incoma for the year - g28 14,8580 15,718
Devidend paid 16 = . |101,492) [101,49F)
Balance at 31 March 2023 120,000 4,557 1,785,754 1,910,711
Profit for the year = . 263,225 263,225
Other comprehensive loss 15 - (2,067 - 12,067)
Total comprehensive income for the year - (2,067 263,215 261,158
Déwidend paid 16 -
Balance at 31 March 2024 120,000 2LEGD 2,048,579 2,171 BED
Contributed R Retained Tatal
Conpam equity TV, Earnings equity
Note 5000 5000 5'000 $'000
Balance at 1 April 2022 120,000 = 1,874,316 1994 316
Loss far the year * . {80,349} |80, 345}
Other comprehensive income 15 * g
Tatal comprehensive incame for the year - - {20,349) |80,349)
Devidend paid 14 . - (101,493} (101,492}
Balance at 31 March 2023 120,000 . 1,652,475 1,812,475
Profit for the year - - 184,040 184,040
Other comprehensive income 15 - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 1E4,040 184,040
Dewidend paid 16 - - - -
Balance at 31 March 2024 120,000 " 1,876,515 1,996,515

The abowe statements of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABM 48 D02 435 181

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Consolidated Company
2024 023 2024 2023

MNate 5000 s'000 5'000 3'000
Cash flows from operating activitles
Met -:..nsh outllew lrom lending and ather operating (4,489,982) (2,310,352} (4.136,294) [2,001127)
Activities
Interest recetved 1,692,021 1,171,307 1,446,234 1,033,977
Short term lease payments - {254} - 1254)
Rental incame received 525,251 440,162 525,251 440,162
Interest paid [1,015.081) |551,0459} [1,122.982] [722,944)
Income takes refundedfpaid) 16,021 (10,7 30) 16,021 [0, 730§
Het cash outflow from operating activities 22a {3,271,770) {1,420,916) [3,271,770] {1,420,918)
Cash flows from investing activities
Fayments for intangible assets [25,634) 133,996} (25,634] [33,996)
Payments for property, plant and equipment [B.4532] {4,455} (B,452] |4, 455)
w; from sale of nondessed property, plant and 5014 3659 5,014 1659
equigment
Déwidends received from associate - 10,228 - 10,228
Mirt cash outflow from investing activities [29,072) {24,564) (29,072) {24,564)
Cash flows from finanding activities
Proceeds from borrowings 30,448,155 31,296,355 30,448,155 31,296,359
Repayments of borrowings {26,173.611) (29,834 B9E) {26,173,611] (19,534 898)
Principal lease payrments [7.723) |7, BET) [7,723] {7 A67)
Dewvidends paid to parent . (10, 497) - [A] 492
Net cash inflow from financing activities 4,266,821 1,352,102 4,266 821 1,352,102
Met increasef{decrease] in cash and cash equvalents 965,979 (93,378} 965,979 93,378}
Cash and cach equivalents 3 beginning of period 2,104,066 2,197,444 2,104,066 2,197 444
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 21 3,070,045 2,104,066 3,070,045 2,104,066

The above statements of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION
1. Corporate information

These financial statements cover Toyota Finance Australia Limited (hereinafter “the company” or "Company™) and the
entities it controlled [together referred to as the "consolidated entity” or *Consolidated™) which includes:

Toyota Finance Australia Limited
& Australian Allance Automotive Finance Pty Limited
Securitisation trust entities:
Southern Cross Toyata 2009-1 Trust
- King Koala TFA 2012-1 Trust

Toyota Finance Australia Limited & limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. Its registered office and
principal place of business is:

Toyota Finance Australia Limited
Level 9, 207 Pacific Highway
5t Leonards, New South Wales, 2065

A description of the nature of the consolidated entity's principal activities is included in the directors’ report an page 2,
which s not part of the financial statements,

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on 27 June 2024, The company has the power to
amend and reissue the financial statements,

2. Summary of material accounting policies

The material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless atherwise stated,

{a] Basis of preparation

Thess geneml purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards
and Imterpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Boord ond the Corporations Act 2001. The
consalidated entity Is a for-profit entity for the purpese of preparing the fnancial statemaents,

From fime to time, the group may reclassify certain comparative financial information ta conform with the
presentation in the current year. No material reclassifications were made in the currént year.

11
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

2. Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
Complisnce with international Financial Reporting Standards

The financial statements of the consolidated entity and company comply with International Financial Reporting
Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board,

New accounting ftandards, amendments and interpretations thot are not et affective
i) IFRS 18 Presentotion and Disclosure in Finoncial Statements

in April 2024, the International Accounting Standards Board issved IFRS18 Presentation and Disclosure In Financial
Statements (IFRS 18] which sets out requirements for the presentation and disclosure of information in general purpose
financial statemants. IFRS 18 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 lanuary 2027, The transition
of IFRS 1B require retrospective application. The AASE s expected to lssue the Australlan equivalent of the standard in
lune 2024, The Consolidated Entity is continuing to assess the full impact of adopting IFRS 18,

fii} Other amendments made to existing standards

Other amendments to cxisting standards that are not mandatorily effective for the annual reporting period beginning
on 1 April 2023 and have not been early adopted, are not likely to result in a material impact to the Consolidated Entity's
financial statements,

Mistorical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
financial assets and liabilities a1 fair value through the statements of comprehensive income (derivatives).

Goilng concern

The directors consider that the consolidated entity has sufficient resources to meet all its obfigations as and when they
fall due, Therefore, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes that the
consolidated entity will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business,

(b} Principles of consolidation
fiif) Subsidiaries

The cansolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and kabilites of all subsidiaries of Toyata Finance Australia
Limited as at 31 March 2024, and the results of 3ll subsidiaries for the year then ended. Toyota Finance Australia Limited
and its controlled entities together are referred to in the financial statements as the consolidated entity,

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the company has control. The company controls
an entity when the company s exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated fram the date on which control is transferred to the consolidated entity. They are deconsolidated from
the date that the control ceases,

The acquisition method af secounting is used to account for Business comblnations by the cormpany,
Intercompany transactions, balances, and unrealised gains on transactions between consolidated enfities are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset

transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the company.

12
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

2. summary of material accounting policies (continued)
fii) Associates

Assoclates are entities over which the consolidated entity has significant Influence but not control, generally
accampanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights, Investrments in associates are accounted
fior in the conseolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at
st Investments in assaciates are accounted far in the campany fnancial statements at eost less aceumulated
impairments,

The consalidated entity's share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or bosses is recognised by the consolidated
entity in the statements of comprehensive income, and its share of post-acquisiion movements in reserves s
recognised in "other comprehentive income”, The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment,

Dividends received from associates are recognised in the consolidated financial statements as a reduction against the
carrying amount of the investment. The company recognises dividends recelvad or recesvable from associates in the
statements of comprebensive income,

When the consolidated entity's share of losses in an associate |s equal to or exceeds its interest in the assodate,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the consalidated entity does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of its associate.

Unrealised gains an transactions between the consolidated entity and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
consolidated entity’s interest in associates, Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates bave been changed where
necessarny to ensure conslstency with the policies adopted by the consclidated entity.

{c) Foreign currency translation

fi} Functional ond presentation currency

Ttems included in the financial statements of the consolidated entity are measured using the currency af the primary
coonomic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The consolidated entity’s financial

statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the company’s functional and presentation currency.

On consalidation, the exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in the foreign entity from
functional to presentation currency is recognised in “other comprehensive income”,

{if} Transactions and balances

Forelgn currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and Eabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the statements of comprehensive income.

Forelgn exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are presented in the statements of comprehensive Income,
within “interest expense and similar charges®, All other forgign exchange gaing and losses are presented in the
statements of comprehensive income on a net basis within "other revenue” or “other expenses”,

{d} Reunding of amounts

The company i of & kind referred 1o in ASIC Legislative Instrument 2016,/191 relating to the “rounding off” of amounts

in the finandial statements. Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded off in accordance with the
Instrument to the nearest thowsand dollars, or In certain cases, the nearest dollar.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

2. Summary of material accounting policies [continued)
{e) Prior year comparatives

Where relevant, comparatives in the consolidated entity’s financigl report have been restated 1o confarm to the current
year presentation.

Infermation on restatements of pricr year comparatives for the company's financial infarmation is set out in note 2{a),

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

This sectien provides infermation and accounting palicies on individual line items in the statements of comprehensive
incame, including:

*  interest revenue and expense

fee income on originated assets

other revenue

depreciation, write-off and amartisation

Incorme 1ax expense

segmaent resulls

3. Financing revenue, expense and similar charges

Consalidated Company

024 2023 024 023

£'000 £'000 4000 £'000
(@) Interest revenue and expense
Interest revenue
Interest revenue 1,635,144 1,175,631 1,449,357 1,038,301
::‘!Ln:dm recognised using the effective interest rate 98,349 a0,014 83,048 79315
:E::”;“* ravcgtirud using the sffecthes biteom) nite (270,566] (267,492) (229,272) {213,571
Total interest revenue 1,522,927 998,153 1,304,033 823,945
Interest expense and similar charges
Int@rest expanse 1,006,852 510,731 1,068,458 682627
Net loss on ranslation of forelgn currency debt 407,512 1,207,576 407,512 1,207.576
Fair value gain on derivative financial instruments at falr value

{5, 720 B13,928) (358,099 B13,5928)

through statements of comprehensive Income T30 b i S
Transaction costs 9,735 27,860 27,408 17,869
Interest an lease labilines 924 BE G4 B
Total interest expense and similar charges 1,038,303 933,184 1,146,204 1,105,080
(b} Fee income earned on originated assets
Adrminastration and management foe 58.104 51,966 51.645 a7.179
Other foes 3,233 1045 1633 1675
Total fee income 61,327 54,015 54,278 48 854
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RESULTS FOR THE YEAR [continued)

3. Financing revenwe, expense and similar charges [continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue it measured a1 the fair value af the consideration recerved or receivable, Amaunts disclosed as revenue are
net of direct sales costs and taxes.

The consolidated entity recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the consolidated entity, and specific criteria have been met. Revenue is recognised
for the major business activities as follows:

fi} Term loans and term purchases

Interest income arising from term leans and term purchases i recognised over the period of the contract using the
effective interest raite method. Interest intome derlved from term loans and term purchades i included in "interest
revenue”.

fii} Leased assets where the consolidated entity is the lessor

{a] Fimanoe leases

Interest income derived from finance beases Is recognised over the period of the contract using the effective interast
rate method, Interest income derived from finance leases is included in “interest revenue®,

(b} Operating hrases

Lease rental receivables on operating leases are recognised an a systernatic basis aver the effective lease term. Income
derived from operating leases is included in “rental income on motor vehicles under operating lease”, Operating leases
have an average term of 49 months in the current period [2023: 50 months).

{iii} Fee income and expense

Fee income [establishment fee and termination fee] is recognised over the period of the contracts using the effective
interest rate method.

Fee expense [holdback commission and performance bonus) is recognised over the peried of the contracts wsing the
effective interest rate method.

Revenue from administration and management fees s recognised over tme, as the services are prowvided while other
fees are recognised at the point in time when the transaction takes place,
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RESULTS FOR THE YEAR [continued)

4, Other revenue

Consolidated Company
024 2023 2024 2023
5000 5000 £'000 59000
Met galn on disposal of leased and fived assets® 68,453 60,561 68,453 6,561
Net insurance distribution revenus 2038 14,104 19,576 13,475
Net maintenance revenue 21,379 15,098 21,379 15,098
Cther income ** 5564 3,025 215,708 166,836
Total other revenue 116234 92,768 325116 255,970

* The nat gain on disposal of keased and fixed assets represonts procoeds of $393,687,000 (2023 5390,548,000) and cost of sales of
5325, 234,000 (2023: 5225,587,000),

** Other income for the company ncludes residual income from the securitisation trusts amounting to 209,744,000 as at 31 Masch
2024 (2023; $153,583,000).

Net insurance distribution revenue and net maintenance revenue are recognised as the related services are performed.
NEt maintenance revenue represents net income received for facilitating the provision of maintenance senices on Neet
contracts, The revenue is recognised as those services are provided. The consolidated entity acts as an agent and as
such presents the revenue receivied net of associated costs in the statements of comprehensive income, Revenus
recelved in advance of the services being provided is presented as a contract [Bability until such point as the services
have been provided. Further information in relation te contract liakilites is presented in note 24b,

5. Depreciation, write-off and amortisation

Consolidated Company
2024 2023 024 2023
57000 47000 5000 000
Profit before income tax includes the following specific
EEPEAM
Depreciation on property, plant and eguipment
Right-of-use assets 1005 1,135 71,009 7,135
Leasehold improvements 2.302 1,304 2,302 2,304
Plart and equipment 417 535 417 615
Maotor vehicles 2191 21,082 2,191 2,082
Write-off on property, plant and equipment 17 13 17 13
Total deproclation and write-off 11,936 12,179 11,936 12,179
Armprtisation
Computer software development * 11434 16,855 21434 16,855
Computer software write-aff 14975 E 1,975 -
Total amortisation 23,405 16,855 23,409 16,855
Taotal depreciation, write-off and amartitation 15,345 29,034 15,345 219,034

* The wmortisotion of compuler software development as of 31 March 2024 includes amortisofion of softwore os o service
afrangements amounting o $6,687,000 (2023: £5,116,000).
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RESULTS FOR THE YEAR [continued)

5. Depreciation, write-off and amortisation (continued)

Assets that are subject to depreciation, write-off and amortisation are tested for impairment, whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
fior the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less coats to resell and value in use, For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels, for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows that are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other asset groups (cash generating units).

Refer to notes 26 to 28 for further information on depreciation, write-off and amortisation.
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RESULTS FOR THE YEAR [continued)

6. Income tax expense

Consalidated Company
2024 2023 024 073
5'000 5000 5'000 $'000
Curngnt tax 114,722 . 108, 209 .
Deferred tax 37.547 {1, 165) A0 60T [2.432)
Prios year tax lesses utilised by the head entity of the (456311 . [#5.335) L
income tax consolidated group
Undesr{{over) provision in prior year {102] 1.287 557 960
Income tax expense fcredit) attributable to continuing
aperations 106,586 122 100,038 1,472}
Deferred income tax expense included in income fax
ERDERINE COMPTisEs:
[Decreaselfincrease in deferred tax assets [29,587) 14,575 [32.,597) 15,842
[Increase) in deferred tax Habilities 18,050) 1134100 (B.010) {13.4100
{37,507) 1,165 {40,607} 2,432
Numericol reconcifiotion of income tax exgense Ho prima
Jacie tax papm bl
Prodit/Tloss) from continuing operations before income Lax 169,811 15,012 84,078 1821
RRpENSE
Prima facie tax payablef{recebvable) @ 30% 110,543 4,504 B5, 223 |24, 54E8)
Tawx effect of amaunts which are nat dedichible (foxable] in
calculhing faxeble income;
Tax gon securitisation trusts” nat income - - 14,587 25,709
Dividend income fram assodiate - - . (3.D68)
Share of net profit of asociate {4, 565] 14,EL1S) . .
Sundry items ET ] 451 it 451
106,732 140 100,184 [1.454)
Pricr period adjustments {1a&) [13) 1126 (18]
Income tax expense fcredit) attributable to continuing
106,586 13z 1 1471
0,038 [1.472]
Murmericod recamcifalion of mcome fax exgense o prima
facie tox popoble on other comprehensive meome;
Other comprahansive income {1,067) E1B - -
Prima facie tax |receivable]/payable @ 30% 620} 248 - -
Tox effect af amaunts which are nor deducnible (faxable] in
calculating taxcble income:
Exchange diferences on translation of forelgn operations 620 (248} - -

The income lax expense or credit Tor the period is the tax payable or receivable on the current period’s taxable income
bkased on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction, adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temparary differences and to unused tax losses,

13

175/344



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR [continued)

6. Income tax expense [continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences only if it is probable that future takablbe
amaunts will be available to utilise those temporary differences. Deferred tax assets relating to unused tax losses are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable;

& Tazable profits of other members of the income tax consolidated group, to which the Australian members of the
consolidated entity belong are, or will be, avallable to utilise against the lasses either in the fiscal year or a future
fiscal year; andfor

*=  Future taxable profits of the consolidated entity will be available against which the benefits of the deferred tax
asset can be utilised.

Dreferred tax Habilides and assets are not recognised for temparary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in controlied entities, where the consolidated entity is able to contral the timing of the reversal of
the temparary ditferences, and it s probable that the differences will nat reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitles are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities, and when the deferred tax balamces relate to the same taxation authosity. Current tax assets and liabilities
are offset where the consolidated entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultancoushy

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in "other
comprehensive income” or directly in “equity”. Im this case, the tax is also recognised in "other comprehensive income”
or directly in “equity”, respectively.

Tax consolidation legislation

The company and its wholly owned Australian controlled entities have implemented the tax consolidation kegislation
fram 1 April 2003 in association with ather Australian incorporated entities with comman ownership.

On adoption of the income tax consolidation legislation, the entities in the income tax consolidated group entered into
an income tax sharing agreement which, in the opinion of the directors, limits the joint and several liability for income
tax of the consolidated entity in the case of a default by the head entity, Toyota Motor Corporation Australia Limited,

As a consequence, the consalidated entity is no lenger subject to income tax and does not recognise any current tax
balances in its own financial statemeants unless the head entity of the income tax consolidated group (Toyota Maotor
Corporation Australia Limited) is in default of its obligations, or a default is probable, under the tax consolidation
legislation.

The consclidated entity has also enterad inta an income tax funding agreement under which the cansalidated entity
fully compensates the head entity of the income tax consolidated group for any current Income tax payable and is
compensated by the head entity for any current income tax receivable. The funding amounts are determined by
reference to the amounts recognised in the consolidated entity's financial statements.

The amounts receivable or payable under the income tax funding agreement is due upon receipt of the funding advice
from the head entity of the income tax consolidated group, which is issued as soon as practicable after the end of each
finarciol year, The head entity may also require payment of interim funding amounts to as<ist with its obligations to pay
income tax instalments.

Deferred tax balances are recognised in the consolidated entity financial statements in accordance with UG 1052 Tax
Consolidation Accounting. Amounts receivable or payable under a tax funding agreement with the head entity are

recognised in accordance with the terms and conditions of the agreement as tax-related amounts receivable and
payable.
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RESULTS FOR THE YEAR [continued)

7. Segment results

Banagement has determined the operating segments based on reports reviewed by the board of directors that are
used to make strategic decisions. It categorises the operations of the business into two main business streams - retail
and fleet. Retail segment comprised of loans and leases 1o consumer and commercial customers, including whodesale
finance consisting of loans and bailment facilities to motor vehicle dealerships. Fleet segment comprised of loans and
leases to small businesses and flest customers. Fleet customers include medium ta large commercial cients and
government bedics. The consolidated entity’s business segments operate in Australia,

Consolidated 31 March 3024
FRetail Fleet  Unallocated * Total
5000 $'000 $'000 5000
Nt financing revenue [excluding les income) 407829 95,703 23,512 SE7. 134
Fow income
Fee income recognised aver a period of ime a0 224 17,B80 - 58,104
Fee incomefiexpense) recognised at a point in time 3811 |548) [aay 3,223
Orther revenue
Other rewenue recogrised at a point in time 17,139 22,573 B, D69 A7, 781
Mot gain on disposal of leased and fived assets &7, 757 [ BB A453
et operating income QE4,003 203455 qL.23¥ 64,695
Total reporting segment operating profit 130,902 87,3220 218,222
Consalidated 31 March 2023
Retall Fleet  Unallocated * Total
5000 $'000 £'000 5000
Met financing revenue [excluding fes Income] 341,868 83474 (288,405) 136,845
Fea income
Few inoome recognised over a period of time 36041 15025 - 51,966
Few income/{expense| recognised at a point in time 3,630 {1,608) ki 2,045
Diber revenue
Other revenue recogriied at a point in tHme 14,093 15 4490 2644 32227
Met galn on disposal of leased and fived assets - 55,650 811 60,561
Met operating income/|loss) 386,532 172031 [28&,911) 283,652
Total reparting segment agerating profit 163,717 116,249 - 279,956
31 March 2024
AEgald Retail Fleet  Unallocated * Total
5000 $'000 5'000 5'000
SegEment aSsats 23,228,757 5,223,097 3,889.E63 32,341,717
311 March 2023
Assets Retail Fleet  Unallocated * Tatal
$'000 $'000 $'000 5000
Segment assets 19,530,926 4,585,962 2,950,741 27,067,619

* Unattoceled indudes the octivifies wnderfoken by the centrolised ireasury ond orcillary support functians.
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The cansalidated entity’s segment operating profit reconciles to consolidated profit attributable to owners as presented

in the financial statement as follaws:

Consolidated

Total reparting segment operating profit

Share of net profits of assodiate acoounted for using the equity method
Fair value gain/|koss)

Cther unalipcated net incoma

Profit before income tax
I T expense

Profit attributable to owners of Toyota Finance Australia Limited

024 2023
5'000 5'000
218,222 270,966
15,284 16,050
42,889 [335,519)
93,416 54,515
369,811 15,012

| 106, 586] (122}
2E3,225 14,890

Operating segmants are reported in a manner consistent with the interral reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments has been identified as the board of directors,

LENDING

This section focuses on the lending assets of the consolidated entity. Further information s provided on the leans and

receivables, and impairment relating to these financing assets.

8. Financing assets and motor vehicles under operating lease

{a) Loans and receivables
Consalidated
HNote 2024 2023
5'000 £'000
Fimance keases 1,355,238 1,113,333
Uneamed income on finance leases {127.552] [73,228)
Finance leases - Net 1,227,687 1,040,105
Ballment stock 4,611,151 2921, 785
Term loans 19,956,935 17816838
Term purchases 574,592 614,915
Ket loans and recatvables (net of uvnearned
| e 26,370,365 22,393,643
Prossian for iImpairment of loans and '
reeeivabies and GFV Q3 kb {160.867] [ 140,967}
Net loans and receivables 26,209,498 12,152,676
Maturity analysis {net of unearned income)
Current
Het loans and receivables maturing within 12 10,336,623 8.014.206
manths
Nown-current
Mt loans and receivables maturing beyond 12 16,033,742 14,379,437
manths
26,370,365 22,393,643

Company
2024 2023
5000 5000
1,355,239 1,113,333
[127.553) 73,238)
1,227,687 1,040,105
3,548,044 2,199,431
17,045,784 15,468,104
574,592 614,915
22,400,507 15,322 555
[147.645) (127,745}
11,252,861 19,194,809
8,564,617 6,736,877
13,435,890 12,585,678
22,400,507 19,322 555
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LENDING (continued)

8. Financing assets and motor vehicles under operating lease (continued)

Future minimum lease recelpts under finance leases

Consolidated and Company 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present Prasent
Gross value of Gross value of
imvestment mirirmam Investmaent minimum
in finance ease in finance lease
lease  Unearned payments lease  Uneamed payments
receivables income receivables receivables Income receivables
s'000 5'00d 5'000 4000 'Doa 5000
Mot later than one year 350,128 {49,944) 349,184 331,748 [29,151) 302,597
One to two years 345,900 (35,917 309,983 186,792 [20,602) 266,190
Two to three years 176,713 {23,302] 253,411 231,792 | 13,059) 218.733
Thres to four yeard 210,592 (12,107 198,485 164,312 {6, 762) 157,550
Four to five years B2.739 | &, 4BG) 7B, 253 6, 208 |2,586) 63,622
Civer five years a0,167 |1, 196) 38,371 32,481 |1,064) 31413
Tatal 1,355.239 [127,552) 1,227,687 1,113,333 |73, 228) 1,040,105

Concentration of exposures

The majority of the consalidated entity’s loans and receivables are provided to finance the purchase of motor vehicles
or moter dealership assets.

Recognition and derecognition

Financing assets are recognised on transaction settlement date, which ks the date the consolidated entity becomes party
1o an irrevocable financing arrangement, Financing assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for
all financial assets not carried at falr value through the statements of comprehensive income. Financlal assets are
direcagnised when the rights to receivie cash Mows fram the financial assets have expired o have been transferred, and
the consolidated entity has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of cownership.

Classification and subsequent measurement
Classification

Loans and receivables are classified at amortised cost Dased on the following factors:

= Their contractual terms give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represents solely payments of principal and
interest {“SPPIY) on the principal amount outstanding: and

= They are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by holding them to collect contractual cash
flows,

Solely Payments of Principal and Interest {"SPPI™): For the purpose of this assessment, principal is defined as the fair
wiue of the financial asset on initial recognition. Interest s defined as consideration for the tme value of money, the

credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time, profit margin, and for
other basic lending risks and costs (e g. liquidity risk and administrative costs).
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LENDING (continued)

&. Financing assets and motor vehides under operating lease (continued)
Business model: Factors considered by the consolidated entity in determining the business model for a group of assets

include past experience on how the cash Aows far these assets were collected, how the asset’s performance is evaluated
and reported to key management personnel, how risks are assessed and managed.

The consolidated entity classifies its financing assets into the following categories:

fil Bailment stock

The consolidated entity provides dealer floor plan finance arrangements to motor dealers, under which vehicles are
owned by the consolidated entity but held at the dealers’ premizes as bailment stock. There is no uneamed income on
ballment stack,

Whila the legal form of the transactions is that the vehicles are owned by the consolidated entity, the substance of the
transactions is that of secured loans to the dealers. Accordingly, the balances are disclosed as part of “leans and
recalvables” in the statements of financial position.

{ii} Term loans

A term loan is a inancing agreement in which the terms of the agreement substantially transfer the risk and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an asset to the customer,

{iif) Term purchases

A term purchase is 3 financing agreement in which the terms of the agreement substantially transfer the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the customer,

fiv)Finance leases

A finance lease is a lease agreement in which the terms of the agreement substantially tronsfer the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset from the lessor to the lessee. Unearned finance income is the portion of charges
written into finance receivable agreements which witl be eamed in the future.

Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest method
calculation incledes the contractual terms of the lean, together with all fees and transaction costs.

Retall and whaolesale finance receivables form part of the loans and receivables in the statements of financlal position.
Unearmed income is brought to account aver the life of the contracts an an effective interest method.

Maodification

The consolidated enfity sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual cash flows of leans to customers.
When this happens, the consolidated entity assesses whether the now terms are substantially different to the original
terms by considering, among others, the following factors:

& if the borrower is in financial difficubty, whether the modification merely reduces the contractual cash flows to
amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay;
significant change of the loan term and/or interest rates when the borrower is not in financial difficulty; and
insertion of collateral, other security or credit enhancements that significantly affect the credit risk associated with
the laan.
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LENDING (continued)

8. Financing assets and motor vehicles under operating lease (continued)

IF the terms are substantially different, the consolidared ennty derecognises the original financial asset, recognises a
new asset at fair value and recalculates a new effective interest rate for the asset, If the terms are not substantially
different, the renegotiation or modificanon does not result in derecognition.

Securitisation

Loans and receivables include a portion of the consolidated entity’s term loans and term purchases under securitisation
within securitisation trusts. The terms of the transfer of these loans do not meet the criteria for derecognition under
AASBEI Fingneial Instruments and are therefore recognised on the consolidated entity’s statement s of financial position.
AASELD Consalidoted Fingenciol Statements defines control when an investor is exposed or has rights to variable retums
fram its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investes.
The company bears control over the securitisation trusts requiring consolidation in the financial staterments.

The campany has no financial guarantet in relation 1o the securitisation of leans and receivables,

s at the end of the reporting period, the carrying amount of translerred assets held by the securitisation trusts was
£5,661,010,000 (2023: 56,105,182, 000),

(b} Motor vehicles under operating lease

Consolidated Compary

2024 2023 2024 2033

5000 $'000 5000 5'000
Operating lease - At cost 3,557,917 3,065,879 3557917 3,069,879
Prowtsion for residual value impalrment loss (&.850) 18, 750) (B850} [8.750)
Accumulated depreciation {3,306,711) (3,196,918) [1,306,711) (1,196,916
Tatal motor vehicles under operating lease 2,242,356 1,864,213 1,141,356 1,864,213
Provislion for non-credit impalrment loss on
matar wehicles undor operating lease
Opening balance 8,750 30,350 8,750 30,350
Increasef{decrease] in impairment loss . -
peovision 100 121.600) 100 {21,600
Closing balance B850 B, 750 8,850 B,750
Mon-credit impairment loss
write off 328 514 EFii 514
In:rga.stﬂdetrease] in impairment loss 100 (21,600] 100 \1.500)
provisian
Tatal impairment loss/{reversal) 418 |21.0B5) 418 {21,086)
Future minkmum lease receipts under
operating leases
Mot later than one year 410,170 138,226 410,170 138226
Qe [0 bwen years 255,758 213,162 255,758 13,162
Two to throe years 177,783 138,755 177,783 138,755
Threa to four years 85,558 T0.169 9,558 0,169
Fowr to five years 35,747 26,348 35,747 26,348
Over T years 11,228 13,105 11,228 13,105

980,244 799,765 380,244 799,765
14
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LENDING (continued)

&. Financing assets and motor vehides under operating lease (continued)

Consalidated Cormpany

2024 2023 oza 2023

s'000 S'000 5000 £'000
Movements in cost, accumulated depredation, and
PESEIVES
Balance at beginning of period, net of residual valus 1,864,213 1686331 1864213 1,686 331
Additions 1,123 501 152,007 1,132 501 T52,007
Dispasals {321,517) {227.443) [321,517) |227,443)
Depreciation exspense (423,741) {168, 282) [423,741) |368 282
Impairment {pravision)/reversal {1001 21,600 (100} 11,600
Balance at end of period, net of residual value 2,242,356 1,864,213 2,242,356 1,864,213

At each reporting date, the consolidated entity reviews the difference between the carrying values of motor vehicles
under operating lease and their value in vie to determine whether there is any indication of impairment, Each leased
asset or group of leased assets that generates cash inflows independently is considered a cash-generating unit for
Impairment testing. Income from motor vehicles under operating lease i part of the Fleet segment of the
cansolidated entity,

The value in use is based on estimated future cash flows, including rental income and the expected sales price of the
mator vehicles after the lease term, discounted to present value using the consolidated entity's average debt cost.
Rental income is the lease payments expected during the remaining life of the lease contract, based on the lease
terms. The expected sale price is the contracted residual value of the motor vehicles, adjusted by the Resale Value
Index forecast, which estimates future market value considering factors like market conditions and vehicke
depreciatbon.

An impairment koss of 58,850,000 (2023: 58,750,000) is recognised as at balance sheet date,

Motor wehicles under operating leases are lease agreements with individuals and businesses, in which the terms of the
lease agreement do not substantially transfer the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the lessee.

Moter vehicles under operating lease is inclusive of the carrying value of vehicles which ceased to be rented and are
held for sale which amounted to 528,015,000 as at 31 March 2024 (2023: 516,714,000) for the consolidated entity and
company.

Assats held under operating leases are depreciated on a systematic basis over the term of the lease to its estimated
residual value, Depreciation expense is included within financing expense and similar charges,
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LENDING (continued)

9. Impairment of financing assets

Consalidated Cormpany

2024 2023 oza 2023

s'000 S'000 5000 £'000
[a) Provision for credit impairment of loans and
recelvables
Opening balance 138,767 158,150 135,546 151,250
Increasefdecrease] in impairmaent loss provision 21,400 (20,487 31,400 {25, 704 |
dmlﬂ‘ balance 160,167 138,77 145,946 125,596
[b] Prowision for Guaranteed Fulure Value
Dpening balance 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200
Decrease in Impairment loss provision 11,500) - (1.500) -
Clasing balance T00 2,200 To0 2,200
[£] Credit impairment loss
Bad debits written ofi* 78,058 55,412 73,015 56,403
Recovery of bad debts written off [24,027) [23,289] |22,901) (23.025]
Increasef{decrease] in impalrment loss provision 19,500 [20,483) 19,500 [35,704)
Tatal impairment lass 73,931 15,640 7oA 7,674

*Bad debrs written off it reflected in chaonges in loss
milawaonce.

The contractual amount cutstanding on financial assets that were written off during the year ended 31 March 2024 and
that are still subject to enforcement activity was 570,065,000 (2023: 551,518,000) for the consolidated entity and
S65,825,000 [2023; 547,502 000) by the campany,

The loss allowance recognised in the period is iImpacted by a variety of factors, as described below:

#  Transfers between Stage 1 and Stages 2 or 3 due to financial instruments experiencing significant increases (ar
decreases) of credit risk or becoming credit impaired in the period, and the consequent “step up™ (or "step down™)
between 12 month and lifetime expected credit losses ("ECL");

*  Additional allowances for new financial instruments recognised during the period, as well as releases for financial
Instruments derecognised during the period;

* Impact on the measurement of ECL due to changes in probability of default, exposure at default and loss given
detault during the penoad, snsing from regular refreshing of inputs to models;

Discounts unwind within ECL due to the passage of time, as ECL s measured on a present value basis; and
Fimancial assets derecognised during the period and write-offs of allowances related to assets that were written off
during the period,

Retall, wholesale and fleet receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery of debt.
Indicatars that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery incude, but are not limited to, the following:

Failure of the debtor to engage with or enter a repayment plan with the consolidated entity; or

The debtor has been placed under lauidation; ar

The debtor has entered bankruptey proceedings, and the consolidated entity determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flaw ta repay the amounts Subject to write-
offs.

Further infarmation on the consolidated entity’s financial risk management framework and credit risk can be found in
note 20,
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LENDING (continued)

9. Impairment of financing assets (continued)

The following tables explain the changes in the less allowance between the beginning and the end of the annual period
due to these factor.

Goneral approach (Retail and Wholesale)

Lifetirme
12-manth ECL nat E&':'::I:' S
Consolidated ECL crodit: impaired
Impalred
5000 £'000 5000 5000
Opening balance at 1 Apeil 2022 50,260 31,696 11,443 133,399
Changes due to fimanciol assets recognised in the opening baiance:
= Transfers between stages T.763 (4.688| |3,075) .
- Rermeasurement |5, 280} 10,416 2,389 36,525
Cioning ECL of new financis assels originated 32,8531 6,048 3,461 42,362
Financial assets derecagnised during the period other than write-olfs | 18,722} (9,530| |2,713) | 26,565
Write-affs - [57.098) {57.098)
Bolance ot 31 March 2023 69,874 33,942 14,407 118,223
Changes due to financial assets recognised in the opening balance:
- Transfers between stages 3.882 [#.E8E8| [1,154) -
« Remeasuremaent |29,368) 74978 79,247 58,057
Closing ECL of new financial assets originated 40,803 1,742 5118 53.763
Financial assets desecognised during the periad ather than write-offs {9,178} [5.204| |1,448) |15.830)
Writis-aifs - (77,5000 {77.590)
Balance at 31 March 2024 76,212 a1,771 18,540 136,623
General approach |(Retail and Wholesale)
Liftime
i menth sl Ectﬂ:ﬂ: Tatal
Company ECL credit- impaired
impaired
5'000 5000 5000 5'000
Opening balamee a1 1 April 2032 81,900 31,905 11,504 125,399
Changes due to financiel assets recognised in the apening balance:
- Transfers between stages ] (4823 (29521 -
» Rermeasurerment [43,518) 7913 58,537 22932
Clgsing ECL of new financial assets originated i8,019 5,205 3,270 36,454
Financial assets devecognised during the period other than write-offs [13,765) [5.328 {2.641) [¥5,734]
Write-affs - |54,089) (54,089)
Balance at 31 March 2023 60411 30962 13,629 105002
Changes due to financiol ossets recognised in the opening balance;
= Trandfers between stages 3,252 [2,230) {1.022) -
- Remeasurement [24,813) 74651 73,986 56,824
Clgsing ECL of new financial assets originated 37,095 5,991 4,743 43,329
Financial assets devecognised during the period other than write-offs 18,326) [4.551] {1.429) (14,706]
Write-offs . . [72.547) [72,547]
Balanee at 31 March 2024 67,519 18,421 17,360 123,402
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LENDING (continued)

9. Impairment of financing assets (continued)

Simplified approach (Fleet]
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
Consolidated and Company noit credit- eradit- Tatal
impaired impaired

$'000 5000 $'000
Opening balance at 1 April 2032 16,2121 1439 17,651
Changes due to financlel ossets necognised in the opening balance:
= Transfers between stages g40 [840) .
- Remeasuremaent [50,681) 851 (49,830]
Closing ECL of new financial assets originated 11,463 147 11,610
Financial assets derecognized during the period other Uhen write-offs 31,975 1,442 33,417
Write-offs - [2.314) 2,314
Balance at 31 March 2023 19,809 735 20,544
Changes due to financiel assets recognised in the opening balance:
= Transfers between stages ar a7 -
- Remeasuramant |31,029) 269 (39, 760]
Chming ECL of new financie assels originated 12,554 2E1 12 &35
Financial assets derecognised during the periad other than write-olfs 0,782 611 21,393
Write-affs - [46E] {4648
Balance at 31 March 2024 12,103 1,341 13,544

Reconciliation of the gross carrying amaunt of receivables for which provision is made are as below:

Retall and Wholesale receivables
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
i 1rmettt  moteredit- eredit- Total
Concy impaired impaired
57000 5'000 5000 5000
Griads carrying amaunt at 1 April 2022 17,721,146 554,240 67,310 18,242 606
Changes due to financel assets recognised in the opening balarce:
- Tranalers between stages [191.E71) 170,669 21,202 -
= Change in balanoe (2.398,975) 1116,151) 23,831 14,591,493
Closimg ECL of new financial assets originated 6,487,363 48,059 9,673 6,545,095
I i i h i h itie=
Ela:rr:m assots derecognised during the period other than write (2,541, B16) 135, 044] (11,3890 (2,688,045
Write-affs s - |stmomy (57008}
Balance at 31 March 2023 19,076,047 521,773 53,529 18,651,349
Changes due to financial assets recognited in the opering balance;
- Tranalers between stages [370,761) 335,205 45 556 -
- Change in balance (1006 GTE) (1149, 4%8) A7 02% | 1,079, 145)
Closting ECL of new financlal asets originated 7,791 406 59,5549 15037 7,866,042
;Ifr::nc-ai assets derecognised during the period other than write- {2,888, 563) 1107,047) 58170 (2,994,577
Write-affs - = |77, 5904 {72.590)
Balance at 31 March 2024 12,608,453 679,982 77644 13,366,079
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LENDING (continued)

9. Impairment of financing assets (continued)

Retall and Wholesale receivables
4 Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
i 1 EcL nat eredit- eredit- Tatal
pany impaired  impaired

57000 5'000 5'000 5000
Groas carrying amaunt akt 1 April 2022 15 467,622 529,976 G918 16,061 516
Changes due to fimanciel assets recognised in the opening balarce:
= Transfors between stages [472,583) 152,997 19,585 .
- Change in balanoe (2,445 244) {114,530 21,674  {2,542,100)
Closing ECL of new financial asets originated 5,608,615 35,140 9,136 5,652,905
;I;:m:iai assels derecognised during the period other than write- 12.392,504) 123,205 (11,1620 (2,527,971
Wite-olfs - - |54,089) {54,089)
Balarce st 31 March 2023 lﬁ,ﬂﬂ_},ﬂl I?H,EITB ﬂ,ﬁ! 155_3&,251
Changes due to financiol assets recognised in the opentng balance:
- Transfers between stages [355,153) 312,555 A2 598 -
» Change in balance {1,314,107) |121,785) 42 08 (1,353 804]
Closing ECL of new financiad assets onginated 6,972,313 54,050 13,717 7,040,090
;I;:maF assens derscognised during the period other than write- (2.648,838) (103,090} 58510 {2.757,779)
Write-offs - - {72,547 (72,547
Bakance at 31 March 2024 18,715,048 612,108 9,067 19,396,221
Fleet receivables

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
Consolidated and Company nat credit- cradit- Total
mpakned impaired

5000 5000 S'000
Grads carfyehg amaunt at 1 Apeil 2022 2,390,304 14,632 2,404 936
Changes due to fimanciel assets recognised in the opening balance:
- Transfers between stages {4,740} 4,740 =
« Change in balanca {2,834, 806) [16,259)  (2.B55,065)
Closing ECL of new financial assets originated 1,271,758 2,022 1,273 820
Financial aisets déerecagnized during the périad other than wiite-offi 1,910,122 10,7495 14930917
Write-aifs - |2,314) [2,314)
Balance at 31 March 2023 2,728,678 13,616 2,742,294
Changes due to financiel assets recognised in the opening balance:
- Transfers between stages {13,518} 13,518 -
« Changse in batance 13,235,538) [16,633)  [3,25L171)
Closing ECL of new financlal asets originated 1,352,777 3,343 1,396,120
Financial assets derecognised during the period other than write-offs 2,108,044 9,467 2,118511
Write-offs b {4GH) [EE-H
Balance at 31 March 2024 2,881,843 22843 3,004,286
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LENDING (continued)

9. Impairment of financing assets (continued)
Significant accounting estimate and judgement

The consolidated entity assesses, on a forward-leoking basis, the ECL associated with its loan and receivable assets
carried at amortised cost and recognises 3 loss allowance for such lesses ot each reporting date, The consalidated entity
uses complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit behaviour [e.g., the
likelihoad of custamers defaulting and resulting losses). Explanation of the inputs, assumptions and estimation
technigues wsed in measuring ECL is further detailed in note 20, A number of significant judgements are alsa required
in applying the accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such as:

determining eriteria for a significant increase in credit risk;
choasing apprapriste models and assumptions for the measurement of ECL; and
establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of portfobo and the
associated ECL.
Measurement of expected aredit loss
The measurement of ECL reflects:
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;
thi time value of mosey; and
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about

past events, current conditions, forecasts of future economic conditions, including the continued Ukraine crisis.

Additionally, turther information on how the consolidated entity manages credit risk can be found in note 20,

FUNDING

In this section, the focus is on debt funding of the consolidated entity. Further information is provided on debt issuance
and credit facilities available to manage liguidity risk.

10. Due to banks and other financial institutions

Consolidated Campany

2024 2023 2024 2023

5000 5000 5'000 5'000
Banks and ether financlal institutions 7911831 7,140,674 2,431,508 2,281,887
Tatal due to banks and other financial institutians 7,911,831 7,140,674 2,431,508 2 281.BRT
Maturity anakysis
Current
Banks and other financlal institutions 3468246 3,112,508 1,249,211 134,595
Nown-current
Banks and ather Hnancial institutions 4443 535 4028166 1,182,287 1,247,292

7,911,831 7,140,674 2,431,508 2,181,887
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FUNDING [continued)
10. Due to banks and other financial institutions (continued)

Included in the consolidated entity "due to banks and other financial institutions” is securitised debt rapresenting the
value of term loans held by external parties in the securitisation trusts, The securitisation trusts have issued interest-
bearing notes to third parties amounted ko 55,420,323 000 as at 31 March 2024 (2023: 54,858,787,000). The company
halds the balance of the securitisation trusts of 51,180,687,000 as at 31 March 2024 [2023: 51,246,394,000). Loans and
receivables amounting to 56,661,010.000 as at 31 March 2024 (2023: $6,105,182,000] are pledged as collateral for the
senior notes under securitisation, Contractual maturities of the securitised debt are 19 October 2028 and 20 March
2029, Rates for these are reset with a moathly variable interest rate. The current average rate is 5,23%

The Interest payabke on the secured notes as at 31 March 2024 amounted to 59,831,000 (2023: 57,130,000) and Is
included in “acorued interest payable”.

11. Bonds and commercial paper

Conzolidated Company

2024 2023 2024 1023

5000 £'000 5'000 S'ond
Commerdal paper 4,757 864 4,560,655 4,757 864 4,566,655
Medium-term notes 16,213,197 12,222,096 16,213,797 12,222,096
Total bonds and commercial paper 20,971,661 16,788,751 20,971,661 16,788,751
Maturity analbysis
Current
Bonds and commaercial paper 9,661,538 7.494,918 9,661,538 7.494,918
Now-current
Bonds and commercial paper 11,310,123 9,293,833 11,310,123 5,193,833

10,471,661 16,788,751 20,971,661 16,784,751

Bonds and commercial paper are Initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently
measured at amoartised eost. Any difference betwesn the proceeds (net of trantaction costs) and the redemption
ameunt is recognised in the income statement over the period of the bonds or commercial paper using the effective
interest method, Interest rates range from 0U06% to 5.86% on these papers and notes,

Tranzaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial liability are included in the initial
recognition of the financial instruments.

Haolders of any outstanding bonds, debentures, notes, other investment securithes and commercial paper summarised
in the tables above have the benefit of Credit Support Agreements governed by lapanese law. These agreements are

between Toyota Motor Corporation ("TARACT) and Toyota Financial Services Corporation (*TFSC") dated 14 July 2000,
and between TFSC and the company dated 7 August 2000,
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FUNDING [continued)
12, Securitisation and transferred assets

In the normal course of business, the consolidated entity enters into transactions by which it transfers financial assets
o securitisation trusts, These transfers do not give rise to derecognition of these financial assets for the consolidated
entity.

Securitisation

Term loans securitsed under the consolidated entity securitisation programs are equitably assigned to bankrupicy
remote securitisation trusts, The company is entfitled to any residual income of the securitisation program after all
payments due to Investors have been met In additon, where derivatives are transacted between the securitisation
trusts and the company, such that the company retains exposure to the variability in cash flows from the transferred
term lkoans, the loans will continue to be recognised on the company's statement of finandial positton. The investors
have full recourse anly ko the term loans segregated into the securitisation trusts.

The consolidated entity and company have obtained no financial guarantes in relation to the securitisation of loans and

recaivables,

Consolidated Campany
2024 2023 2024 2023
S'000 5000 080 $'000
Carrying amaurt of transferred assets 6,661,010 6,105,182 6111446 6,105 182
Carrying amaurt al asociated liabilithes 5480,323 & 858 787 6,111,446 6,105,182
Mot position for carrying amount 1,180,687 1,246,395 - -
Fair value of transferred assets 6,666,912 6,003,550 6,116,861 6,003,550
Fair value of assocated Sabilies 5546504 4905738 6116861 6003550
Net positien for fair value amount 1,120,358 1.097.812 - -
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FUNDING [continued)
13, Credit facilities
Consplidated Company

2024 2023 2024 023

$'000 $'000 $'000 £'000
Amount availabile:
HOBU%, ORISR ISl SO1H Ras pCLOfer 44,189,831 22,250,748 4,180,831 42,350,748
short-term borrowsngs
Bank overdraft 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
Seguritisation
“Senior note 6,670,005 B, 44008 00 .
Mezzanine note 1,463,000 1,693 000 - -
Loan fram seeuritisation trusts® " i 7.583,435 B.133,000
Amibunt utilised:
oty Soupmecisl ppce et A oher 13,529,337 15,159,040 23,529,337 19,158,040
short-term borrowings
Bank overdraft - E
Securitisation
-Sonior note 5 480,373 4,858 787
~Merianne ot 1,180,687 1,246,304 - -
Loan from securitisation trusts - - 5,111, 445 6,105,181
Armount not utilsed:

Bonds, commerciad paper, term loans and other

shart-term borrowings 20,660,484 23,001,708 20,660,484 23,091,708

Bank cverdraft 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
Securitisation

-Senlor note 1,189,677 1,581 215

~Marraning mole 282,313 46,506 - -
Lo@n from securitsation trusts® - - 1,471,990 2027 B8

*Shared facility with subsidiary

Medium-term note, commercial paper programs, term loans and other short-term borrowings

Medium-term notes and commercial paper programs allow the company to issue medium-term notes and commercial
paper in either Australian or overseas markets up bo 2 total of $35,298,107,000 (2023: 534,308 648,000).

The consolidated enfity has access to 53,285,000,000 (2023 52,735,000,000) of uncommitted facilities and nil {2023:
5200,000,000) of committed facilities from wvarious banks. The company also has a 51,539,883,000 (2023:

41,494 £57.000) facility available with Toyota Motor Credit Corporation and a 54,066,831,000 {2023: $3,512 443 000}
committed facility availabie as part of Toyota Group Master Credit Facility as at 31 March 2024,

33

190/344



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

FUNDING [continued)
13, Credit facilities

Crodit support agreements

Holders of debt securities issued by the company may have the benefit of Credit Support Agreements governed by
lapanese law; one between TMC and TFSC dated 14 July 2000, and the other between TFSC and the company dated 7
August 2000 (together, the "Credit Support Agreements”).

Holders of such securities will have the right to claim directly against TFSC and TMC to perform their respective
obligations under the Credit Support Agreements, by making a written claim together with a declaration to the effect
that the holder will have recourse to rights given under the Credit Support Agreemeants. f TFSC and/or TMC receive such
a claim from any halder of such securities, TFSC andfor TMC shall indemnify, without any further action ar formality,
the holder against any loss or damage resulting from the failure of TFSC and/or TMC to perform any of thisir respective
ohbligations under the Credit Support Agreements. The hobder of such securities who made the claim may then enforce
the indemnity directly against TFSC and/or TMC.

in consideration for the Credit Support Agreements, a Credit Support Fee Agreement was entered into between TFSC
and the company as at 30 March 2001, The Credit Support Fee Agreement provides that the company will pay to TFSC
a fee equivalent to @ percentage of the weighted average outstanding amount of the company’s medium-term notes
and commercial paper that have the benafit of the Credit Support Agreemants,

The directors are not aware of any instances of a written claim and dedaration under the terms of the Credit Support
Agreements, in connection with the company's outstanding medivm-term notes and cemmercial paper,

Master credit facility
364-Day Credit Agreement, Three-Year Credit Agreement and Flve-Year Credit Agreement

The master credit facility between the company and other Toyota affiliates was renegotiated in November 2023, in
which a US35.0 billion 364-day syndicated bank credit facility, originally set to expire in November 2023, was renewed
until Movember 2024, The USS5.0 billion threeyear syndicated bank credit facility and the US55.0 biflion five-year
syndicated bank credit facility, originally set to expire in November 2025 and 2027, were renewed until November
2026 and 2028, respectively,

The ability to make drawdowns is subject to covenants and conditions customary in transactions of this nature, including
negative pledge provisions, cross-default provisions and limitations on certain consolidations, mergers, and sales of
assets. These agreements may be used for general corporate purposes, and none was drawn upon as at 31 March 2024,
The company is in compliance with the covenants and conditions of the credit sgreements described above,

Bank overdraft

The bank overdralt is an unsecured 515,000,000 facility as at 31 March 2024 (2023: $15,000,000). Interast (s charged
at prevailing market rates. The bank overdraft is payable on demand and subject to annual review,
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

This section covers the capital structure of the consolidated entity.

14. Contributed equity
Consolidated and Company
2024 2023
$'000 5'000
Contributed equity 130,000 120,000

At 31 March 2024, there were 120,000,000 erdinary shares fully paid.

Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the consolidated entity
in proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held,

On a show of hands, every balder of ardinary shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy is entitled to one vote
and, upan a poll, each share is entitled to one vote,

15. Reserves

Consolidated Company
024 2023 2024 023
5000 £'000 5'000 5'000
Foreign currency translation reserve
Ealance at 1 April 44957 4129
[T :.m:iuril? differences on translation of foreign [2.067) 828
associate entity
Balance at 31 March 2,890 44957

Foreign currency translation reserve

Exchange differences arising on translation of investments accounted for using the equity method is taken to the foreign
currency translation reserve, The reserve is subsequently recognised in the statements of comprehensive income when
the net investment is disposed of.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continue)

16. Retained earnings
Consclidated Company

1024 2073 2024 023

5000 5'000 4’000 5'000
Balance ar 1 April 1,785,754 1,572,356 1692475 1874,316
Profit/[loss] attributable to owners of Toyota

263,225 14 850 184,040 B0, 349

Finance Australia Limited : ' ‘ o
Dividond paid {101 492) {100,452
Balance at 31 March 1,048,973 1,785,754 I.B?E,SI._E 1,692,475
Dividends
Fully franked dividends tatalling nil cents per fully
pald share paid in year ended 31 March 2024 - 101,492 - 101,492
[31 March 2023: B4.57 cents par share) .
Tatal dividends paid - 101,492 - 101,492

Under the income tax consolidation regime, the fmnklng account balance of the company as at 1 April 2003 was
permanently transferred to the head entity of the consolidated tax group. The company ceases to have a Tranking
account during the time it remains a member of the consolidated growp,

The incame tax consolidation rules do permit the company to pay a franked dividend to its shareholder with the head
entity’s franking account bearing a reduction for the franking credit attached to the dividend. Dividends paid during the
year ended 31 March 2023 were fully franked.,

Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period

Since the year end the directors have recommended the payment of a final fully franked divided of 61.98 cents per

fully paid ordinary share (2023: nil cents). The amount of the proposed dividend expected to be paid on or before 30
lune 2024 out of retained earnings as at 31 March 2024, but not recognised as a liability at year end, is 574,382,000,
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK

This section covers the financial instruments hald by the concolidated entity and company Including derivative and non-
derivative financial instruments and financial risk management information,

17. Derivative financial instruments

Consalidated Campary
2024 023 1024 2023
5'000 5000 5000 5'000

Assols

Interest rate swap contracts 43,132 356,163 213,132 EEFHIEFS

Crass currency swap contracts 172,068 45,781 172,068 46,781

Forward foreign exchange contracts 56,706 113,899 56, 706 113,899

Derivative financial Instrumant assets 451,906 516,843 451,506 492,712

Less: Bilateral credit valuation adjustments 13,783) 11.529) {3.783) 11529

Total derivarive financial instrument assets - measuned at fair 448,123 515,314 ass,123 491,183

value

Liabilities

Intorost rate swap contracts 316 191 849 150,068 101,549

Cross currency swap contracts 330,200 511,944 330,200 511,944

Forward fuﬁigﬂ- exchange cantracts 7.089 10,054 7,089 10,054

Taotal derivaties finandal instrument llabllities - moasured at 418,605 523,947 487,357 B23.947

fair vatue

Current derivative financlal instruments

Derivative financiad ajsets - Curront 211,893 204,453 211,893 04,452

Derivative financial liabifties - Cusrent 111,566 25,616 111,566 25,616

Non-current derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial assets - Nan-current 236,230 310,821 236,230 286,691

Drerivative financial liabilities - Mon-current 303,039 598,331 AT5. 79 598,331

Measurement

The consolidated entity uses derivatives not designated in a qualifying hedging relationships, to manage its exposure to
foreign currency and interest rate risks. Derivative financial assets and liabilities are initally recognised at falr value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Consequently, changes in the fair valee of derivatives are recognised immediately in the statements
of comprehensive income as “interest expense and similar charges”. This may, to the extent that they are not offset by
the translation of the items economically hedged, introduce volatility in the consclidated entity’s statements of
comprehensive Income and produce anomalous results.

Fair value estimation
The fair value of the financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques. The fair value of interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps is calculated as

the present valee of the estimated future cash flows, The fair value of foreign exchange contracts is determined using
the forward exchange rates at the end of the reperting period.

av
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AMD RISK (continued)

17. Derivative financial instruments (continued)
The fallowing market inputs and methads are wsed to determine fair values of financial instraments;

Market mid rates, being the average of bid and ask prices, for interest and foreign exchange rates;
Market rates are captured at Tokyo close on the last business day of the preceding month;
Cash flows for intorest rate and cross currency swaps are discounted at risk free rates known as overnight index
SWap rates;
#  For variable interest rate instruments, future interest rate sets are estimated from interest rate swap curve of the
same currency and interest rate period; and
Forward revaluation approach ls used for foreign exchange contracts, wheneby:
= forward exchange rates are determined by combining spot exchange rates and forward points; and
- forward exchange rates are then used to convert foreign currency cash flows to the reporting currency to
determine the value on settlement date, without discounting back to the valuation date,

Bilateral credit valuation adjustments

The credit valuation adjustment is an adjustment to the fair value of the derivative instruments to account for the
countarparty credit risk, It is the credit spreads of both the consolidated entity and the counterparty, together with
market factors, that drive the bilateral credit valuation adjustments,

Accounting estimates

The consolidated entity applies accounting estimates and assumptions to make reasonable judgements on carrying
amounts of assets and liabilites. One area that imwalves some level of estimates or complexity of assumptions is
derivative financial instruments.

Falr value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair values, by valuanon method. The different levels are
defined as follows:

Level 1: guoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for Identical assets or liabilites;

Level 20 inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are abservable for the asset or lability, either
directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly [i.e., derived from prices); and

Level 3: inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on observable market data.

The consolidated entity’s financial instruments that are measured and recognised at fair value are derivative assets and
derivative liabilities used for hedging (iLe., interest rite swaps, oross currency swaps and forward exchange contracts).
While these instruments are used for economic hedging, the consolidated entity does not apply hedge accounting.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AMD RISK (continued)

17. Derivative financial instruments [continued)

Consolidated Lewel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
31 March 2024 5000 5000 5000 5000
Derivative financial assets through statements of

comprehensive income

Derivatives used for economic hedging

Foreign exchange contracts - 56,706 - 56,706
Interest rate swap contracts - 233,112 E 113,132
Cross currency swap confracts 172 068 . 172 068
Less: Bilateral credit valuation adjustments - [3.783) - [3.783)
Total Hnencial xssets = 448,133 F 448,113

Derivative financial liabilites throwgh statemants of
comprehensive Income
Derivatives used for ecomomic hedging

Foreign eachange contracts . 1088 ’ 7089
INLEresl FALe SWap CONLFBETS - 77,316 - 77316
Cross currency swap contracts - 330,200 - 330200
Total financial Habilities 414,605 414,605
Company Lewed 1 Level 2 Lewel 3 Total
311 Mareh 2024 5000 5000 5000 5000

Derivative financial assets through statements of
camprehensive income
Derivatives used for economic hedging

Foreign exchange contracts - 56,706 - 56,706
Intenest rabe swap contracts 223,132 - 223,132
Cross currency swap contracts - 172,068 - 172,068
Le=i: Bilateral credit valuation adjustments - 13, TE3) - {3, TEE)
Total finencial aisets - 48,113 - 448,123

Derivative financial llabllites through statements of
comprehensive income
Derivatives used for economic hedging

Foresgn exchange contracts - T.OED - 7089

Intenest rate swap contracts . 150,068 . 150,068

Cross Crrency Swap (ontracts - 330,200 - 330,200

Total financial Kabilites = 487,357 - a487.357
39
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AMD RISK (continued)

17. Derivative financial instruments [continued)

Consolidated Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
31 March 2023 £'000 £'000 S'000 4’000

Derivative financial assets through statements of
oomprehensive income

Derivatives used for economic hedgng

Foreign eachange contracts - 113,E99 - 113 890
IAterest Fati Swap contracis . 356,163 B 356,163
Cross currency swap contracts » 46,781 E 44,781
Less: Bilaterad credit valuatian adjustments - {1.529] = [1,529)
Total financial assets - 515,314 . 515,314

Derivative Financial liabilities through statements of
comprehensive income

Derivatives wied fof econtmic hedgng

Foreigm eachangs contracts . 10,054 . 10,054

IRt Enest Fabi Swiap contracts + 101,249 " 101,949

Cross currency swap (ontracts * 311,344 - 511,944
Total finencial Kabilities - 623,947 - 623,947
Company Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
31 March 2023 §7000 5000 57000 5000

Derivative financial aasets through statements of
womprehensive income
Derivatives used for economic hedging

Foreign eachange contracts . 113 890 . 113 890
IAtErest rabi Swap cantracts - 332,032 - 332,032
Cross currency Swip (ontracts - 46,781 . 46,781
Less: Bilateral credit valuation adjustments - (1.519) - {1.529)
Total financial assets . 491,183 . 491,183

Derivative Anancial labilities through statements of
comprehensive Income
Derivatives used for econopmic hrdging

Foreign exchange contracts . 10,054 : 10,054

Imtenest rate swisp contracts . 101 549 . 101949

Cross currency swap contracts - 5115944 . H1L.944

Total financial Kabilites - 623,947 . 613,947
40
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AMD RISK (continued)

18. Non-derivative financial instruments
Fair value measurements

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for
disclosure purposes. Estimated discounted cash flows are used to determine fair value for financial instruments.

The table below summarises the carrying amounts and the fair values of those financial assets and liabilities not
presented on the statements of financlal positien at fair value.

Consolidated 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
:::::: Failr walue Ea$ Fair value
5'000 5'000 5'000 5000
Finandial assets
Loans and receiables 26, 209,498 26,191,855 22252676 23,845,099
26209495 26191855 22250676 23845099
Finantial lobilities
Due to banks and other financial institutions 7,911,831 B,020,666 7,140,674 7,222.893
Porids and commescial paper 20,071,661 21,028,751 16,788,751 16,573,004
18,883,492 19,045,417 13,929.425 23,795,987
Company 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
?m";i:: Fair value :;:':: Fair value
5'000 £'000 £'000 5000
Finansial assets
Loans and receiables 42,452,801 11,205,595 159,194,809 20,557,650
12,252,861 21,205,595 19,194,809 20,557,656
Financial Habilirles
[ue to banks and ather fnancial institutions 2:431,508 2474122 1,281,887 2,317,155
Bgnids and commercial papser 20,597,861 21,028,751 16,788,751 16,573,084

23,803,069 23502873 19,070,638 18,890,249

The carrying amounts of cash and cash eguivalents, trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their
fair values due to their short-term nature. The fair value of the loans and receivables is estimated at portfolio level by
discounting the contractual cash flows using current lending rates. The fair value of financial liabilities is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the consolidated
entity for similar financial instruments. All the non-derivative financial assets and habilites are level 2 as per the
waluation hierarchy, with the exception of securitised debt under “due to banks and other financial institutions” and
loans and receivables which is dassified as level 3.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AMD RISK (continued)

19, Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the statements of financial position where the
consolidated entity currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the lability simultaneously, The consolidated entity has also entered
into arrangements that does not meet the criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to be set off in
certain circumstances, such as ratings downgrade or event of default,

The following table presents the recognised financial instrumments that are offset, or subject to enforceable master
netting arrangerments but not offset, as at 31 March 2024, The column ‘net amount” shows the impact on the staternents
of financial pasition if set-off rights were exercisad.

Effects of offsetting on the statement of

Consolidated Related amounts not offiet

fitungls] posttion
Gross
amounts Amounts
setoffin  presented in ""'"I“"""
Gross amounts. e £ miﬂ:: . MNet amount
statement  statement of collateral
of  financlal i
finamcial position il
pasitian
£'000 £7000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
2024
Financial assets
Cash and eash equivalents (b} 3,070,045 : 3,070,045 . - 3070045
Lisand and receksables 26,209,458 - 26,209,498 - - G, 205,498
Derivative financial instruments (o] 448,123 . 448,123 (217,787 [141.800) 88.536
Dthar ss3814 (a] 198,159 {63,973) 134,186 - |50, 100) B4,086
Total 19,915,815 [63,973| 19,861,852 (217.787) 191,900} 19,452,165
Financial Habiithes
Due to banks and other financial
— 7.911,831 : 71181 . : 7911831
Derivative financial instruments (o) 414,605 - 414,605 [217.787) |50, 1000 146,718
Other kabilites (a) 720,397 {63,973 656424 - [141,800) 514,624
Tatal 9,046,833 (63,973| 8,982,860 (217,787) (191,900} 8,573,173
42
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19, Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Etfects of offsetting on the statement of

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

Company financial Bosit Raelated amounts mok affset
Gross amounts Amounis Amoanis
& setoffinthe  presented in subject to
it statement of  the statement master u:::*:; Mt
amaur financial  of financial netting 0 Ao
position  positdan AFFANEEMENts
2024 4'000 $'000 5000 5'000 5'000 5000
Finanial assets
Cash and cash equivalens (b} 3,070,045 3070045 - 3,070,045
Loanrs and receksables 22 152 BGl 22,252 851 - 22152861
Derivative financis instruments (8] 448 123 A48 123 {217,787 {141,B00] HE 536
Dther sss81s [a) 5,324,304 (47.033) 52773861 (50, 100) 5,227 261
Total 31,085,423 (47,033) 31,048,330 (217,787) (191,%00) 30,638,703
Finan<ial Habilities
Due to banks and other financlal
instituians () 2,431,508 . 2,431,508 . = 2,431,508
Derivative financial instrumaents [b) 487,357 . 487,357 {217,787) (50,16 219,470
Crthor Babilities {a) B0E, 852 {47.033) B4 A {141, 800) 507,039
Total 3,614,727 [47.033] 3,567,604 {217,787] {190,900) 3,158,007
Effects of offsetting on the staterment of
Consolidated i | pasitian Related amounts not oftset
Gross amounts Amounts Amounts
& set off in the presented in subject to Cash
'“:::: staterment of tha statement mastes collateral Met armount
financial of financial netting
pasition position arrangements
2023 57000 5000 5000 5'000 S'000 57000
Finantial assets
Cash and cash equivalents (b} 2,104,066 2,104,066 2,104,066
Laans and recedsables 12250676 22,352 676 . - 22,252 676
Derivative financiad instruments (o) 515,314 . 515,314 [1a7.808) (1627000 164,806
Other sssets (a) 163,882 {35,770 128,112 . [69,500] 58,612
Taotal 25,035 9%8 (35,770 15,000,168 [1E7,B08)  (232,200) 24,580,160
Finantial Habilities
Due to banks and ather fnancial
inetitutions {5) 7,140,674 7,140,674 7,140,674
Derivative financial instrumaents (o) BE3,947 613,947 (L8T.808) (65, 500) 366,635
Dtl‘ml‘!ahllilil.-sﬂ:ﬂ AR4 98 {35,770} 449 212 - {182 7D0) 2_5&511
Total 8,240,603 (35,770} 8,213,833 [187.808)  (232,20:) 7,793,825
43
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AMD RISK (continued)

19, Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Efects of offsetting on the staterment of

Company fin .F .I.?ﬂ‘ﬂ'{'” Related amounts not offset
Gross amounts Amounts Amounts
Gross set-off in the presented in subject to Cash
. staternentof  the statement master collateral Met amownt
finan<ial of financial natting
pasition position arrangements
5000 5'00d 5000 5'000 5'000 57000
023
Finan<ial assets
Cash and cash equivalenss (b} 2,104 066 - 2,104 066 - - 2,104 066
Loans and recebsables 19,194 809 - 19,194 BOD - - 19,194 _80%
Derivative financial imstruments (o) 491,183 - 491,153 (187.808) (1627000 140,675
Dther assets (a) 4,491,536 [28.445] 4.463,091 = [69,500] 4,393,591
Total 26,281,594 [28,445) 16,253,149 (187,808}  (232,200)  25.833,141
Finan<ial Nabilides
Due to banks and ather financial
Institutions {b) 2,281 BR7 = 2,281,887 - - 2,281 887
Derivative financiad instruments (o) BX3,047 . 623,847 {187,804) (B9, 500] 366,635
Other Gabilities (a) ARYBSE [ X4,445] 454 213 - {1E2 700 291,513
Tatal 3388492 [28,845]) 3,360,047 [187.808)  (232,200) 2,540,039
{a) Offsetting arrangements
Other assets and liabilites

On the wholesale dealer statements, monthly financing and other receivables from dealerships are offset against
monthly commissions and ather payables to dealerships, The amounts are settled and presented net in the statements
of financial position.

() Master netting arrangements and set-off arrangements - not currently enforcealile.

Derivative transactions with counterparties are covered by the International Swaps and Derivatives Association
agreements, whereas term loans, term deposits and cash deposits are covered by standard agreemenis, Under the
terms of these arrangements, upon an event of default, a ratings downgrade to a certain level or an early terminakion
event, the net amount owing te, or receivable from, a counterparty in the same currency will be taken as due and the
arrangement will be terminated. Since no such event subsists and the consolidated entity has no other legally
enfarceable right of set-off, these amounts have not been set off in the statements of financlal position but have been
presented separately in the table above, Collateral may be posted daily in respect of cortain derivatives transacted with
any counterparty covered by a credit support annex for variation margin agreements.

20, Financial risk management

The consolidated ontity's activities expose it to a variety of inancial risks, such as market risk {including currency risk
and Interest rate risk), aredit risk, Bquidity risk and residual value risk. The consolidated entity’s overall risk management
progeam focuses on the unpredictability of the financial markets and used wehicle markets and seeks 1o manage
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the consolidated entity.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AMD RISK (continued)

20. Financial risk management [continued)

The cansclidated entity does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments,
fior speculative purposes. Derivative financial Instruments are used to manage the consolidated entity’s exposure to
currency risk and interest rate risk, The residual value risk of the consolidated entity arises mainly from receivables
under operating lease and loans with guaranteed future valwe.

Risk management is overseen by various committees and departments based on charters approved by the senior
executive team ("SET™) in accordance with the Enterprise Risk Management framework. These include:

Enterprise Risk Management Committes

The Enterprise Risk Management Committee’s purpose Is to drive an appropriate risk culture by defining and overseeing
the risk appetite for key enterprise risks determined and set by the Board of Directors.

Asset and Liability Committee

The Asset and Liability Committee’s purpose is to:

= Provide an oversight of senlor management’s identification of materal financial risks facing the Company and to
seet the internal Treasury Funds Transfer Price (“TFTP); and,

= Approve policies and provide strategic directions regarding the Company's balance sheet management, including
Interest Rate, Liguidity and Counterparty Risks.

Pricing Committee

The Pricing Committes's purpose i to:

#  Provide an oversight 1o ensure the Company is executing Pricing Strategy in line with the Governance Framewaorks;
and,

*  Gg1the benchmark prices for the Company's products.

Credit Risk Committees

The credit risk committees comprise of the Retail Credit Committee and the Commercial Credit Risk Committee,

The Retail Credit Committes’'s purpese is o manage retail credit risk {including application fraud) in line with the risk
appetite sat by the Board of Directors. The Retail Credit Committee provides regular and timely updates to the SET.

The Commercial Credit Risk Committee's purpose is to manage wholesale and commerncial credit risk as they relate to
dealer and Neet products.

Both the Retail Credit Committee and Commercial Credit Risk Committee play a key role in setting and fostering the
eredit risk culture of the contolidated entity and &5 a key component of the Enterprise Risk Management framework.

Asset Risk Committee

The Asset Risk Committes's purpose is to:

*  act independently to et operating lease residual values at no greater than the forecast break-even position 1o
ensure the consolidated entity is protected from future residual value losses;

s actindependently to set guaranteed future values a1 no greater than the forecast break-cven position to ensure

the consolidated entity is protected from future guaranteed future value losses; and
#  provide regular and timely updates to the SET.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AMD RISK (continued)

20. Financial risk management [continued)

Audit Committes

The Audit Committee’s purpose is 1o assist the Board of Directors and management in fullilling its oversight
responsibilities for the integrity of the finzncial statements, systems of internal contral, effectiveness, and efficiency of
audit petivities, as well a5 ensuring an open and ongoing communication between the committes, board, management,
internal audit and external awdit,

Complisnce Committes

The Compliance Committes's purpose is to uphold the brand, reputation, and values of the consolidated entity by
ensuring the business and its employees comply with all applicable laws, codes, regulations and license requirements.,
The Compliance Committee also provides regular and timely updates to the Board of Directors and 5ET.

Internal Audit

Internal Audit provides independent, objective assurance and consulting services to the Board of Directors and the Audit
Committes,

The purpose of internal audit Is to:

*  assist the consolidated entity in accomplishing its objectives by bringing a systematic and disciplined approach 1o
evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control, and governance processes;
carries oul reviews based on the approved plan and reports its activities to the Audit Committes; and
enhance and protect the organisational value by providing risk-based and objective assurance, advice, and insight.

{a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The consofidated entity operates in internathonal capital markets to obtain debt funding to support its earning assets,
Transactions may be denominated in foreign currencles, expesing the consolidated entity to forelgn exchange risk
arising from various currency exposures,

Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the consolidated
entity’s functional currency and net Investrments in foreign operations. The risk s measured using debt maturity analysks.

Management has set up a policy requiring the consolidated entity to manage its foreign exchange risk against its
functional currency. The consolidated entity is required Lo economically hedge 100% of its foreign exchange risk at the
time of debt issuances. Derivative financial instruments are entered into by the consolidated entity to hedge its
exposure to foreign currency risk, Including:

- Farward exchange contracts to hedge the foreign currency risk arsing on the lssee of commercial paper in foreign
currencies and affiliated entity loan; and

= Cross currency Swaps to manage the foreign currency and interest rate risk associated with foreign currency
denominated medium-term notes, bank loans and commercial paper,

The consolidated entity’s net exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period ended 31 March 2024
is immaterial There has been no change in this position when compared 1o the reporting period ended 31 March 2023,
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AMD RISK (continued)

20. Financial risk management [continued)
{ii} Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the futwre cash flows of a financial instrument will flucteate due
to changes in market interest rates. The consolidated entity is exposed to the effects of fluctvations in the prevailing
levels of market interest rates, as it borrows and lend funds at both floating and fixed interest rates.

Derivative financial instruments are entered into by the consolidated entity to economically hedge its exposure to cash
Moy and Tair value imterest rate risk, including:

#  Figed-to-floating interest rate swaps to manage the interest rate risk generated by the consolidated entity's
earning assets, Such interest rate swaps have the ecanomic effect of converting loans and receivables from fixed
Interest rate to Moating interest rate;

e Fived-to-floating interest rate swaps to manage the interest rate risk generated by the consolidated entity's
functional currency denominated fixed rate medium-term notes and bank oans, Such interest rate swaps have the
economic effect of converting borrewings from fixed interest rate to floating interest rate; and

e Cross cufrency swaps 1o manage the loreign cuirency and interest rate risk associated with foreign currency
denominated medium-term nobes, commercial paper, and bank loans. Such cross-currency swaps have the
economic eflect of converting borrowings from forelgn denaminated fixed or floating rates to functional currency
floating rates.

Under the interest rate swaps, the consolidated entity agrees with other parties (o exchange, at specified intervals, the
difference between fixed contract rates and floating rate interest amounts calculated by reference to the agreed
notional principal ameunts, Under the cross-currency swaps, the consolidated entity agrees with ather parties ta
exchange, at specified intervals, fereign currancy principal and fixed {or flgating) rate interest amounts, and functional
currency principal and Moating rate interest amounts calculated with reference to the agreed functional currency
principal amaount,

The consolidated entity's policy is to maintain most of its debt exposure in its functional currency at floating rate, using
interest rate Swaps oF Cross currency Swaps to achieve this when necessary.

The following table details the consolidated entity’s exposure to interest rate risk as at the end of the reporting period.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AMD RISK (continued)

20. Financial risk management (continued)

Variable Fixed interest  Mon-interest

Cohlciduen 2024 interest rate rate bearing Tetad
5000 5'000 57000 £'00a
Operating lease recehables® . 2,251,206 . 2,251,106

Financial assets

Cash and liquid assets 3,070,045 - 3,070,045
Loans and recedables® 7,129,675 19,240,650 - 16,370,365
Interost rate swaps 16,738,500 | 16,738 5000

Oither a5t 50,100 = 84,086 134,186
Total financial assets 26,588, 320 4,753,396 84,086 31835808
Financial Habilities

Barks and other financial institutions 7,911,831 - - 7.911,E31
Commerdal papers 4,757 864 - - 4,757 Bad
Medium-term rotes 1,659,801 14,553,998 16,213,797
Cross currency swaps 11,336,502 |12,336,503) .
Interest rate wipd 3,026,461 {3.026,461) . .
Orhier Fabilities 141 BOD - 514,624 E56,424
Lease habilines - 46,479 - 46,479
Total financial Kabilites 28,834,259 237,512 514,624 29,586,395
Net financial assets/ {liabilites) | 1,B45,9390] 4,515,884 [#30,53E) 2,239,407

*Balance excludes provision fior impairment boss,
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AMD RISK (continued)

20. Financial risk management (continued)

Variable  Fived Interest Non-interest

i interest rate rate bearing T
57000 £'000 £'000 S'000
Operating lease recehrables® - 2,251 206 - 21,251, 06
Financial assets
Cash and liquid assets 3,000,045 E - 3,070,045
Loans and recedrables® 5,637,045 15,763,458 - 22,400,507
Interesd rate swaps 16,738 500 (L6, TEE S00) - -
Other asse1s** 1,542,726 1,735 4E6 1,599,149 5277361
Total financial assets 26,988 320 4,011,650 J..B'BQ.I_-l_!E 329499.119
Finantial Mabilities
Barks and other Hnancial institutions 2,431,508 - - 2,431,508
Related party liabilities = socuritisation trusts and subsidiary - 6,661,010 - 5,661,010
Commerdal papers 4,757,864 . - 4,757 B6a
Medium-term notes 1,659,801 14,553 9096 - 16,213,797
Cross currency swaps 11,336,502 [11,336.502| = =
Imterast rate swaps 8,508,754 (8,506, Y84| -
Other kabilines 141,500 - ST 0239 b, ELE
Lease Rabilities - 46,479 - 46,473
Tatal financial Habilitias 28,834.350 1418199 507,029 30,755,487
Net financlal assets/ {llabilides) 11,845,935 2,593,451 1,492,120 2,239,632

*Balance excludes provision for impatrment boss.

* *Oiher asset for the company indudes
®  imvestment in securitisation trusts amownting to 51, 180, 6E8 000 a4 at 31 March 2024 (2023:; 51,246,395 000)
*  intercomgany advance to subsidiary of 53,962, 539,000 a4 at 31 March 2024 {2023: $3,088,588,000)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AMD RISK (continued)

20, Financial risk management [continued)

Variable Fixed interest  Non-nterest

Consolidated 2023 M et i biirka Tatal
5000 5'000 5000 5'000
Dperating lease receiables® * 1. B72.%63 - 1.B72.9653
Financial assets
Cash and figuid assets 2,104 066 . 2,104,066
Livaired Sl Frédebrabled® 5,130,243 17,263,400 - 22,393 543
INtenest rate swaps 15,934,500  [15.934,500) - -
Other assets 63,500 - 54,612 128112
Total inencial xssets 23,238,309 3201861 58,612 216,498,784
Finandial Habilities
Banks and ather financial institutions 7,140,674 . . 1140674
Commerdal papers 4 TEG 655 . 4 GGE GB5S
Medium-term potes 1,224,362 10,997,734 - 12,223 096
Cross Currency swaps 8,812,123 {8.B12,123) B
Imterast rate swagps 25m 411 {2572 411) . =
Cther Babilities 162,700 . 286,512 443,212
Leade liakilities - 29,034 . 29,034
Tatal financial Eabilities 24,478,925 [357.766) 285,512 24,407,671
et financial assets/(llabilites) 11,240,616 3,550,629 (221,900} 2081,113
*Ralance excludes provisien for impairment loss,
Company 2023 1“1!::“.:: Fizid [ﬂlﬁl::: Hnn-]l::::: Total
A'000 5'000 57000 000
Operating lease recehvable® . 1,872,963 - 1,872,953
Finantial assets
Cash and liguid assets 2,104, 066 * * 2,104, 066
Loans and recealsles® A004,875 15,317,680 - 19,322,555
Imterest rate wwagd 15,934 500 (15,934, 500) - -
Diher assets 1,194,868 1,735,486 1,532,737 #,463,091
Total financial assets 3,238,309 2,991,629 1,532,737 27,762,675
Financial abillities
Barks and other financlal institutions 1,281,887 - 2,251,887
Related party liabilities - securitisation trusts and subsidiary . 6,105,182 : 6,105,182
Commarcial pagers 4,566,655 . - 4,566,655
Madium-term notes 1,234,362 10,997,734 - 12,122,006
Crross currancy swaps BB11,123 (8,812,123) .
Interast rate swaps 7.431,158 (7,431,158) : E
Orther Babilities 162,700 - 191,513 454,213
Lease Habilities - 25,034 : 29,034
Tatal financial Habllities 24,078,925 88,629 291,513 25,650,067
Net inancial assets/ labiltes) (LMDEE) 2103000 1241224 2303608

*Ralance excludes provisien for impakrment bass,
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AMD RISK (continued)

20, Financial risk management [continued)
{iiii} Interest rate benchmark reform

The reform of interest rate benchmarks has meant that interbank offered rages, such as the London Interbank Ofered
Rate (“LIBOR"], has transitioned 1o maore observable, risk-free alternative reference rates. On 5 March 2021, the UK
regulator, the Financial Conduct Authority announced LIBOR cessation dates. The cessation date for all tenars of British
pound sterfing, curo, Swiss franc, lapanese yen, and 1-weck and 2-month tenors for United States dollar UBOR was 31
Decermber 2021, The cessation date for the remaining United States dollar LIBOR benchmarks was 30 June 2023,

The consolidated enfity has not been exposed to the reform as the consolidated entity does not hold any floating rate
forgign currency debt, nor hold any cross-currency swaps, which reference LIBOR benchmark rates a5 of 21 March 2024,

However, the consalidated entity has changed its valuation for derivatives, from LBOR to risk free rate discounting, to
reflect current market practices as benchmark reform has affected the availability of certain reference interest rate
curves. For debt instruments, TFA still uses synthetic Libor curves to discount cashflows.

{iv) Sensitivity
The consolidated entity's financial results are exposed to interest rate movements in the market. Shown below is the

potential impact increase of 1% in Interest rate on the consolidated entity’s pre-tax profits for the next twelve months.
A decrease of 1% i interest rate has an opposite mpact of the same amount, subject 1o interest rate flaor.

Consolidated Company
2024 2023 024 2023
$'000 $'000 5'000 $'000
[Decreasel/increase in pre-tax profits (LETT) [601] 19,691 16957

{b) Credit risk

The consolidated entity takes on exposure to credit risk, which i the risk that counterparty will cause a financial loss for
the consolidated entity by failing to discharge an obligation, Credit exposures arise principally from lending activities for
financing assets, funding activities such as cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and financial institutions, and
derivative financial instruments.

{i} Inputs, assumptions, and estimation technigues used for ECL models

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default has increased significantly since initial recognition, the consolidated entity
considers both quantitative and qualitative Information, and analysis based on the consolidated entity's historical
experience and expert credit risk assessment, including forward-looking information,

Re=tail facibities mainly use the number of days past due to determine significant increase in credit risk, The consolidated
entity considers that significant increase in oredit risk occurs when an asset is equal and more than 30 days past due,

Additional criterla are also considered, such as changes in intrinséc risk, non-cured from default, and non-cured from
hardship assist.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AMD RISK (continued)

20. Financial risk management (continued)

For non-retail facilities, internally derived credit ratings have been identified as representing the best available
determinant of credit risk. For wholesale facilities, the consolidated entity has adopted the Global Master Grading
Model, which was initially developed by Toyota Financial Services Corporation and calibrated 1o the Australian market,
The consolidated entity has adopted an Interal Grading Model, developed by the company based on empirical defaults.
locally. Bath grading models comprise of 11 grading levels for instruments not in default (1 to 11) and one default class
{12}, The consolidated entity assigns each facility a credit rating, at initial recognition based on available information
about the borrower. Credit risk is deemed to have increased significantly if the credit rating has significantly deteriorated
at the reporting date relative to the credit rating at the date of initial recognition.

Definition of defoult

In assessing the impairment of financial assets under the expected credit loss model, the consolidated entity defines a
receivable asset as credit impaired if a default rating is assigned to this asset in accordance with its credit policy and
procedures,

Credit impaired exposure under the expected credit loss model consists of:

=  retall loans and non-rated fleet loans which are contractually 90 days past due; and/or
=  credit exposures when it becomes obwvious that the customers are no longer able to meet thelr financial
obligations as they fall due.

Colewlation af expected eredit loss

Expected credit losses are calculated using three main components: probabllity of default, exposure at default and loss
given default, These parameters are generally derived from internally developed statistical madels combined with
historical, current, forward-looking customer and macro-economic data.

For accounting purposes, probability of default represents the expected point-in-hme probability of a default over the
next 12 months and remalning lifetime of the financial instrument. This is based on conditions existing at the balance
sheet date and future economic conditions that affect credit risk. The loss given default represents expected loss
conditional on default, considering the mitigating effect of coflateral, its expected value when realised and the time
wadlue of money,

The exposure at default represents the expected exposure, taking into consideration the repayment of principal and
interest from the balance sheet date to the default event together with any expected drawdown of a facility, The 12
months ECL is equal to the discounted sum over the next 12 months of manthly probability of default multiplied by loss
given default and exposure at default inputs. Lifetime ECL s calculated usimg the discounted sum of monthly probability
of default over the full remaining life multiplied by lass gven default and expasure at default inputs.

Incorparanion of farward-looking infermation
The consalidated entity has considered a range of relevant forward-looking macre-economic scenarles and assumptions.
relevant to Australia to determine unbiased economic forecast and industry adjustment that support the calculation of

probability welghted expected loss,

The consolidated entity engages Moody's Analytics to obtain their forecasts for the following macro-economic variables
used by the 2-score model.

Inputs considered in the Z-score are:
= real gross demestic product [“GDPY) growth rate;

s unemployment rate;
= cashrate;
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AMD RISK [continued)

20, Financial risk management (continued)

= house price index;
*  AUD/USD exchange rate; and
*» stock market index.

These reflect reasonable and supportable forecasts of fulure macro-economic conditions that incdude, but are not
limited to, unemployment, interest rates, gross domestic product, house price index, and reguire evaluations of both
the current and forecast direction of the macro-economic cycle.

Incorporation of forward-locking infarmation increases the degree of judgement required as to how changes in these
macrg-economic factors will affect ECLs. For the ECL calculation as at 31 March 1024, the consolidated entity and
company has considered three forward-looking scenarios:

Bose Scenario ot 50% welghting

Under this scenario, the Russian war in Ukraine and the Hamas-lsrael conflict centinue but do not escalate.

In 2024, Australia’s economy is set to expand well below the estimated rate for 2023, Even though interest rates have
likely peaked, high interest rates and persistent infladon will keep family budgets under pressure.

While inflation retrests towards the RBA's target, relied in the form of interest rate cuts is expected to accur in the
second half of FY25.

Bacra-eoonamic factors incorporated in this seenario include;

®  Full-year GOP growth is estimated at 0.9% in CY2024 and 2.36% in CY2025;
»  Unemployment rate to increase to 4.25% by the end of CY2024 and 4.55% by the end of CY2025; and
&  CPlat3.47% onaverage in CY2024 and 2.71% in CY2025.

Upside Seenarto al 5% weighting

Under this scenario, the economic impacts of the Russian war in Ukraine and the Hamas-lsrael conflict resolve much
faster than anticipated.

These positive developments relieve recession concerns, causing an uptick in consumer and business sentiment.

Macroeconomic factors incorporated in this scenario include:

= Real GDP will expand by 2.44% in C¥2024 and 3.04% in CY20325;
= Unemployment rate at 3.64% on average in C¥2024 and 3.91% by the end of CY2025; and
= Consumer Price Index [CPI) at 4.48% on average in CY2024 and 3.08% in Cy2025.

Recession Scenerio ot 45% weighting

Under this scenario, sentiment falls sharply amid increasing concerns about global growth and geopolitical tensions
rise on fears of escalation in the war in Ukraine and the Hamas-Israel conflict.

Tensions between China and the U.5, increase, leading to temporary barriers to shipping along the Talwan Strait.
The global economy falls into recassion in 2024, causing oil prices to fall below the baseline.

Macrocconomic factors incorporated in this scenario include:

= GOP will see a contraction of 1.38% In CY2024 and 0.54% in CY2025;

= Unemployment rate to incfease to 5.43% by the end of CY2024 and 7.59% by the end of CY2025; and

= CPlat 1.63% on average in CY2024 and 1.74% in CY2025,

The table balow shows the reported provision for ECL based on the probability weighted scenarios and what the
provisions for ECL would be assuming a 100% weighting to the base case scenario, to the upside scenario and to the

rEcession scenario for the consalidated entity and company based on the expected range of possible future loss
outcomes as noted above.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AMD RISK (continued)

20, Financial risk management [continued)

Consolidated Company
5 2024 2023 2024 2023
Base 125,404,000 99,901,000 114,213,000 90,563,000
Upside 101,847,000 79,844,000 42,927,000 72,683,000
Recession 183,944,000 144,736,000 167,004,000 130,406,000

The consclidated entity and the company have also applied an overlay of approximately 59,622,000 | 2023: $19,693,000)
and $10,050,000 (2023: $19,693,000) respectively. The ECL recognised by the consolidated entity and the company as
at 31 March 2024 was 5160,167,000 (2023: 5138,767,000) and 5146,946,000 (2023: 5125,546,000) respectively.

If 1% of Stage 1 credit exposures as at 31 March 2024 was inchuded in Stage 2, provisions for impairment would
increase by approximately 513,6%0,000 for the consolidated entity and 512,050,000 for the company {31 March 2023:
511,930,000 for the consolidated entity and 510,660,000 for the company ).

If 1% of Stage 2 credit exposures as at 31 March 2024 was included in Stage 1, provisions for impairment would

decrease by approximately $400,000 for the consolidated entity and $360,000 for company (31 March 2023: 5300,000
fior the consolidated entity and 5260,000 for the company).

Nature and effect of modificotions on the measurement of provision for doubiful debts

A loan that is renegotiated is derecognised if the existing contract is cancelled, and a new agreement made on
substantially different terms, or If the terms of an existing agreement are modified such that the renegotiated loan is
substantially a different instrument, Where such loans are derecognised, the renegotiated contract is 2 new loan and

Imipairment Is assessed in accordance with the consolidated entity’s accounting policy.

When the renegotiated loans are not derecognised, impairment continues to be assessed for significant increases in
credit risk compared to the initial origination credit risk rating.

The consolidated enfity's financing assets are exposed to three areas: retall, fleet, and wholesale,
Retail

The retail portfalio is the largest area, which comprises a range of loans and receivables from individual consumers and
small businass.

Fleet

The fleet portfolio comprises a range of leans and receivables and motor wehicles under operating lrase from small to
large commercial clients and government bodies. it also includes novated leasing customers.

Credit risk arising from individual consumers and small business s managed through the application of credit scoring
and manual underwriting to identify and evaluate acceptable risks, and portiolio diversification both demographically
and geographically. Credit risk arising from fleet dients is managed by imposition and review of credit limits to ensure
fleet clients have the capacity to setthe financial commitments. Collateral is also used to secure funds advanced.

The consolidated entity uses provisicning models to assess the credit quality of financing assets and estimate provision
fior amaunts not collectible, Amounts not provided for are deemed collectible,
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AMD RISK (continued)

20. Financial risk management {continued)
Whaolesale

The wholesale portfolio includes Noor-plan finance to motor dealers for mew and used mator vehicle stock under either:

# A bailment fadlity, under which motor wehicles are bailed by the consolidated entity to a dealer, and the
consolidated entity retains ewnership of each vehicle until the dealer sells it to a customer; or

« A charge plan facility, under which the consolidated entity provides finance to a dealer for purchase of motor
vehicles which are charged to the consolidated entity as security,

In addition to the Aoor-plan facilities, the wholesale portfolio also incledes term loans to dealerships to finance property
and premises, and revolving working capital loans. These loans are typically secured by general security agreements,
real property mortgages and personal guarantees,

Due 1o the nature of thess facilities, there is a concentration in the motor vehicle dealership industry, with the risk
spread acrgss market locations throughout Australia, In addition to the collateral security obtained, credit risk &
managed through regular auditing of the dealerships” vehicle inventory, monthly manitoring of financial perfarmance
and ongoing annual reviews, The concentration of credit risk in relation te the operating segments is reflected in note
7.

{iii}) Credit risk exposure by credit quality

The table belaw shows the marimum exposure to credit risk by key class of financial assets, to which the expected
credit loss model is applied, based on how the consolidated entity manages the credit rsk:

&«  the days past due for retall and non-rated fleet
=  the risk grade for non-retail portfolio
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AMD RISK (continued)

20. Financial risk management {continued)

Retadl (general approach)
Loanz and receivabley
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
1dmonthECL g impaleed  creditimpalred Total
£'000 5'D00 5'000 5°000
Consolidated 2024
Equal 1o and less than 30 days 15,534,846 100, roE - 15,635,555
31-60 days - 304,080 - 304,080
E1-90 days . 45,047 . 45 087
Cver 50 days [credit mmpaired) - - 77,644 77644
Total 15,534 846 449, ET6 77 644 16,062 366
Company 2024
Equal to and less than 30 days 13,124,335 88,107 . 13,212,442
31-60 days - 264,210 - 254,210
F1-30 days . 33413 . 33413
Cver 50 days [credit npaired) - - 59,067 69067
Tatal 13,124,335 391,730 69,067 13,585,132
Loans and receivables
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-moenth ECL crliinosied ' creditimpsived Total
5'000 5000 5000 5000
Consolidated 2023
Equal to and less than 30 days 13,B96,099 94,547 - 13,900 646
31-60 days . 208,147 . 209,147
G1-80 days . 52,382 ¥2.382
Crver 90 days [credin mpaired) - - 53,529 53,529
Tatal 13,8496, 099 336,076 53,529 14 285 704
Company 2023
Equal 1o and less than 30 days 11,991,199 84,651 - 12,075,850
31-60 days - 186,034 186,024
B1-90 days - 29,037 - 1037
Ower 90 days (credit fmpaired) - - 49,062 49,0632
Total 11,991,190 299,722 49,062 12,339,983
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AMD RISK (continued)

20. Financial risk management {continued)

Whaolesale (general approach)
Loans and receivables
Lifgtime ECL not Lifetime ECL
S2maniiRa. credt-impaired  credit-impaired Tor!
£'000 $'000 £'Dod 5000
Consolidated 2024
Grade 1-7 Mormal Risk 7.073,607 230,106 - 7,303.113
Grade 8-11 ‘Watchlist . .
Grade 12 Default [eredit impaired) - - ]
Tatal 7,073,607 130,106 - 7,303,713
Company 2024
Grade 1-7 Normal Risk 5,590,711 220,378 - 511089
Grade 8-11 Watchizst . *
Grade 12 Dafault (credit impalired) E - - .
Total 5,590,711 220,378 . 5,811,085
Loans and recaivables
Lidetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
1-monthECL & edit-impaired  credit-impaired T
%'0:00 S'000 £'Doa £'000

Consolidated 2023
Grade 1-7 Narmal Risk 5,179,948 184,791 - 5,364,735
Grade 8-11 Watchiist - 906 - 06
Grade 12 Default (credit impaired) - - . .
Tatal 5179548 1B5,697 - 5,365 645
Company 2023
Grade 1-7 Normal Risk 4,069,622 169,776 : 4,235398
Grade 8-11 Watchliss - a&0 . asd
Grade 12 Delault (creda impained) o - T - ) =
Total 4,063,622 170,656 : 4240278
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AMD RISK (continued)

20. Financial risk management (continued)

Fleet non-graded customer [simplified approach)

Lease and loans
Lifetime ECL not Lifgtime ECL Total
cradit-impaired credit-impaired
5'000 5'000 51000
Consolidated 2024
Equal to and less than 30 days 675,591 - 675,591
3160 days 22,592 - 12,592
61-90 days 7,657 - 1,657
Owier 90 days (credit mpaired) - 13843 22,843
Taotal T05.840 22,843 _'!M!
Company 2024
Equal 1o and less than 30 days 675501 - 575,591
31-60 days 22,583 - 32,592
B1-490 days 1e5f - T
Owver 50 days [credit impaired) - 22843 12,843
Tatal 05,840 12,843 78683
Lease and loans
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL Total
credit-impaired credit-impaired
5000 £'000 57000

Consolidated 2023
Equal 1o and less than 30 days 545,778 - 549,778
1160 days 5615 s 9615
E1-90 days E326 = B, 3x6
Cwer 0 days (credit impaired) . 13,516 13 616
Taotal ._SE!\.TI'B J.__!.E:IE_ !?9.3_!5
Company 2023
Eqiial 1o and less than 30 days 549,778 - 540,778
31-60 days 5615 - 9,615
61-90 days B.316 - 6,326
Over 50 days [credit impaired) . 13,616 13,616
Total 565,719 13,616 379,335
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AMD RISK (continued)

20, Financial risk management [continued)

Fleet graded customer (simplified approach)

Leasn and loans
Lifetime ECL not Litetinme ECL Total
eredit-impaired  credit-impaired
£'000 £°000 £'000
Consolidated 2024
Grade 1-7 Marmal Risk 2,233,810 - 2,233 800
Grade 8-11 Watchiis 41,783 : 41,783
Grade 13 Default [credit impaired) - .
Total 2,_1?5,.503 - 2,2]"5,._503
Company 2024
Grade 1-7 Marmal Risk 2,233,810 - 2,233,820
Grade 811 Wathchliss 41,73 - 41,783
Grade 12 Default (credit impaired) . . -
Total 2,2?5.503_ - 2_._2_?5.5[03
Lease and loans
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL Total
credit-impaired  credit-impaired
59000 5'000 5'000
Consolidated 2023
Grade 1-7 Marmal Rlsk 2,098 B51 - 2,098 B51
Grade 8-11 Watchlise 64,098 - b4 0A8
Grade 12 Default (oredit impairod)
Tatal 2,162,559 - 2,162,959
Company 2023
Grade 1-7 Normal Risk 2,098 BA1 1 2,098 851
Grade 8-11 Walchist [ - B4, 098
Grade 11 Default (credit impaired) :
Total 2,161,959 = 4,162,959
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AMD RISK (continued)

20, Financial risk management [continued)
{iv)Funding activities

The consalidated entity manages credit risk through the use of external ratings, counterparty diversification, monitoring
of counterparty financial condition and ensuring master netting agreements are in place with all derivative
counterparties,

The below table shows the percentage of the consolidated entity's money market deposits and denvatives relating to
funding activities,

Consolidsted and Company o2d 2023
Rating % %
A~ 28 21
A+ 2 1
A m T8
A

100 100

The maximum exposure to credit risk a1 the end of the reporting period, without considering collateral obtained, is the
carrying amount, net of any allowance for doubtful debts or impairment of cach financial asset, including derivative
fimancial instruments, in the statements of financial positicn.

{c) Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the consolidated enfity is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
lizbilities when they fall due and to replace funds when they are withdrawn, The consequences may be failure to meet
obligatians to repay creditors and fulfil commitments to lend, The consolidated entity, in the normal course of business,
requires substantial funding to support the level of s eaming assets and working capital requirements, and
consequently is exposed to Nouidity risk.

The liguidity management processes carried out by the consolidated entity includes:

=  Day-to-day funding managed by monitoring existing and future cash flaws to ensure that Rnancial reguirements
can be met. This includes planning the replenishment of funds before they mature and/or are borrowed by
customers, The consolidated entity maintains an active presence in the domestic and international capital markets
to enable this to happen;
Manitoring the concentration and profile of debt maturities; and
Maintaining backup credit facilities,

{i} Financing arrangements

The consolidated entity utilises various financing arrangements such as commercial paper, medium-term notes, bilateral
bank loans and securitisation to meet liquidity requirements. It has access to a wide array of credit facilities to manage
liquidity risk (refer to note 13).

{ii] Maturity of financial labilities

The tables below amalyse the consolidated entity’s financial Rabilites into relevant maturity groupings based on their
remaining contractwal maturity as at the reporting peried for all:

- non-derivative financial liabilities; and
# net and gross settled derivative financial instruments for which the contractual maturities are essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows,
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AMD RISK (continued)

20. Financial risk management (continued)

The amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. For interest rate swaps, the cash flows have
been estimated using farward interest rates applhicabile at the end of the reporting period,

1-3 312 Owver 5
Consolidated 2024 <1 Manth hioniha aniha 1-5 Years Vi Total
£000 £'000 5000 4'000 £'000 4000
Non-derivatived
Banks and ether financial institutions 257,117 439,735 3,086,999  4.620,E88 - E,404,739
Basnls and commencial paper 2,322,580  263ET1R 5067016 11,551,154 ESEEST 22,438,315
Other abilities 509,508 40,332 53 446 44,138 - G56,424
Lease labilivies T 1461 5299 36,765 9,346 53,600
Total non-derimtives 3,089,534 3129246 8212760 16,252,945 BGE203 31,553,088
Derhvatives
Forward foreign exchange contracts
- Bought Currency |656,054) (1A82.561) [1.294.560) A - |%,433.185)
- Sold gurrency B56,462 1443374 1.277.474 - - 4,377,310
Intafest rate swaps 2,930 |22,924) {13,959) 13,347 - {37,350)
Crass cufrenty Swaps
- Pay leg 11,315,298 [87,301) [2,738,613) (B.BD2305] (&8V1,717] (13815234
- Recehe leg 1,316,686 61,047 2561845  BGO5.647 BSSEST 13494182
Total derivatives &, 716 |BE, Z65] (207,813} (112,055] [12,860) (414,277}
Total 3,094,650 3,040,981 8,008,347 16,142,690 55,343 31,138,811
11 3-12 Over 5
Company 2024 <1 Month " Months 1-5 Years imh Tatal
5000 5'000 $'000 £'000 5000 5000
Non-derivatives
Banks and gther fimancial institutions 1019 18,967 1,330,049 1,232,242 : 1,582,287
Related party liabilithes — securitisation -
st and subskbany 260 286 A47,457 1874025 4,865,315 7A56.083
Bonds and commercial papssr 2,322 580 1,638,714 5067016 11551154 25 857 23 438 3135
Cther Gabilites 501,913 49,332 53446 44138 . G488 829
Lease Rakilithes ] 1,461 5,299 316,765 4,346 53,600
Tatal non-derhatives 3,085,537  3,155935 B.329.B35 17719614 BER.203 33179124
Derivatives
Forward foreign exchange contracts
- Bought currancy [B5E,064) (2482,561) (1,294, 560) - - (4,433, 185)
- oM curnency 656462 2443374 1.27r4T = - 4,377,310
Interast rate swaps {3,B95) {34,617) [50,946) {23,501} . [112,%60)
Cross Currency swaps
- Pay leg 11,315,293} (87,301} (2.738,613) ([8,802,305) [B7L.717}  {13.,815,234)
- Recetvr leg 1,316,656 61147  2.561B45 8635647 858857  13.494.182
Total derivatives {2.110) {%9,958| {244,800) {130,15%) {12,860} (489,887}
Total 3,003,427 3055977 8085035 17,599,455 855,341 32,680,237
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AMD RISK (continued)

20. Financial risk management (continued)

The amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash lows. For inberest rate swaps, the cash Nows have
been estimated using forward inberest rates applicable at the end of the reporting period.

1-3 3.12 Over §
Consolidated 2023 < 1 Manth " Moniths 1-5 Years Years Tatal
5000 S'000 '000 5000 5000 5000
Mon-derivatives
Barks and ather Hnanclal insHtutions 276,178 406 558 2,690,448 4 178,006 - 7,551,150
Bonds and commercial paper 2,039,187 2303167 3721559  9,600.883 = 17.724,7%
Othar Babilities 330,122 7,144 15,722 43,118 . 449,212
Lt liabilithes 715 1,432 6,610 17.6EG 4,850 31,293
Total ror-darhatives 2646202 748408 6,515,339 13838604 4850 25,T56AH
Dermvatives
Farward loreign exchange contracts
- Bought currency [522.713) (1,792.312] (LA497.136) * - |3,812,161)
- Sold currency 346 962 1,671,663 716,649 - < 2,735,474
Interest rate swaps (565} 10,671 27236 23,431 - 60,763
Crois currency swaps
- Py leg HY5, 785 33,869 Fa6, 660 B, 048,322 r 9,954,636
- Receive leg [B26.613) 133,264) (B16,380) (7,728,375 - [9,404,633)
Total derivatives [127,144)  (109.373) [572,781) 343378 »  (465920)
Total 2,519,058 1,639,033 5,945,558 14,182,072 4,850 15.]3'3,511-
1-3 3-12 Cwver 5
Company 2023 =1 Month Minthi - 1-5 Years Yaais Total
-y S 5000 5000 5'000 57000 5'000 S'000
Meon-derivatives
Barika and ather Hnancial sttt ons a5 17,776 1,008 847 1,292 Bhd - 24815822
Related party liabilithes - securitisation s
trusts and subsidiary 283,789 405033 167,934 4,348 536 6,713,243
Bonds and commercial paper 039,187 2,303,167  37R1,559  9,600.883 < 17,724,796
Cithar Eabilities 335,123 37,249 39,712 42,118 . 454,213
Litassie Hakulities Ti5 1,432 6,610 17,686 4, B850 31293
Tatal non-dertatives 1,659,549 2,765,607 6,607,272 15302088 4,850 27,3319.366
Dorhatives
Forward foreign exchange contracts
- Bought currency {522,713] ([1,792,312) {1,457136) - - [3,B12,161)
- Sold curtenty 346,962 1671663 716,849 * " 2, 735474
Interest rabe swaps 2,155 15,864 43,107 31502 ] 52,128
Cross CUrrency swaps
- Pay leg E75,785 313,B59 COG, 660 B 028,322 - 9954 636
= Recebve lag (816,613) {33.264) (816,380} (7.728,375) «  [9404,637)
Total desivatives (124324)  (104,180)  (s57,900) 351,849 - 1434,555)
Tatal 535,225 2661427 6043372 15653937 4850 26308811
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OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

This section covers the operating assets and liabilities of the consolidated entty Including cash and cash equivalents,
pregayments, sccounts payoble and acorued expense payable,

21. Cash and cash equivalents

Consolidated Company
024 2023 2024 2023
$'000 5000 5000 $'000
Caczh in bank 450,045 334,066 450,045 334,066
Deposits at call 2,620,000 1770003 2,620,000 1L.F/0,000
3,070,045 2,104,066 3,070,045 2,104,066

As at 31 March 2024, the consolidated entity held cash and deposits at call of 5276,315,000 (2023: 5282 349,000), which
represents cash collections on securitised assets transferred to securitisation trusts,

Recognition and measurément

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in bank, deposits held at call with financial institutions, ather short-term, highly
liquid investrments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an msignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Cash in bank and depasits

at call earn interest at prevading market rates, Interest is recognised in the statements of comprehensive income using
the effective interest rate method,
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OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)
22, Cash flow information

{a) Reconciliation of profit for the year to net cash outflow from operating activities.

Consolldated Company

2024 2023 024 2023

$'000 £'000 $'000 £'000
Profit/[loss] attributable to owners of Toyota Finance

263,225 14,8490 1R4,040 B, 349
Australla Umited (
Share of profit af associate |15,284) | 16, 053] - -
Dividend fram assaciate - - - [10,228)
Depreciation, write-olf and amortisation 26,683 13,918 26,683 23,918
Write ofl of imtangible assets 14975 - 1975 -
Amaortisation - upfront receipts T4 1,749 T4 1,748
Amartisation - prepald expenses 15953 20,534 25,953 20,534
Net gain on sale or derecognition of non-currem assets [68,453) [60,561) (G8,451) (B, 561]
Nt lows on translaticn of forelgn curmancy transactions 584,002 2118557 SR, 003 2,128 557
Changes in falr value of financial instruments [218,777) {5E1,825) {218 777 |581,825]
Nat loss on derecognition of loase 112 - 112 -
Mowvements bn operating assets and lioblides:
| eCroase) in proviti i i ]
“m.?“ﬂd o o forimpRmisto 15,900 |20, 483) 19,300 (&5,704]
receivable
| d ¥ iin fos i LT
nicreasef{decreate] in prosision mpaitment an 100 (71.,600] 100 (21,600]
residual value
Increase in loans and recelvables 13.576,722) {1Le46,011] (3,077 .952) {854,103]
| I
VISR o MCEOTE NIV CHRE DOARR IR IS i of [311,DE7) 96, 336] {311,087} (96, 836]
accumulated depreciation)
Decreasef{increase) in deferred tax assot 5723 {1,165} 4,580 |2,432)
Increase in deferred tax lability 3LBT4 - 36,017 -
Ifﬁcr.\'.-.lstﬂdmasﬂ in ather, contract and lease 133.878 (27,1001 130841 (34.261]
liabilities
Decreasef{increase] in other assets {6,076] 81,600 {814,273] 11,034,437]
Increasefdecrease] in incomae tax payable A5010 (169,443 75,453 {168, 7E9]
de in defivative fi il ines

(increwsalydeszense in dertontive frenciel ingmanenta of 145,490 11,051,081 194,109 1965,386]
fair value thraugh prafit or loss
[Decreatefincrease i related pary labilives - - (65, 708] 313,817
Net cash outflow from operating activities [3,270,770) [LA20,916) (3,270, 7M0) [1,420,9%6)
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OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)
22, Cash flow information (continued)

{b} Reconciliation of liabilities arising from finandng activities

Non-cash changes
Additions
Opening at 1 Foreign derecognition Closing at 31
aprilzozz  CORfIOWS o ange Amertisation oflpase  March 2023
liabllities
Consolidated 5000 000 5000 5'000 5'000 5'000
Borrowings 21,136,947 1461461 1,211,212 119,805 - 23,529,425
Lease liabilizies 35,731 {7.867) . . 1170 28,034
Additions,
Opening at 1 Foreign Derecognition Clasing at 31
April202y  CHRMOWS o onge Amortisation oflpase  March 2024
liahilities
5'000 5000 5000 5'000 5'000 5'000
Borronwings 23929435 4,774,544 408,114 271,409 - 28,B83,492
Lease kabilifies 29,034 (7723} - . 25,168 46,479
Non-cash changes
Additions
Opening at 1 Fareign r derecognition  Clasing at 31
aprilzozy  CHhTowE  napge  AMOrHsation of lease  March 2023
liabilities
Company $'000 5'000 5000 000 5'000 5'000
Baprrowings 17,613,652 125,969  1,211.212 119,505 - 19,070,638
Lease habilinies 35,731 {7.867] - - 1170 29,034
Additions/
Opening at 1 Fareign derecognition Clasing at 31
apriizozs CHRflows. ange mortisation of lease  March 2024
liabilities
5'000 57000 57000 5'000 5'000 5'000
Borrowings 18,070,638 3,653,006 408,114 271,409 - 23,403,169
Lease Habiligies 29,034 (7.723) . . 25,168 46,479
B5
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OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

23, Other assets

Consalidated Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

5'000 4000 $'p00 §'000

Prepayments 53,388 45,874 53,388 45874
Intercompany advance Lo subsidiary - - 3,962,539 3,06B.588
Irvestmignt in Securtisathan Trudl - - 118087 1, 246395
Cther deblos 73,201 77,764 73,150 7760
Accrued intefed réteivable 71.597 4,474 7.597 4474
134,186 128,112 5277361 4,463,091

Other assets expected 1o be recovered within 17 months 122521 115,961 4,085,008 3204541
Other asiets expected to be recovered alter more than 12 months 11,665 12,151 1,192,353 1 358550

134,186 128,112 5277361  &4,863.091
24, Other liabilities and contract liabilities
{a) Other liabilities
Consolidated Company

0z 2023 2024 1023

£'000 $'000 $'000 £000

Emplayee entitlements 19,355 18,479 19,355 18479
Acerued interest payable 127,374 B7,920 127,374 E7.920
Amounts payable to related entines 152,939 121,977 152,583 12197
Accounts payable 227,163 106, 2E7 224 XBE 117,396
Accrued expenies (including relaled parties) 104,932 03,826 100,299 E7. 787
Other 24,611 20,723 24,524 0654

656424 449,212 48,829 454,213

Othar Eabilities expocted to be sattlod within 12 manths 512,286 407,003 E04,681 412094
Other Fabilities expected 1o be settled in mose than 12 months 4, 138 42,119 44,138 42,119
556424 443,212 48,329 454,213

{b) Contract labilities
The consolidated entity has recognised the following revenue related contract abilities.
Consolidated Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
§'000 5’000 5'000 5'000
Contract liahilities 136974 135,300 136,974 125,300

Of the above amount, $91,316,000 {2023:; 583,533,000] is expected to be settled within 12 months of the balance date,
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OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)
24, Other liabilities and contract liabilities (continued)
The following table shows revenue recagnised in the current reporting period that relates to carried-forward contract

liabiligies, The amounts presented below are gross, while the amounts recognised in the statements of comprehensive
income are presented net of related costs, as the consolidated entity is acting as an agent.

Consolidated Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
£'000 £'000 5'000 £'000
Rewenwe recognased that was included in the
contract lishility balanee at the beginning of the B0,113 75,803 £0,113 75,803

period

Ax permitted under AASBLS Revenue from Contracts with Customers, the transaction price allocated to (partially)
unsatisfied performance obligations as of 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 is not disclosed,

Employee entitlements
{i} Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, induding annual leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the end of each
reporting period are recognised in ather payables in respect of employees’ services up 1o the reparting date and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the Nability is settled. Liability for non-accumulated sick leave s
recognised when the leave i4 taken and measured a1 actual rate paid or payable.

(i) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilicles for long service leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months afier the end of the period
in which the employees rendered the related service, They are therefore recognised in the provision for emploves
benefits and measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the end of each reporting period. Consideration is given at expected future wage and salary levels,
experience of employee departures and pericds of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market
ylalds at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to maturity and cwrrency that match, as closely
a5 possible, the estimated future cash flows,

{iii) Retirement benefit obligation
All ernployees of the consolidated entity are entitled to benefits on retirement, disability, or death sccording to the
consolidated entity’s superannuation plan. The consolidated entity has a defined contribution plan. The defined

contribution plan receives fixed contributions from the consolidated entity and the consolidated entity's legal and
constructive obligation is limited to thewe contributions,

Contributions to the defined contribution fund are recognised as an expense as they become payable, Prepaid
contrlbutions are recognised as an asset 1o the extent that cash refund, of o reduction in the future payments is
available,
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This section cutlines the non-operating assets of the consolidated entity. Induded in this section are the following

information:

Investment accounted for using the equity method;
Property, plant and equipment;

Right-of-use assets;

intangible assets; and

Deferred tax asset.

25. Investment accounted for using the equity method

[a) Mavement in carrying amount

Unisted

Name of entity

Towola Finanoe MNew Zeatamnd Limited

Carryping amaurit at 1 April

Share of profits after income fax

Dwvidend receivied

teet exchange differences an trandation of foreign asociste
ety

Carrying amount &t 31 March

Linlisted

Name of entity

Toyoka Finarnce New Teatand Limited
Imvestmaent at cost at 31 March

Consclidated
2024 2023
£'000 £'000
102,972 95,323
15,284 16,050
| {10,.228]
[2.4067) Az
116,189 102,972

Company

024 2023
£'000 5'000
a,184 4,284

The principal activities of Toyota Finance New Zealand Limited during the period were:

Cwnership interest

2024 2023
% %
4545 4545
‘Ownership interest
2024 2023
] -]
45.45 45.45

« finance the acquisition of motor vehicles by retall and commeercial custemers, by way of consumer and

commercial loans;

provide bailment facilives and commercial loans to moter dealers;
provide vehicle finance |by way of loans, term purchases, inance leases or operating leases) and fleet

management services to corporate customers;

to pravide for car sharing services;

B3

the provision of retail Bnance and related products for pleasure boats;
sell retail insurance policies undenwritten by third party insurers as agents;

vehicle rental service for personal and non-commercial use for agreed period; and
sale of used vehicle as a part of reatal vehicle fleet rotation,
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NON-OPERATING ASSETS (continued)
25, Investment accounted for using the equity method [continued)

Investments in associate are accounted for in the consolidated finandial statements using the equity method of
accounting and are carried at cost,

Consolidated 2024 2023
5000 £'000

[b] Share of assodate's profits

Profit before income tax 21,430 22 3o

IEddFE T Expence (B 145 [E6. 340

Profit after income tax 15,284 16,050

[e] Summarised financial information of siociates

Assats Liabélities Revenues Profit
5'D0a 5000 5000 5'000
Consalidated 2024
Toyota Finance Mew 2ealand Limited 1,813,535 1,502,629 160,297 33,629
Consolidated 2023
Tayota Finanoe Mew Teakand Limited 1,360 588 1138521 130905 35,313
Principles of consolidation

Assaciates are all entities over which the consolidated entity has significant influence but not contral, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the woting rights. Investments in associates are accounted
for in the consalidated financial statements using the equity methed of accounting. after initially baing recognised at
cost. Investments in associates are accounted for in the company financial statements at cost less accumulated
impairments.

The consolidated entity’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in profit or boss, and its
share of post-acquisition movemonts in reserves is recognised in other comprehensive income,. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment.

Dividends received from associates are recognised in the consolidated and company financial statements as a reduction
agalnst the carnying amount of the iInvestment.

When the consolidated entity's share af losses in an associate equal or exceeds its interest in the assaciate, including
any other unsecured long-term receivables, the consolidated entity does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incwrred ehligations or made payments an behalf of its associate,

Unrealised gains on transactions between the consolidated entity and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
consolidated entity’s interest in associates, Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides

evidence of an Impairment of the astet transferred, Accounting policies of assoctates have been changed where
necessary o ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the consolidated entity,
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NOMN-OPERATING ASSETS (continued)

25, Investment accounted for using the equity method (continued)

Foreign currency translation

{a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the consolidated entity are measured wsing the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The consolidated financial statements

are presented in Australian dollars, which is the company’s functional and presentation currency.

On consolidation, the exchange differences arising from the translation of the net Investment In the foreign entity from
functional to presentation currency is recognised in "other comprehensive income”,

(b} Transactions and balances
Forelgn currency transactions are transbited inte the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the date
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the

translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilides denominated In foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or ko

26. Property, plant and equipment

‘ i Accurnulated Carrying
Kwtwd 2024 Cost depreciation value
5’000 $'o00 £'000
Leadehald improvements 16,974 10,265 6,709
Plant and equipment 6,906 6,124 682
Kotar wehicles 12,597 2647 9,950
35,477 19,136 17,341
Accurmulated Carrying
Cormpany T004 o deprediation value
000 £'000 5'000
Leasehald improvements 16,974 10,265 6,709
Prart and squipment 6,506 6,124 682
Kbotar wekicles 12,597 2647 9,950
36,477 13,136 17,341

0
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NON-OPERATING ASSETS (continued)

26. Property, plant and equipment [continued)

Eonsolidated 2023 Cost m‘:f::: Cairryini vabink
5'000 5'000 S'000

Leasehald impravements 17,311 280 9,022
Plant and equipment 6,667 5,890 763

Matar vehicles 10,518 2,777 7,741
34,096 16,964 17,532

Company 2023 Cost ?;tﬂ“f‘-; Carrying value
£'000 S'000 5'000

Leasehald impravemeants 17,311 289 9,022
Plant and equipment 6,667 5,858 Tea
hotor vohicles 10,518 27717 7,741
34,496 16,364 17532

Conselidated Im”:m m “m: Tarals
5000 5000 $'000 5000

Carnying value at 1 April 2022 11,151 1,166 8,348 10,665
Additions 175 251 4,029 4455
Dispasals = - |2 544) {2 5a4)
Depreciation {2.304) {835 (2,092) {5,031)
Write-off . (13) . (13
Carrying value at 31 March 2023 9,022 768 7741 17532
Additions 336 8,116 2,453
Disposals . : [3,716) {3,7186)
Depreciation {2.300) 217 [2,191) {&,910)
Write-off [11} 16} E (17}
Carrying walue at 31 March 2024 6,709 -] 8,950 17,341

71

228/344



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

NON-OPERATING ASSETS (continued)

26. Property, plant and equipment [continued)

Conmaary umﬁ !m Motor Totals
5000 5'000 5'000 5'000

Carrying value at 1 April 2022 11,151 1,166 8,348 20,665
Additions 175 151 4,029 4,455
Dispasals : . |2, 544) |2 5a4)
Dwepredation {3,304} {BI5) [3,003) 15,031
Wente-olf - {13) - (13}
Carrying walue at 31 March 2023 9022 769 771 17,532
Additions - EEL 8116 B.a52
Disposals - - ERSTA 13,7T16)
Depreciation (2,302} 417 12,151) |4,910)
Write-ol {13} Lt} . 17
Carrying value 4 21 March 2024 5709 a2 5950 v

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit
or loss.

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation, Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included In the asset’s carnying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flaw to the consolidated entity and the
cost of the itern can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of
thelr residual values, over thelr esttmated useful lives, as follows:

Aszet class Mbethod Estimated useful life

Plant and equipment Straight line 1.5 years

Maotor vehicles Straight line 1-3years

Leasehold improvements Straight line Unaxpired portion of lease or useful e of asset
whichieer is charer

The asset's residual values and useful lives ang reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, a1 each balance sheet date,

An asget's carrying armount is written down immediately te its recoverable amount If the asset’s earrying amaunt is
greeater than its estimated recoverable amaunt,
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NON-OPERATING ASSETS (continued)
27. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilites

The statements of financial position shows the following amounts relating to leases:

Consolkdated Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

5000 5'000 5000 5000
Prosperties 19911 21,E65 19911 21 BES
Total right-of-use assets 33,911 11,565 39,911 11,865
Leake abilities A5 4TS 29,034 46 AT 29,034
Total lease liabilities 45,478 9,034 46473 29,034
Maturity analysis
Cursent
Ledadi habilitied - Cufdent 5571 E,018 5571 2018
Wawn-current
Lease Habilities - Non-current A0, 506 21,016 40,906 21,016

AGATY 29,034 A6, ATY 29,034

The statements of comprehensive income shows the following amounts relating to beases:

Corsolidated Company
Note 2024 2023 2024 2023
5000 £'000 5000 5000
Deprociation charge of right-of-use assots -
5 7009 7.135 7, 7,135
Prosperties i
Ifntere-u: capende [eluded in interest expanie and . - 936 538 36
sirmilar charges)
Expense relating to short-term leases (inclisded in 254 Z 5id
other expense)

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the financial year wore 526,031,000 {2023: nit). The tofal cash outflow lor bkeases
during the financial year was 58,687,000 [2023: Sﬂ.&ﬂﬂ.m}].

{a) The consolidated entity's leasing activities and how these are accounted for

The consalidated entity leases various offices. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 3 to 10 years but
may hawve extension options as described below. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain different
terms and conditions.

Leasas are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
awailable for wse by the consalidated entity. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the Bability for each period.

Assers and liabilities arising from a lease are initally measured on a present value basls. Lease liabilites include the net
present value of the following lease payments:

= fined payments, less any lease Incentives receivable, and
& variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate.
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NON-OPERATING ASSETS (continued)
27. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate, being the rate that the consoldated entity
wiould have 1o pay o borrow the funds necessany 1o obitain an asset of similar value in a similar economic emidranment
with similar terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measwred at cost comprising the following:

& the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

= any lease payments made at or before the commencernent date bess any lease incentives received, and
= anyinitial direct cests,

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a stralght-
line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss, Short-
term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less,

(b} Extension option

Extension option is incheded in a number of property leases across the consolidated entity, These terms are wsed to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majority of extension options held are exercisable
only by the consolidated entity and not by the respective bessar,

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to
exercise an extension option, of not exercise a termination option. Extension options, or pericds alter termination
options, are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended, or not terminated.

28. Intangible assets
Recegnition and measurement

Capltalized camputer software and development cocts are amartised from the palnt at which the asset is ready for use
on a straight-line basis owver its useful life, which varies from 3 to 10 years.

Imiplementation costs, including costs to configure or customise the software as a service (*5aa%") provider's application
arg recognised as operating expenses when Uhe services are received,

For Saak arrangements, where the supplier provides both configuration and customisation services, judgament has been
applied to determine whether each of the services are distinct or not from the underlying use of the 5aa% application.
Distinct configuration and customisation costs are expensed as incurred as the software is configured or customised
(i.e., upfront).

Far non-distingt customisation activities that significantly enhance or modify a 53a5 cloud-based application, judgement
has been applied in determining whether the degree of customisation and modification of the 5aa5 application is
significant or not, Non-distinct configuration and customisation costs are considered a3 prepaid expenses and are
expensed over the 5aal contract term.
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NON-OPERATING ASSETS (continued)
28. Intangible assets [continued)
Impairment of assets

Intangible assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amaunt by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to resell and
walue in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows, which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other asset groups (cash
gonerating units).

Consolidated Company
034 023 2024 1023
$'000 4000 $'000 £'000
Software
Cost 117,153 95,462 117,153 95,462
Amartisation 53,085 40,306 53,085 40,306
Carrying Value 64,068 55 156 54,068 55,156
Comalidated Company
Z024 023 2024 023
5'000 5'000 5'000 5000
Carrying value at 1 April 55,156 28,076 55,156 29,076
Additions 25,634 33,995 25,634 33,995
Amartisation expanse [14,247] {11,734 124,747 {11,735}
Write-aff {1,975) - [1.975] -
Transfer . 3824 - 3,824
Carrying value at 31 March 64,068 55,156 B4,068 55,156
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NON-OPERATING ASSETS (continued)
29, Deferred tax assets

Refar to note & income tax expense for further information an income tax.

Consolidated Compary
2024 2023 2024 023
£'000 5000 5'000 5'000
Deferred tax asset balances comprise temporary
differences attributable ta:
Amaunts recognised in shatement of financial padition
Tax lowses . 45,631 - 49,335
Provisicn for impairment of loans and advances 50,515 44,915 46,549 40,549
Financial instrurmnents . (4525} - |4,525]
Accrued expenses 51,048 47017 50,811 46,146
Sundny tems 158,B11 17373 18,811 17,323
Total amount recegnised in statement of financial pesition 120,774 150,361 116,631 149,228
Deferred tax liability balances comprise temporary
differences amributable to:
Amaunts recognised in stotement af financial pasition
Aisers financed snder lease 145,276 139 485 145,276 139,485
Sundry tems 7,372 5,153 7372 £153
Total amount recognised in statemaent of financlal position 152,648 144 638 152 648 144,638
Kot deferred tax [liabilites)/asiets (30, E7a) 5723 136,017) 4,500
Gross deferred tax assets opening balance 150,361 135,786 148,328 133,386
Mowement in ternporery differences during the pear
Tax lozses [45,631) 45,631 |49, %35) 49,335
Provision (or impairment of foars and — advances 6,000 112,625} 6,000 [14,191)
Financlal instruments 4,52% (31,445} 4,525 [21,445)
Accrued expenies 4,031 1,551 4,725 BED
Sundry ltems 1,488 1,463 1488 1,463
Gress deforrod tax assets closing balanco 120,774 150,361 116,631 149,228
Gross deferred tax labilities opening balance 144,638 131,228 144,638 131,228
Movement in témporary differencet during the pear
Assels inanced ender lease 5,791 13,400 5791 13,400
Sunidry items 2,219 pLi] 2,219 10
Gross deferred tax HabiBties dosing balance 152,648 144,638 152 48 144 638
Net deferred tax [labilides)/assets |31, E7a) 5,723 |36,017) 4,590
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UNRECOGNISED ITEMS

This section provides information abaut items that are not recognised in the financial statements as they do not satisfy
the recognition criteria but are relevant for the understanding of the financial performance of the consolidated entity,

30. Contingent liabilities and assets

Contingent liabilities
Group G5T lobility

The consolidated entity, as members of the Toyota Motor Corporation Australia Limited G5T Group ("G5T Group”), are
jointly and severally lkable for 100% of the goods and services tax ("G5T™) payable by the GST Group. The G5T Group had
a net GST pavable av ot 31 March 2024 of 579,627,000 (2023: 547,373,000}, The company had recorded a liability of
569,249,000 for its share of G5T payable as at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: 543,042,000}, The consolidated entity,
in associgtion with other Australian incorporated entities with a common owner, Implemented the income tax
consoalidation legislation from 1 April 2003 with Toyota Mator Corporation Australia Limited as the head entity of the
income tax consolidated group. Under the income tax consalidation legislation, income tax consolidation entities are
jointly and severally liable for the income tax lability of the consolidated income tax group unless an income tax sharing
agreement has been entered Into by member entities. At the date of signing this financial report, an income 1ax sharing
agreement has been executed.

Class ackian

On 22 February 2024, Toyota Finance Australia Limited was served with a class action lawsuit claiming that betwesn
20100 and 2018 there was an undisclosed flen commission arrangement betwean Toyota Finance Australia Limited and
its dealerships that encouraged those dealerships to Inflate the interest rates on loans arranged for their customers.
Toyota Finance Australia Limited is currently reviewing the claim and cannot predict the eventual scope, duration or
outcome at this time. As a result, TFA is unable to estimate the amount or range of any potential loss arising frem the
class action.

Other

From time to time, there may be Ftigation or regulatory proceedings against the consolidated entity. The Baard
continues to moniter each of these actions or investigations. We are not aware of any pending litigation, proceedings,
héprings oF claima negatiathons which may result in significant loss to the consclidated entity.

Contingent assets

A at 31 March 2024, the Company filed an insurance claim for AUD 7,200,000, The insurance company has provided a
preliminary position of indemnity and is in the process of reviewing the documentation provided by the Company. The
potential recovery has mot been recogndsed as am asset at year end an the basis that the payment of the elaim was not
virtually certain, The Company will monitor the claim's progress and recognise the asset whan compensation becomes
wirtually certain.

31, Commitments

There were no capital commitments as at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: nil) for consolidated entity and company,

7

234/344



EDINETOOOO

00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

UNRECOGNISED ITEMS (continued)

32. Subsequent events

inflation and rising interest rates present a challenge to the Australian households, with impacts felt across various
sectors of the economy. As a result of the macro-economic enviranment, management continues 1o manitor bad debts,
Imans and lease delinquencies. To date, no material escalation in the default trends has been observed.

Orher than a5 set out above, the directars are not aware of any other Maters or circumstances that has ocourred
simce 31 March 2024 that has significantly affected or may significantly affect the cperations of the consolidated
entity, the results of these operations ar the state af affairs of the consolidated entity in subsequent fnancial periods,

OTHER DISCLOSURE MATTERS

This section covers other informatien that is not directly related to specific line items in the financial statements,
including information about subsidiaries, related party transactions, company information and other statutory
disclosures.

33. Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the following subsidiaries in
accordance with the accounting policy described |n note 2b:

Owmership interest
Cauntry of Class of 2024 w023
Name of entity Incorporation  shares k3 %
Australlan Alllance Avtomotive Finance Pty Limited® Australia Oirdinary 100 100

* Investment vafve of 52 has been rownded to ail, This subsidiory has been granted retef from the necessity to prepove fimancial
stetements in occardance with ASIC instrument 2016/785 issued by the Australion Securiffes and lnvestment Commission. For further
irifovention, refer to note 36, The proporition of the cwnersfip interes! & equal to the progortion of voting gower heid,

Units owmned
024 2023
Name of trust % %
Southern Cross Toyota 10091 Trust ** 100 1040
King Koala TFA 3012-1 Trusg ** 100 100

“* investment volie of 510 hos been rounded to Snil,
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OTHER DISCLOSURE MATTERS (continued)

34. Related party transactions

This note shows the extent of related party transactions that are undertaken by the consalidated entity and the impact
they had on the financial performance and position of the consolidated entity.

{a) Entities in the wholly owned group

Toyota Finance Australia Limited, referred in these accounts as "Company”, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Toyota
Financial Services Corporation, which in turn is 2 whaolly owned subsidiary of the ultimate parent entity, Toyota Motor
Corporation incarporated in Japan,

{b) Subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are set out in note 33.

ch Associates

Investments in associates are set out in note 25.

{d} Kay managemant parsonnal

(i} Key management personmel Compensation

Consolidated and Compary
2024 023
5 5
Shart-1erm employes benefits, post-employment, ather bang-tarm and termination 2,130,756 2,229,631

bt it

(i} Equity Instrument disclosuras relating to key management personnel

There were no issued ordinary shares of the ulimate parent entity, being Toyota Metor Corporation Japan, under
option to key management personnel as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

{iii) Loans to key management personne

Mo loans to key management personnel were recognised as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,
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OTHER DISCLOSURE MATTERS (continued)
34. Related party transaction [continued)
{e} Transactions and balances with related parties

Tronsactions and balances with related porties are set out below. These are included in the statements of
comprehensive income and statements of financial position for the period.

Consolidated Campany
2024 023 2024 2023
5'000 §'000 5000 5'000
Met financing incame
Affikate finance income 7,008 11,872 7202 11,872
Interest on Erase llabllifies to affikates {14%| 1111y (REL}] (111}
Credit support fises paid to parent entity [22,245) [19,965) {21,245) [19,965)
Debt isuance lees paid to affiliates {192] |17&) [raz) {17E)
Dbt issuance fees paid to parent entity {263] FE] [263) {232)
I:::;T;::LTEM Eaan from securitfisation trusts (469,176) (285,574)
Interest income fram loan to substidiary - 150,465 57,384
Dperating lease rental income from affiliates 16,913 ] 16,913 ]
Bther Incama
Residual distribution from securitisation trusts . . 208,744 153,583
Maintenance and other fee income from affiliates i - i
Expenses
Segurily shared wondces and licence fee 3,505 5.510 3,505 5,510
Share of owerhead expensdes related o subsidiany ¥ o {50,981 (39,519
LT L
Loans and recesables
Deferred finance income from affillates* L] [11,794) (B6,570) [11,754)
Cither 3idiets
Accounts recevable from aMiliates® 221,B0%9 105,443 22 840 105,443
Intercompany advance to subsidiary . . 3,962,535 3,088,588
Inviestrment in securitisstbon trusts - - 1,180,687 1,246,395
Investrment in associates - - 4,284 4,284
Purchase of vehicles from affillates 192,485 - 192,485 -
Liabilities
MNon-intenost-bearing loans payable to affiliates 24,079 24,079 24,079 24,009
Intenost rate swop conbracts - . 72,752 24,130
Et:;e;::anr\g loan from securitisation trusts and 6,661,010 6,105,182
Accounts payable o affiliates® 128,910 97,808 1x8910 97,2098
Leade liabilitied to aMilcates o, 20 3EET 4,300 q,EET
Accrued expenses payable to parent entity® 11,773 10,169 11,773 10,169
* NWon-interest bearing

Mo bad debts expende and allewance Tor doubtful debts were recogrised in relation to any receivable due from related
parties as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,
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OTHER DISCLOSURE MATTERS (continued)

35, Auditor's remuneration

During the year, the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of the company, its related
practices and non-related awdit firms:

Comsaldated Carmpary
2024 2023 2024 2023
$ 5 ] %
PricewaterhouseCoopers - Australian firm
Audit or review of the financial reports 4,006 902,885 964,006 W1 BA5
Other statutory assurange services 340,789 235,253 340,789 235,153
Othar assurance services 393,021 320,243 392,001 320,243
Tatal audit and other assuranoe services 1,696,816 1,458,381 1,696 816 1,458,381
Taxation 13,129 13,559 13,129 13,559
Total remuneration 1,709,545 1,471,940 1,709,945 1A471,5340
Related practices of Pricewaterhouse Conpers-
Augtralian firm {including cverieas
PricewaterhouseCoopers Frms)
Othver sssurance Services 99,591 131,031 99,591 131,031
36. Deed of cross guarantee

Toyota Finance Australia Limited and Australian Alliance Automotive Finance Pty Limited are parties to a deed of cross
guarantee in which each entity guarantees the debts of the other, By entering the deed, the whally owned entities have
been relioved from the requirement to prepare a financial report and a directors’ report undar ASIC Instrument
2016/ 785 issued by the Australian Securities and Investrments Commission.

The abowve companies represent a "Closed Group® for the purposes of the Legislative Instrument, and as there are no
other parties to the deed of cross guarantee that are controlled by Toyota Finance Australia Limited, they also represent
the “Extended Closed Group®,

Set out below are the statements of financial position and statements of comprehensive income of the dlosed group for
the year ended 31 March 2024,
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OTHER DISCLOSURE MATTERS (continued)

36. Deed of cross guarantee (continwed)

Consalidated and Company statements of financial position

2024 2023
5000 5000
Assels
Cash and ¢ash equivalents 3,070,045 2,104,066
Laans and recetvables 26,209 408 22,252 676
Maotor vehickes under operating leais * 242 356 1864213
Derwative Mirancial instruments 418123 491,184
Investiment accounted for using the equity method 116,189 1024972
Intangibe asse1s 54,068 55,156
Property, plant and eguipmént 17341 17,532
Right-of-use assets 3|a1l 11,865
Deferred tax assets E 5713
Other asseliy 1,314872 1,374 506
Total assets 33,522,403 28,289,893
Linkbilithes
Dusr to banks and other financial instiations 1,431,508 2,281,887
Bonds and commaercial paper 20,971 661 16,788,751
Redated party lisbilities —sscuritisation trusts 6,661,010 6,105 182
Dereative financial Instruments 487 357 623,946
Doferred tax liabilities 11,814
Other liabilithes G5G424 4492132
Contract labdities 136974 125,300
Lease liabdlities 46,479 4,034
Tatal liabllities 31,423,287 26,403,312
Net assets 1,099,116 1,885,581
Equity
Contributed equity 120,000 10,000
Reserves 2,850 4957
Retained earnings 1976226 1,761,624
Tatal equity 2,089,116 1,885,581

B2
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OTHER DISCLOSURE MATTERS (continued)
36. Deed of cross guarantee (continued)

Consolidated and Company statements of comprehensive income

2024 2023

5000 £'000
Interest révenus 1,522,927 998,153
Rental incormae on mator vehicles under operating lease 525,151 0162
Fe income 61,327 54015
Financing and similar revenue 2,109,505 1,492,330
Intarest expense and similar charges [1.296,6a5) 11.172.484]
Deprociation expense on motar wehicles under aperating lease (422, 741) {3EA,282)
Financing expense and similar charges {1,719,410) (1,540, 7a6)
Net financing and similar revenue 350,095 [a8,416)
Oithser feveimue 325978 26,371
Net operating income 716073 197,955
Crodit impalrment loss 173,931) (15, 640)
Mon-credat impairment reversal [428) 21,085
Ernplayae benefits axpense (194, 213) {177,220
Depreciation, write-off and amortisation 135,345) [29,034)
IT iand communécation capenie {54,033) (41,334)
Sales and marketing expense {9.41E8) {9, 765]
Other axpensas |42, B0y (32.783)
Share of net profits of assoclates accounted for wsing the equity method 15,284 16,050
Profit/[loss] before income tax 321,189 [70,685)
Income T expense [ 106,586} f122]
Profit/[loss] sttributable to owners of Toyota Finance Australia Limited 214,503 [70,807)
Other comprehensive Income
fterms that may be reclossiffed to profit or loss
Exchange differences an translation of foreign operatians {3,067) B28
Total comprehensive income /[ loss) attributable to owners of T Finance Australia
3 pre Jiloss)h ooy 212,536 (69,979)
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DIRECTORS" DECLARATION
in the directors’ apinlon:

fa) the financial statements and notes set out on pages 7 to 83 are in socordance with the Corporations Act
2001, including:

(i) complying with Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other
mandatory prafessioral reporting reguirements; and

[ii}) giving & true and lair view of the consalidated entity and company's financial position as st
31 March 2024 and of its performance for the year ended on that date: and

{bj there arereasonable grounds to beldeve that the consolidated entity and company will be able to pay lts
debits as and when they become due and payable: and

{c) &t the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the members of the
Extended Closed Group identified in note 36 will be able to meet any obligations or liabilites to which
they are, or may become, subject by virtue of the deed of cross guarantee described In note 36

Mote 2[a] confirms that the financial statements comply with Internationa! Financia Reposting Standards as
msued by the Intermatienal Accounting Standards Doard.

This declaration is made in accordance with o resolution of the directors.

7L

Fos and on bahalt of the Board,

Director
Sydney Sydney
27 June 2024 27 June 2024
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116 117 118 119 120
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
29,866,547 | 27,214,504 | 31,379,507 | 37,154,298 | 45,095,325
2,792,942 2,932,354 3,990,532 3,668,733 6,965,085
2,036,140 2,245,261 2,850,110 2,451,318 4,944,933
1,555,009 3,217,806 3,954,350 3,251,090 6,999,828
20,618,888 | 23,404,547 | 26,245,969 | 28,338,706 | 34,220,991
53,972,363 | 62,267,140 | 67,688,771 | 74,303,180 | 90,114,296
() 1,490.80 1,674.18 1,904.88 2,089.08 2,539.75
() 145.49 160.65 205.23 179.47 365.94
() 144.02 158.93 205.23 179.47 365.94
() 38.2 37.6 38.8 38.1 38.0
() 10.0 10.2 11.5 9.0 15.8
() 8.9 10.7 10.8 10.5 10.4
2,308,496 2,727,162 3,722,615 2,955,076 4,206,373
2,124,650 4,684,175 577,496 1,598,890 4,998,751
362,805 2,739,174 2,466,516 56,180 2,497,558
4,008,450 5,100,857 6,113,655 7,516,966 9,412,060
) 361,907 366,283 372,817 375,235 380,793
[86,59]]| [80,009]| [87,120]| [94,974]| [96,482]
2021 10 116
2021 2021
2023 31 2024 31
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116
2020
( ) 29,929,992
( ) 2,554,607
( ) 2,076,183
( ) 1,866,642
( )| 21,241,851
( )| 52,680,436
() 1,450.43
() 147.12
() 145.90
() 38.1
() 10.4
) 8.8
( ) 3,590,643
( ) 3,150,861
( ) 397,138
( ) 4,412,190
359,542
1 () [ 86,219]
116
2021 10 116

255/344



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

OOooOoOoOoo
116 117 118 119 120
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
12,729,731 11,761,405 12,607,858 14,076,956 17,575,593
1,735,365 1,886,691 2,171,530 3,520,848 5,578,695
1,424,062 1,638,057 1,693,947 2,936,379 4,399,855
635,402 635,402 635,402 635,402 635,402
3,262,997 3,262,997 16,314,987 16,314,987 16,314,987
47,100 47,100
12,590,891 13,894,021 14,607,272 16,493,041 20,440,081
17,809,246 21,198,281 20,991,040 23,230,320 28,161,955
() 875.44 959.55 1,060.16 1,215.84 1,516.98
220 240 148 60 75
) ( 100) ( 105) ( 120) ( 25) ( 30)
264 264
) (132.0) (132.0) ) ) ¢ )
() 100.85 116.56 121.98 214 .99 325.61
() 100.05 115.31 121.97 214 .99 325.61
() 70.7 65.5 69.6 71.0 72.6
() 11.4 12.4 11.9 18.9 23.8
() 12.9 14.8 18.2 8.7 11.6
() 43.6 41.2 42.6 27.9 23.0
() 74,132 71,373 70,710 70,056 70,224
1 [ 10.795] [ 9.565] [ 9,917]| [ 11,405]| [ 13,182]|
() 103.6 139.9 182.4 160.6 313.8
() (90.5) (128.6) (131.2) (138.8) (196.2)
TOPIX
2,475
() 8,026 8,712 (12.375) 2,283 3,891
1,622
() 5,771 6,163 (8.110) 1,764 1,784
29 2020 31 118

118
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2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
2,200,557 2,174,001 2,350,615 2,836,907 3,503,463
281,329 474,498 646,813 430,675 579,778
223,836 350,229 478,661 288,778 417,871
103,547 497,070 801,434 531,283 928,876
3,005,729 3,484,968 4,294,851 4,533,337 5,330,380
24,574,145 | 27,482,433 | 30,751,097 | 34,457,131 | 42,779,266
( ) | 1.884,482.41| 2,184,614.29 | 2,689,761.92 | 2,824,298.62 | 3,321,484.57
() 142,525.61 | 223,004.92 | 304,782.79 | 183,876.74 |  266,075.45
() = = - - =
() 12.0 12.5 13.7 12.9 12.2
() 7.7 11.0 12.5 6.7 8.7
() — — — — —
) 11,469 12,226 12,986 13,771 14,533
(1,542) (1,386) (1,374) (1,489) (1,570)
)
29 2020 31 2022

2022
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2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
67,138 67,148 116,713 483,893 256,927
52,635 47,481 91,361 460,159 227,542
43,866 41,009 82,651 445,939 221,104
78,525 78,525 78,525 78,525 78,525
1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500
621,868 665,834 747,288 880,949 981,274
629,775 674,448 757,115 895,661 991,016
395,968.40 |  423,963.15 | 475,828.45 | 560,935.91 | 624,816.46
. B 7,640.00 | 272,842.00 86,128.00
(—) | (191,020.00) ()
27,931.86 26,112.55 52,627.34 |  283,947.19 |  140,786.31
98.7 98.7 98.7 98.4 99.0
7.3 6.4 11.7 54.8 23.7
— — 14.5 96.1 61.2
99 230 120 127 134
an (23 20 an (20)

(

)
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)
635,401 100
)
(
16,500 100
Plano, ( ) 100
Texas, U.S.A. 915,000 (100)
Plano, ( ) 100
Texas, U.S.A. 10,000 (100)
Henderson, ( ) 700 100
Nevada, U.S.A. (100)
Markham, ( ) 100
Ontario, Canada 60,000
) ( 100
Sao Paulo, Brazil ) (100)
272,179
( 100
Mexico City, Mexico ) (100)
491,368
Amsterdam, ( )
( ) Netherlands 908 100
( )
Cologne, Germany 30,000 100
Epsom, Surrey, ( ) 100
(UK) United Kingdom 253,950
( ) 100
Roma, Italy 122,863 (100)
St Leonards, ( )
New Sou?h Wales, 120,000 100
Australia
St Leonards,
New South Wales, ( ) 2 (188)
Australia
( 87.38
Bangkok, Thailand ) (0'04)
18,100 )
4,100,000 100
o (
Makati, Philippines ) 60
8,700,000
70
)
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5,034 6,665
5,207 1,402 5,797 1,491
4,178 1,290
2,569 2,269
2,255 2,287 2,275 2,326 2,211
2,248
«c )
2,860 239
378 22
«c )
1,747 3,411
3,321 1,003
( )
2,063 642
317 331
( )
8,363 2,371
1,378 45
42 7,792 3,221
3,882 35 6,285 9,336 1,503
37 4,488 5,250
7,654 17 5,067 7,596 19 9,421
3,303 7,970

275/344



EDINETOOOO

00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

) )
2,288,577 25.9
22,099,068 23.0
2,817,876 29.7
10,265,787 29.5
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() ()
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( )
(2023 31 ) (2024 31 )
1,131,185 1,327,207
, 22,709,771 , 29,094,601
2,294,074 2,828,190
1,119,622 1,352,456
1,383,063 1,505,000
397,400 478,877
28,240,317 35,628,579
C ) , 4,882,190 , 5,548,517
33,654 41,326
4,915,844 5,589,843
79,155 87,299
, 924,776 , 1,075,711
296,928 397,518
1,221,705 1,473,230
6,216,705 7,150,373
108 313
34,457,131 42,779,266

291/344



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

OooooOodd
( )
(2023 31 ) (2024 31 )
702,710 1,049,586
) 3,412,687 ) 4,480,572
3,640,738 4,961,284
3,613,447 4,100,127
42,268 36,638
2,329,384 2,878,495
13,741,235 17,506,704
8,501,142 11,092,620
, 6,708,173 , 7,840,448
641,308 670,540
16,326 7,703
18,159 19,323
297,448 311,546
16,182,558 19,942,181
29,923,793 37,448,886
78,525 78,525
159,900 159,900
3,658,346 3,947,716
3,896,771 4,186,141
24,366 18,568
655 849
562,499 1,047,969
538,789 1,030,249
97,776 113,988
4,533,337 5,330,380
34,457,131 42,779,266
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2,836,907 3,503,463
1,784,266 2,185,849
1,052,641 1,317,613
672,199 796,895
380,441 520,717
4,203 688
9,033 15,863
34,734 40,693
3,479 3,451
51,451 60,696
651 1,041
566 594
1,217 1,636
430,675 579,778
866 —
866 —
— 8,675
132 1,196
132 9,871
431,409 569,907
84,319 203,177
249,730 1,850
302,296 59,911
136,885 141,415
294,523 428,491
5,745 10,619
288,778 417,871
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Independent auditor's report

To the members of Toyota Finance Australia Limited

Our opinion
In our opinion:

The accompanying financial report of Toyota Finance Australia Limited (the Company) and its controlled entities
(together the Group) is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(a) giving a true and fair view of the Company's and Group's financial positions as at 31 March 2024 and of
their financial performance for the year then ended

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.
What we have audited
The Company and Group financial report comprises:

the Consolidated and Company statements of financial position as at 31 March 2024

the Consolidated and Company statements of comprehensive income for the year then ended

the Consolidated and Company statements of changes in equity for the year then ended

the Consolidated and Company statements of cash flows for the year then ended

the notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information

the directors’ declaration.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company and the Group in accordance with the auditor independence requirements
of the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional & Ethical Standards
Board’'s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (the Code)
that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report for the year ended 31 March 2024, but does not include the financial report and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon through our opinion on the financial report.
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In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in

doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this
auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair
view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true
and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Company and the
Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
report.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the Auditing and

Assurance Standards Board website at: https://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar3.pdf. This
description forms part of our auditor's report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

David R Cox Sydney
Partner 27 June 2024

344/344



	表紙
	本文
	第一部企業情報
	第１本国における法制等の概要
	１会社制度等の概要
	(1)提出会社の属する国・州等における会社制度
	(2)提出会社の定款等に規定する制度

	２外国為替管理制度
	３課税上の取扱い
	４法律意見

	第２企業の概況
	１主要な経営指標等の推移
	２沿革
	３事業の内容
	４関係会社の状況
	５従業員の状況

	第３事業の状況
	１経営方針、経営環境及び対処すべき課題等
	２サステナビリティに関する考え方及び取組
	３事業等のリスク
	４経営者による財政状態、経営成績及びキャッシュ・フローの状況の分析
	５経営上の重要な契約等
	６研究開発活動

	第４設備の状況
	１設備投資等の概要
	２主要な設備の状況
	３設備の新設、除却等の計画

	第５提出会社の状況
	１株式等の状況
	(1)株式の総数等
	①株式の総数
	②発行済株式

	(2)行使価額修正条項付新株予約権付社債券等の行使状況等
	(3)発行済株式総数及び資本金の推移
	(4)所有者別状況
	(5)大株主の状況

	２配当政策
	３コーポレート・ガバナンスの状況等
	(1)コーポレート・ガバナンスの状況
	(2)役員の状況
	(3)監査の状況
	(4)役員の報酬等
	(5)株式の保有状況


	第６経理の状況
	１財務書類
	２主な資産・負債及び収支の内容
	３その他
	４オーストラリアと日本における会計原則及び会計慣行の主要な相違

	第７外国為替相場の推移
	第８本邦における提出会社の株式事務等の概要
	第９提出会社の参考情報
	１提出会社の親会社等の情報
	２その他の参考情報


	第二部提出会社の保証会社等の情報
	第１保証会社情報
	第２保証会社以外の会社の情報
	１当該会社の情報の開示を必要とする理由
	２継続開示会社たる当該会社に関する事項
	３継続開示会社に該当しない当該会社に関する事項

	第３指数等の情報

	監査報告書

